AT "ANOKABAHK"HUHI 2024 NN AKYHNAPU BYUUYA NANTNTUK XUCOBOTU
OMUTEHTHUHT XxncoboTHu TacauknaraH opradn: AKUUALOLOPNAPHUHI YMYMUA AUFUNULLIA

XuncobotHu Tacamknall caHacu: 2025 nun 27 UOHb

AMUTEHTHUHI HOMU

1 Tynuk: Akumagopnuk Twxopart "AnokabaHk"

Kuckaptupunran: AT "AnokabaHk"

Bupxa TUKEPUHUHT HOMWU: ALKB

ANOKA MABITYMOTIAPH
>KonnawraH epu: TowkeHT waxpu, Mupso Ynyr6ek Tymanu, Hasruxon MW,
Tenamacxug kyyvacu, 4-yi

2. |Movta maH3unu: 100164, TowkeHT waxpu, Mup3o Ynyrbek TymaHu, HaBHuxon Mo,

Tenamacxkug kyyacu, 4-yn

OnekTpoH novta maH3unu: |info@alogabank.uz

Pacmuin Beb-cainTu: www.alogqabank.uz
BAHK PEKBU3UTINAPU

Xusmat KypcaTtyBuu
3. |6aHKHUHT HOMU:

Xucob pakamu: 16103000900000401001
Ma®O: 00401

AT "AnokabaHk"

PYUXATOAH YTKA3ULL BA UAEHTU®UKALIUA PAKAMITAPU
pyixataaH yTkasysum opraH |Y3bekuctoH Pecny6nukacu Mapkasuii 6aHku.

TOMOHMAaH GepunraH: Pyiixatra onuHraH cana Ba pakamu: 1995 iiun 22 mapt, Ne48.
CONUK XM3MaTu opraHu
TOMOHMAaH GepurnraH 200829053
4. |(CTUP):
JaBnaTt cTaTucTuka opraHn ToMoHuaaH 6GepunraH pakamnap:
MLLUT: 144
KTYT: 15587940
NODYT: 64190
MXOBT: 1726273
SMUTEHTHUHI MONTUABUN-UKTUCOOUU XONATU KYPCATKUYNAPU

YcTaB KanuTanuHUHT peHTabdennuk koaduumeHTr: 0.13
YMymMun Tynosra naékaTrnmnuMkH Konnat

1.07
KoahpuLmMeHTn:

- MyTnak NUKBUANUNUK KOIPULIMEHTU: 0.33

Y3 mabnafnapuHuHr xan6 kunuHrad mabnarnapura

0.15
HucbaTu koacpuuymeHTu:
Acocuit hoHANapHN SHIMNaHUL KO3MPULNEHTN: 0.18
OMUTEHTHUHT Y3 MabnarnapuHUHT Kap3 017
mabnafnapura HucbaTu: '
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XUCOBOT NMNUOA KUMMATIU KOFO3NAP BYUUYA
XUCOBNAHIAH OAPOMALONAP MUKOOPU

Opaun akuuanap 6ymuya

Oup foHa akuumsra cymaa:

6uUp AoHa aKLMUSHUHT HOMUHAN KuiiMmaTtura pounsaa:

UmTrésnu akuuanap 6ymuya

6up agoHa akuusra cymaa:

0,40

GuUp AoHa aKLMSAHUHT HOMUHAN KuiliMaTura pounsaa:

40

boluka kuMmmaTnu Korosnap 6yniuya — obnurauus

OGup QoHa KMMMaTnm KofFosra cymaa:

Ouvp QoHa KMMMATNM KOFO3HUHI HOMUHAN KuiMartura
dousga:

KUMMATNU KOFO3NAP BYUMYA IAPOMALNAPHU TYNALL FO3ACUOAH MABXYl KAP3[IOPJIUK

Opawvn akyuanap 6ynuya

xmncoboT aaBpu AkyHU Gynuyda (cymaa):

ONAWHIM AaBpnap skyHu 6yiuda (cymapa):

UmTrésnu akuusinap 6ynnya

" |xuco6oT naBpu sikyHu 6Yitnya (cymaa):

onauHrM gaspnap sikyHu 6ynnya (cymaa):

Bolika kummartnu Korosnap oyiivda

xmncoboT aaBpu AkyHU Gynuyda (cymaa):

onauHr1 gaepnap skyHu oynuda (cymaa):

KY3ATYB KEHIALLW, TA®TULL KOMUCCUACU EKKU
WXPOUSA OPFTAHUHWUHI TAPKUBUOAIU Y3rAPULLNAP

Y3rapuw canacu
OMUTEHTHUHT Cail ;
Kapop aunaHraH
Ne| kaGyn Basudara ®.M.LL. Naso3numu kapop kabyn Tapku6paH
KMpPULINLL KunraH
KMMUHraH YuKapunrat
caHacu opraHu
caHa
PaxmaToB XacaH bouwkapys Paucu KysaTys
23.01.2024 | 13.04.202 Y
1230120 3.04.2020 YTKUpPOBUY ypuHGocapu KeHrawum vKapunau
Axkuusgopnap
2 |23.07.2024 | 23.08.2024 yMp? aKo8 Mvni(OM)KOH KysaTyB keHrawum ab3ocu ymMyMuin Kuputungm
YpuHbon yrnu AL
Axkuuspgopnap
3 |123.07.2024 | 23.08.2024 fiyTpmnassa KysaTyB keHrawum ab3ocu YMyMUI Kuputungm
OunHo3a PoBLuaH Ku3u AVFANALLY

XUCOBOT UMNUAOA KYLLUMMYA YUKAPUITAH KUMMATIIN
KOFO3NAP XAKUOATA ACOCUA MABITYMOTIAP

OMUTEHTHUHI YMKapuL TYFpucuga kapop kabyn kunraH
opraHu:

KysaTyB keHrawm

KummaTnu KOFO3HUHE Typu:

Oppouii Ba UMTMESNM akumusanap

Kummatnm KoFo3napHUHE COHU:

>Kamu: 826 979 199 732 poHa
wyHOaH: 825 467 199 732 doHa 0ddutli akyusinap
1 512 000 000 doHa umMmuésnu akyusinap

Bup AOHA KUMMAaTNMN KOFO3HUHT HOMUHAN KUAMaTK:

1 cym

HuKapunULLIHUHE AaBnaT pynxatuaaH yTkasunraH caHacu:

26 ceHTAbpb 2024 nun




UukapunuiHUHT faBnat pynxatugaH yTkasunrad pakamu:

P0021-29

JKonnawTupuil Waknu:

BaHk akumagopnapu ypracuaa ynap aranuk KunraH
akuuanap coHura Ba Typura MmyTtaHocub pasuwwiga
121:84 koadppuumeHTaa, abHU xap 121 goHa akuma
YYYH Kywmmda 84 goHa wy Typharu akuuanap

KyLim6 6epuwu nynu GunaH

OaHKHUHT

Takcumnanmaran congacu xucobugan énuk obyHa

ycynuaa )KOI7IJ'IaUJTI/|pV|J'I raH

>KonnawtmpuyLHUHE GoLnaHuL caHacu:

26 ceHTab6pb 2024 nun

JKonnawwTMpULLHUHT SKyHNAaHULL caHacu:

30 ceHTabpb 2024 nun

OMUTEHTHUHT YMKapuLl TyFpucuaa kapop kabyn kunraH
opraHu:

KysaTtyB KeHraium

KummaTtnm KOFO3HUHE Typu:

Oppun akuuanap

KVIMMaT.I'IM KOFO3NapHUHI COHWU!

500 000 000 000 poHa

Bup goHa KuMMaTNN KOFOSHUHI HOMUHAMN KMiMaTu: 1 cym
HukapunuIHUHE JaBnaTt pynxatuaaH yTkasunraH caHacu: 11 pekabpb 2024 nnn
HukapunuLLHWUHT aBnaT pynxaTuaad yTkasunraH pakamu: P0021-30
>Konnawtrpuw waknu: Enuk obyHa

>KonnawTu PULLHUHT OolnaHuw caHacu:

23 pekabpb 2024 nun

YKonawwTMpULLHUHT SIKYHNaHULL caHacu:

28 mapt 2025 nun

10.

XUCOBOT UUNUAOA SMUTEHT ®AONTUATUOATA MYXUM ®AKTNAP

Myxum | Myxum dakr Myxum
Ne Myxum cpakT HOMU chakTt 103 OepraH hakT 3LNOH
pakamu caHa KWJNTMHraH caHa

1 Wxxpousi opraHuHuHr Tapkubugaru ysrapuwinap 8 23.01.2024 25.01.2024

2 AddunnaHran waxc 6unaH Gutum Ty3unuwm 36 23.01.2024 25.01.2024

3 OMUTEHTHUHT 1OKOpY OoLLKapyB OpraHn TOMOHUAAH Kabyn 6 09.02.2024 12.02.2024
KUNUHraH kapopnap

4 Ivﬁmmmamm KOF03J".IapHI/I"-II/IKapI/ILLI TyFpucugaru kapopra 40 14.02.2024 16.02.2024
y3rapTupul Ba (€kun) KyLumMyanap KUpUTULL

5 AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH Gutum Tysunumn 21 27.02.2024 28.02.2024

6 OMUTEHTHUHT 10KOpY OoLLKapyB OpraHn TOMOHUAAH Kabyn 6 25 03.2024 25 03.2024
KUMMHraH kapoprap

7 AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH Gutum Ty3unuwm 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

8 AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH 6utum TysunuLmn 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

9 AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH Gutum Ty3unULn 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

10 | AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH GUTUM Ty3unULIKn 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

11 | AddunnaHraH waxc 6unad GUTUM Ty3unuLIKn 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

12 | AdpdunnaHraH waxc 6unaH Gutum Tysunuwm 21 13.04.2024 13.04.2024

13 | AddunnanraH waxc 6unax Gutum Tysunumn 21 24.06.2024 26.06.2024

14 OMUTEHTHUHT OKOpY OOLLIKApyB OpraHn TOMOHUAaH kabyn 6 01.07.2024 03.07.2024
KUMNMHraH kapoprap

15 | XXownawraH ep (novta MaH3unum) yarapuiim 2 18.07.2024 18.07.2024

16 DaoNUATHUHT anpyUM TypriapuHA amanra OLUMPULL YYyH 29 18.07.2024 18.07.2024
NULEH3UA ONUHIaHNNMA

17 OMUTEHTHUHT 10KOpY BOoLLKapyB OpraHn TOMOHUAAH Kabyn 6 23.07.2024 25 07.2024
KUNUHraH kapopnap

18 | KysaTyB KeHralmHuHr Tapkubuaaru ysrapunap 8 23.07.2024 25.07.2024




11.

19 | AdpdunnaHraH waxcnap pymxarmaaru ysrapuinap 36 25.07.2024 26.07.2024
20 | AddunnanraH waxc 6unan Gutum TyunuLm 21 19.08.2024 20.08.2024
21 | AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaH Gutum Ty3unuLmn 21 19.08.2024 20.08.2024
22 | KummaTnum KofosnapHu YMKkapuLu 25 21.08.2024 23.08.2024
23 | Kummatnu KoFosnapHu YmkapuLu 25 21.08.2024 23.08.2024
24 OMUTEHTHUHT 10KOpY BOLLKapyB OpraHM TOMOHMAAH Kabyn 6 26.08.2024 26.08.2024
KMNuHraH kapopnap
26 | Kummartnu KoFo3napHu YmkapuLl 25 26.09.2024 30.09.2024
27 | Kummatnum KorosnapHu YmkapuLL 25 26.09.2024 30.09.2024
28 Cod cponpaHu (amBuaeHaHM) Takcumnail 6ynuya a1 25 10.2024 29 10.2024
KysaTyB KeHrawwmnHuHr TaBcuscy (Taknugu)
29 | AddunnaHraH waxc 6unaxd Gutum TysunuLmn 21 28.10.2024 30.10.2024
30 | Tobe xyxanuk >xaMusTrnapu pynxatuaari yrapuiunap 12 31.10.2024 01.11.2024
OmuteHT 10 Ba yHAaH opTuK hous akuusnapra
31 | (ynywnapra, nainapra) aranuk KunaétraH opuank 30 31.10.2024 01.11.2024
Laxcnap pymxatugarv ysrapuwinap
32 | AdbdunnaHraH waxcnap pymxatugarv ysrapuwinap 36 31.10.2024 01.11.2024
33 OMUTEHTHUHT 1OKOpY BoLLKapyB OpraHn TOMOHUAAH Kabyn 6 20.11.2024 20.11.2024
KMNuUHraH kapopnap
34 | Kummatnu Korosnap 6ynuya gapomagnapHu xucobnatu 32 20.11.2024 20.11.2024
35 OMUTEHTHUHT OKOpY DOLLKApyB OpraHu TOMOHUAaH kabyn 6 03.12.2024 04.12.2024
KMNuUHraH kapopnap
36 | Kummatnm KoFosnapHu YmKapuLL 25 11.12.2024 11.12.2024
BYXFTANTEPCKWUA BANAHC
Kamezaopuu mbic. cym
AKTUBbI

1. KaccoBast HannU4HOCTb U apyrue nnartexHble JOKYMEHTDI

510 025 015.00

2. K nonyyenuto us LIBPY

1828 213 292.00

3. K nonyuyeHuto n3 gpyrux 6aHkos

893 895 010.00

4. CyeTa Kynnu n npogaxu

2113773 086.00

a. LleHHble Bymaru

2 166 910 000.00

6. dparoueHHble MeTanmnbl, MOHETbI, KAMHU

251.00

B. MMHyCZ PeaepB BO3MOXHbIX y6bITKOB no c4eTam Kynnu-npoaaxwu

0.00

r. Cuerta Kynnu-npoaaxu, YnucTble

2113772 835.00

5 a. uBectuyun

391 688 858.00

6. Munyc: Pe3epB BO3MOXHbIX YObITKOB NO MHBECTULIUSIM 0.00
B. WHBecTuLun, ynctole 391 688 858.00
6. LleHHble Bymaru, kynneHHble No cornalleHuto ¢ 06paTHbIM BbiKynoMm 0.00

7. KpeguTbl 1 NM3MHIoBbLIE onepavuu

12 690 227 947.00

a. bpyTTO KpeauThbI

12 944 272 857.00

6. I'lnsuHroBble onepauun, BpyTtTo

0.00

B. MuHyc: Pe3epB BO3MOXHbIX YOLITKOB NO KpeauTam u NU3UHTY

254 044 910.00

r. erﬂMTbl 1 NU3UHIOBbIE onepauun, YnCTble

12 690 227 947.00

8 a. KynneHHble Bekcens 0.00
6. Munyc: Pe3sepB BO3MOXHbIX YObITKOB MO KYMEHHLIM BEKCENsm 0.00
B. KynneHHble Bekcens, Ynctble 0.00
9. O6saszaTenbCcTBa KIMEHTOB NO (PMHAHCOBBLIM UHCTPYMEHTaM 38 090 268.00

10. OcHOBHbIe cpeacTBa, YUCTbIe

2578 342 217.00

11. HauucneHHble NPOLEHTLI K MONyYeHUo

486 332 855.00

12. [lpyroe cobcTBEHHOE MMYLLECTBO BaHka

348 511 262.00




a. MHBecTuuMn B HEABWKUMOCTb

0.00

6. [lpyrue akTuBbl, NPUOGPETEHHBIE NPU KPeOUTHBIX pacyeTax

159 319 537.00

B. MuHyc: Pe3epBbl Ha BO3MOXHbl€ YObITK NO ApYroMy COGCTBEHHOMY UMYLLECTBY
OaHka

41 119 647.00

r. YucTele, apyroe cobCcTBeHHOE MMyLLIECTBO baHKa

348 511 262.00

13. pyrue aktuBbl

1372174 877.00

14. AToro akTuBoB

23 251 274 687.00

OBA3ATENLCTBA U COECTBEHHbIA KANUTAN

OBA3ATENBbCTBA

15. [leno3uTtbl 4o BocTpeboBaHuUs

4 052 800 159.00

16. CGeperaTtenbHble AeN03UThbI

17. CpouHble Aeno3uTol

9 761 874 655.00

18. Konnate B LUBPY

424 511 118.00

19. K onnate B gpyrue 6aHku

1328 179 724.00

20. LleHHble Bymaru, npodaHHble Mo CornalleHuio ¢ NocneayoLw M BbIKynom

801 459 811.00

21. KpeguTbl 1 NMM3UHIOBbIE Onepauun K onnare

3 099 281 224.00

22. CybopauHupoBaHHble JONroBble 06s3aTenscTea

167 901 638.00

23. HaumMcneHHble NpoLeHTbI K onnaTe

114 739 048.00

24. [lpyrue obasatenscrea

418 286 735.00

25. Utoro obasarenbLCTB

20 169 034 112.00

COBCTBEHHbIW KANUTAN

26. YcTaBHbI kanuTtan

2 318 223 047.00

a. Akuumm - OBbIKHOBEHHbIE

2 314 533 047.00

6. Akuuu - NMpuBUNErMpPOBaHHLIE

3 690 000.00

27. Jo6GaBneHHbI kKanuTan

3 906 139.00

28. Pe3epBHbIl kanuTan

556 093 546.00

a. Pe3epBHbIn hoHA 00Lwero HazHauveHus

552 492 626.00

a.1. 13 Hux, pe3epBbl CO34aHHbIE MO CTaHOaPTHbIM akTuBam

6. PesepB Ha [leBanbBavuio

0.00

B. [lpyrue pe3epsbl 1 (hoHAbI

3 600 920.00

29. HepacnpeaeneHHas npubbinb

204 017 843.00

30. Utoro cobcTBEHHOrO KanuTana

3 082 240 575.00

31. Utoro ob6sizaTenLCcTB U COOCTBEHHOrO Kanurana

23 251 274 687.00

OTYET O ®UHAHCOBbIX PE3YJIbTATAX

Kameeopuu mbiC. CyM
1. NIPOLEHTHbIE 0OXOAbI

a. MpoueHTHbIEe aoxoakl No cyeTam B LIBPY 1 986 849.00
0. NpoueHTHbIE JoXoabl NO cHeTaM B Apyrux 6aHkax 34 667 159.00
B. [MpoueHTHble 4OX0Abl MO KYMNNEHHbIM BEKCensam 0.00
r. MpoueHTHbIE OX0Abl NO MHBECTULIUSM 0.00
4. MNpoueHTHbIe Joxodbl NO cHeTaM Kynnu-npoaaxu LeHHbIX Bymar 266 167 678.00
e. MNMpoueHTHbIe aoxoabl No 06s3aTenbCTBaM KITMEHTOB 0.00
X. NpoueHTHbIe A0X0Abl MO 0653-BaM KNMEHTOB NO HEMOralleHHbIM akuenTam 3Toro 2 255 879.00

OaHka

3. MNpoueHT, [AuckoHT (Cknakm) n B3HOCHI NO KPEAUTHBLIM U NIM3UHIOBLIM OnepauusamM

1944 300 707.00

. MpoueHTHbIE A0X0bl MO CornalleHUsaM O NOKYMNKe LeHHbIX Gymar ¢ o6paTHbIM
BbIKYMOM

0.00




K. [pyrue npoLeHTHble AoX0Abl

0.00

n. Utoro NMPOLUEHTHbLIX AoXo40B

2249 378 272.00

2. MPOLIEHTHBIE PACXOAbl

a. MpoueHTHbIe pacxobl No Aenosutam 4o BocTpebosaHus

63 386 947.00

6. MpoueHTHbIe pacxoapl No cbeperaTenbHbIM Aeno3vTam 0.00
B. [MpoueHTHbIE pacxobl NO CPOYHbIM Aeno3uTam 1435 830 930.00
r. MpoueHTHbIE pacxofbl No cyeTam K onnate B LIBPY 0.00

4. MNpoueHTHbIe pacxoakl No cHeTaM K onnaTe B gpyrue 6aHku

122 493 307.00

e. Utoro NPOLEHTHbLIX pacxoaos Nno genosutam

1621 711 184.00

XK. I'IpoueHTHble pacxoabl NO Kpeautam K onnarte

203 246 293.00

3. lMpoueHTHbIe pacxoap! NO cornalleHuam o npogaxe u/6 ¢ nocneayoLwmm BbiKynom

39 730 301.00

n. pyrue npoueHTHbIe pacxoapl

0.00

K. AToro NPOLEHTHBLIX pacxoaos no 3aimam

242 976 594.00

n. Utoro NMPOLEHTHbLIX pacxonoB

1864 687 778.00

3. YACTbIE NPOLUEHTHBLIE 4OXO0Abl O OLEHKX BO3MOXHbIX YBEbITKOB
NO KPEOUTAM U NU3UHTY

384 690 494.00

a. MVIHyCI OueHka BO3MOXHbIX y6bITKOB no Kpeagutam u NMU3NHry

364 796 188.00

6. YncTble NpoLeHTHbIe J0X0Ab! NOCHE OLEHKM BO3MOXHbIX YObITKOB MO KpeauTam 1
NU3NHTY

19 894 306.00

4. BECMPOLUEHTHbBIE 0OXOObl

a. [loxoabl OT KOMUCCUIA 1 NNaTbl 3a ycnyru

850 091 757.00

6. Mpubbinb B MHOCTpaHHOW BanoTe

191 878 364.00

B. MNpubbinb OT KOMMEpPYECKUX onepauun

0.00

r. MpuBbink 1 AMBUAEHOLI OT UHBECTULIUIA

1900 309.00

a. Opyrue 6ecnpoleHTHble goxoapbl

821 631 886.00

e. UTtoro 6ecnpoueHTHbIX [OX040B

1 865 502 316.00

5. BECMNPOLIEHTHBIE PACXO[bl

a. KomuccuoHHble pacxoabl U pacxoadbl 3a ycnyru

704 531 278.00

6. YObITKM B MHOCTPaAHHON BanoTe

104 196 301.00

B. YObITKM NO cyeTam Kynnu-npoaaxu 28 897.00
r. YObITKA OT MHBECTULWIA 17 729.00
4. Opyrue 6ecnpoueHTHbIe pacxoabl 1357 363.00

e. Utoro 6ecnpoueHTHLIX pacxoaos

810 131 568.00

6. YACTbIA AOX0A A0 ONEPALMOHHBLIX PACXOAOB

1 075 265 054.00

7. ONEPALMUOHHBLIE PACXO[bl

a. 3apaboTHaga nnata u gpyrve pacxodbl Ha COTPYAHUKOB

394 517 792.00

0. ApeHnpa u cogepxaHue

56 740 337.00

B. KOMaH,D,I/IpOBOHHbIe 1 TPaHCMOPTHbLIE pacxoabl

7763 674.00

r. ADMUHUCTpPaTUBHbIE pacxobl

56 973 160.00

O. PenpeseHTauua n 6narotBoputensHOCTb

103 853 329.00

e. Pacxoapbl Ha nsHoc

59 496 383.00

X. CTanOBaHI/Ie, Hanoru n gpyrue pacxonbl

38 169 397.00

3. UToro onepaumMoHHbIX pacxonos

717 514 072.00

8. OLIEHKA HEKPEAUTHbLIX YBEbITKOB

116 270 510.00

9. YHACTASA NPUBLIIb A0 YIMJIATbI HANTOIroB U APYIUX NMOMPABOK

241 480 472.00

a. OueHka Hanora Ha nNpuGbInb

51 507 985.00

10. 4OXOA A0 BBEAEHUA NONPABOK

189 972 487.00

a. Hel'lpe,El,BI/lp,eHHbIe Aoxoabl nnu y6bITKI/1, YUCTbIE

0.00




6. [pyrue nonpasku K Npubbinm, Ynctble

0.00

11. YUCTASA NPUBDLIIb (YBbITKW)

189 972 487.00

13.

Ay,D,VITOpJ'IVIK TAWKUNOTUHUHT HOMU!

"Deloitte & Touche" ayautopnuk TawKkunoT

JnueHsua 6epunraH caHa:

2019 vwmn 5 anpenb

JIlnueHsua pakamu:

Cepusicu A® Ne00776

Xynoca Typu:

Wxobun

Aan/ITOpI'II/IK Xynocacu GepmnraH CaHa:

2025 nun 13 1oHb

AynMTOpI'II/IK XynocCaCuHUHI pakamu:

Tekwupuw yTkasran ayautop (aygutopnap)HuHr ®.U.LL.:

OpkuH Atonos

AyauTopckoe 3aKJIIUYeHre He3aBMCHMOTr0 ayIuTOpa
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Joint = Stock Commercial “Alogabank™

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROYAL OF THE COMSOLIDATED FINANGIAL
STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER 2024

management s responsibie for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that presant fairly the financial
position of Joint - Stock Commercial "Alogabank” and its subsidianes (logether referred to as "the Group”} as at 31
December 2024 and the resulls of its operations; cash flows and changes in shareholders' eguity for the year than
ended, and of material scoounting pelicy information and notes to the consolidated financial staterments
[“the consolidated financial staternents”) in compliance with IFRS Accounting Standarda (further - “IFRS Accounting
Standards”) az lssuad by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ["LASE").

In preparing the consalidated fmancial statements, managemeani is responsible for:

= propery selecting and applying accounting policies;

« presenting information, including accounling policles, in a manner that provides relevant, relisble, comparable
and understandable information;

= providing additional disclosures when compliance with the spacific raquirements in IFRS Accounting Standards
ara insufficient 1o anable users to undersiand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the Group's ¢onsciidated financial position and financial performance; and

+  making an assessmeant of the Group’s ability 1o continue 8s a gaing concern.

Managemenl is alse responsible for;

« designing, implemanting and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, throughout the
Group,

« malmaining sdequate accounting records that are sufficient o show and explain the Group's transactions and
disclosa with reasonable accuracy at any fime the consclidated sialement of financial position of the Group,
and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS
Accounting Standards;
maintaining statutory accounting recerds in compliance with legistation of the Republic of Uzbekistan and
accounting policies of the Group,

* taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assels of the Group; and

»  praventing and detecting fraud and other Imagularities.

The consolidated financial ststements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 were approved by the
Management Board on 13 June 2025.

Irishekova Karmmun
Acting Chairman of the Mana

13 June 2025

= 13 June 2025
Tashkent, Uzbekistan Tashkent, Uzhekistan
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders and the Supervisory Board of Joint — Stock Cornmercial *Alogabank™;
Opinion

We hawve audited the consolidated financial statements of the Joinl Stock Commerclal "Alogabank”
{the ‘Bank”) and is subsidiades (ihe “Group’), which comprisa the consolidated staternent of financial
position as at 31 Decornber 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or Inss and ather comprehenshe
income. tha conaofidzted sistement of changes In equity and the consolidated staternent of cash Bows for
the year then ended, and notes to tha consalidated financial statements, including material accounting palicy
information,

In our opinion, the accompanying consolideted financial stalements present falrly, In all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 Decamber 2024, and ils consolidated financial
performance and ifs consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Actounting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (TASE"),

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing ("15As"), Our responsibilities
under thosa standards ane further described in the Awditor's Responsibilties for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financlal Slafemeants section of our report, Wa are indepanden! of the Group in accordence with the
Inlernatonal Ethlcs Standarde Board for Accountands’ \mlermafional Code of Effice for Professionsl
Accountarts fincluding International Independence Standards) (tha "IESBA Code”) together with the ethical
requiremants that are relevant o our audit of the consclidated financial statements in the Republic of
Lizbekistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance with fhese requirements
and the IESBA Code. We belizve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our oplnéon.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters ara those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial siatemants of the curment period. These matters were addressad in the context
of our sudil of the consolidated financial stalements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thergon, and we
dio ot prowvide 8 separabe opinicn on thesse matlers,

TSR

Erkin Ayugaw, Dualifiad AuditerEngagement Padner
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Deloitte.

Wiy Ihe matier was determined 1o be

i ey BLIONE Matier

How the matter was addressad

In the sudil

Ewpa;mdc-“rﬂd'ﬂ' losses on foans and advances (o
custarmers

As at 31 December 2024, gross loans advances to
customers amounted to UZS 13,465 306 million, nat of
allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL') of UZS
285,335 million sssessed on a collective basis and
UZS 138,063 milon assessed on an individusl basis
representing 58% of the Group's tolal assels.

The caiculation of the ECL requires the managemsent
o apply complex models dependent on significant
Judgements and wuse of assumptions.

Probability of default ("PD") and loss given default
{"LGD") are key inputs that the management
determines baszed on a large volume of historical data
accumulated in the Group,

For lnans assessed on a collective basks, there iz a risk
that the underying data driving the PDs and LGDs
comarising of genaral laan parameters, information on
days past due, status of restructurings, history of
defaults and recoveries, collateral haircuts and other
quaktative factors may be inaccurate or incomplete.
Thare is alzo a rizk that the expozures with significant
increase in credii risk and credit-impairmant are mol
completely or accurately idenlified/dassified as al the
reporting date, as not all relevant gualitative and
quantitative informaton was capiured.

The ECL on individually significant credi-impakred
lcans may be missiated due to errors related to the
estimalion of future cash receipls from the sale of
coflateral or use of Inapproprate assumptions.

Due o the gignificance and subjectivity of judgements
used by the Managemaent of the Group and the volume
of lpans assessed either, on a colective, or an
individual - basis, we idenfified lhe ascessment of
expactad cradil losses as a key audi mather,

Fefer to Motes 3, B and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements for information on the Group's material
accounting pobcy information and disdosures related
o loans and advances to customers and essociated
expected credit losses.

We obtained an understanding of the processas
within the lending business cycle including credi
risk management, as well as internal controls
around loan origination, calculation of overdue
days, collateral moniloring. and ECL
assessment.

We challenged the reasonableness of the
methedolegy on colleciive loan loss provisioning
and s compliance with IFRS 9 “Financial
Ingtrumenta” requireaments. With the imdalvameant
of our credil risk advisory specialists, we lostad
the mathematical accuracy and computation of
tha ECL on loans and advances to customera
esseased on a colleciive basks by re-parforming
and calculating slementz of the expected credit
Insses based on relevant audited source data on
a sample basis. This included assessing the
aporopriateness of model design and formulas
used, considering modelling techniques and
recE:IEu;ﬁlinq PDs, LGDs and exposure at default
I:IJ n

For a sample of loans, we challenged the
Group's analysis of whether there was a
significant increase In credit risk or default. In
order io evaluate whether the loans have baan
appropriately classified (o the respective stage,
we checked days overdue on loans, restrechuring
status of loans, analyzed qualdative and other
credlt risk faclors and checked F relevant
impairment events had beoen Hentified property,

For individually significant loans, we challenged
the maragement's justification of the borrowers'
credii assassmant, analyzed ihe
reasonableness of the scenario applied and the
assumplions underlying the ECL calculation:
such as valuation of avallable collateral and the
haircits  applied, estimation of cash flows
availlabba for debt sarvice.

We evaluated the acouracy and completeness of
the disclosurez in the consolldated financial
statements relating io the loans and advanceas 1o

Erkin Ayupoy, Qualified AudiiorEngagerment Partnar

cusiomers  for  compliance with IFRS 9
requirements
= __.-_— et
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Cither Matter

The conzolidated financial statements of the Group for the vear ended 31 December 2023 were audited
by anather auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on fhose statements on 21 June 2024,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

hManagement B responsiole for the preparation and far presentation of the consolidated financial
slatermants in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal contral as management
determines & necessary o enable the preparation of consclidated financkal statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the coneolidated financial statameants, managemeant is respaonsible for assassing the Group's
abillty 1o continue as a going concern, disclesing, as applcable, malters related 1o going concern and
ueing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
o coase operations, or has no realistic allernathve but to do 5o,

Thoze charged with governance are responsible for cverseaing the Group's financial reporting process
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obiain reasonable assurance aboul whether the consolidated financial statements
as awhole are free from materal misstatement, whether due o fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance s a8 high level of assurance, but iz not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always datect a material misstatement
when i exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered malerial 7, individually or
in tha aggragate, they could reasonably be expeciad 1o infiluance the sconomic decisions of usars takan
on the basis of these consolidated financial stalements.

As part of an audil in accordance with 153As, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional
shoplicism throughout the audit. We also:

* Idertify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consalidated financial statements,
whather due to fraud or error, design end perform audit procedures respensive 1o those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriste (o provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting & material miastatement resulting from frawd ie higher than for one
resulting from  error, a8 frasd  may  invobse  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresantations, or the owverride of intermal contral,

. Obtain an understanding of Intermal control relevant to the audit in order io design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Growp's internal confral

* Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonablenaszs of acoounting
estimates and related disdosures made by management
* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the galng concem basls of accounting

and, based on the audit evidenca obtained, whether a material uncerainty exists ralated to
events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continee as a going
cancern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, wea are required to draw attention in
our awditer's report o the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our oplnbon. Our conclusiors are based on the audit
evidance obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's repor, However, fulure evenis or conditions
may cause the Group to cease ko continue as a going concermn.

» Evaluate fhe overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statemants,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidaled financial statements represent
the underying transactions and evenis in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Erkin Apupoy, Qualifiod AvdilorEnagagaemanl Parries ____=._--'_"'1_“~
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. Plan ard perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriale audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business units within the group as a basis far forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
raview of the audit work performed for purpoeses of the group aud®. We remain solely responsibla
for our audit opinkan,

We communicgte with those charged with governance regarding, among ofher matters, the planned
scopa and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
imternal controd that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged wilh governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requiremanis regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken (o efminste threats or safeguards applied.

From the maiters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
waere of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the currant period, and
ara therefore the key audit malters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unlese law or
regudation precludes public disclosure about the matter or whan, in extremedy rare circumstances, we
detarming that a matter shawid not be communicated inour report because the adverse consaguences
of doing so would remsonably be expected to outweigh the public Imerest benefits of such
communication.

Report on findings from procedures performed in accordance with the reguirements of the Law
of the Republic of Uzbekistan No. ZRU-580 dated 5 November 2019 “On Banks and Banking
Activity"”

Managemani af the Group is responsible for the Bank's compliance with prudential ratios set by the
Central Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan ("Ceantral Bank”) and for ensuring that the intemal control and
organization of risk managament systems comply with the Cenfral Bank requirements.

In accordance with the Article 74 of the Law of the Republic of Uzbekistan No. ZRU-5380 dated 5
Movember 2078 “0n Banks and Banking Activity” (the “Law”), we have performed procedures to check:

— the Bank's compliance with prudential ratios as at 31 December 2024 set by the Central Bank;
— whalher the elemenis of the Bank's internal control and organization of risk management syslems
comply with the Geniral Bank requiremeants.

These procedures were selected based on our judgment, and were limied to an analyskz and study of
documents; a comparison of the Bank's intemal policies, procedures and methodologles with tha
applicable requirements eatablished by the Central Bank, as weli as recaloulations, comparsons and
reconciliations of numearesl data and othes information.

Cwr findings from the procadures performed are as follows:
Based on our procedures with respect to the Bank's compliance with the prudential ratics set by the

Central Bank, we found that the Bank's prudential ratios, as at 31 December 2024, were within the limis
set by the Central Bank.

Erkin Ayupov, Qualiied AudilonEngagemant Partnes
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We have not parformead any procedures on the underlying accounting data of the Group, other than those
which we considered necessary to enable us to express an opinion as to whether the Group's
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and ils consolidated financial parformance and
consolidated cash flows far tha year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards.

Based on our procedures with respect to whether the elements of the Bank's internal controd and
organization of risk management systems comply with Central Bank requiremants, we found that:

in accordance with Central Bank requirements and recommendations, as at 31 December 2024, the
Bank's miernal audit function was subordinated and accountable to Those Charged with
Govarmance, and tha risk mamagement function of the Bank was not subordinated and accountable
io subdivisions assuming comesponding risks;

the frequency of reports prepared by the Bank's infemal audit function during 2024 complied with
Cantral Bank requirements. The reports were approved by the Bank's Those Charged with
Govemancs and included cbservalions made by the Bank's internal audit function in respect of
internal controd sy siems;

a5 at 31 December 2024 the Bank has an information security function in place as required by the
Ceantral Bank, and an information security policy was approved by the Bank's Management Board.
The information secunty function was subordinatad to and reportad directly to the Chalrman of the
Management Board;

raports by the Bank's information security function to the Chairman of the Management Board during
2024 includad an aszessment and analysis of information security risks. and the results of actions o
manage such risks:

the Bank's internal documentation, effeciive as at 31 December 2024, that sats out methodologies
fo identify and manage the Bank's credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, country risk,
legal risk, reputational risk (hersinafter “significant risks”) and o cary out stress-testing, was
approved by the Bank's authorised management bodes in accordance with Central Bank
requirements and recommendations;

as at 31 December 2024, the Bank mamntained a system for reporing on the Bank's significant risks,
and on the Bank's capital;

the frequency of reports prepared by the Bank's rek management during 2024, which cover the
Bank's managamant of significant risks, was in compliance with the Bank’s internal documentation.
Those reports incleded observations made by the Bank's risk management functions as to their
assassmant of the Bank's significant risks, risk management system and racommendations oo

iImprovement;

g5 al 31 Decamber 2024, Thosa Charged with Governance and Executive Mamagement of the Bank
had responsibility to monitor the Bank's compliance with risk and capital adeguacy limits set by
Bank's intemal documentatiocn. To exercise contral over the effectiveness of the Bank's risk
managemant procedures and (helr consistent applicetion during 2024, Those Charged with
Governance and Execulive Management of the Bank regulary discussed the reports prepared by
fhe risk managemeant and ipternal audit functions of the Bank, and considered proposed maeasures
to eliminate weakneseas.
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Procadures with respect to elements of the Bank's iffernal control and organizabon of risk management
systems were performed solely for the purpose of examining whether these elements, as prascribed by
the Law and as described above, comply with Central Bank requiremants.

Audit Organisation “Deioite & Touche” LLC Erkin Ayupoy

i& included in the Register of audit organisations nr Cualified AudiorEngagement Partmes

the Minisiry of Economy and Finance ,_: epublicof  Auditor qualification certificate authorizing audit of
Uzbekistan dated 08 June 2021 7 e coMmpanies, #04830 dated 22 May 2010 Bssved by
=%he Minisiry of Economy and Finance of the

5

ks, #6/8 dated 25 January 2021 issued by the
Crentral Bank of the Republic of Uzbekistan

43 June 2025 D 8 2 Director,
Tazhkent, Lizbakistzn Audit Organisation "Deloitte & Touche™ LLG



Joint - Stock Commaercial “Alogabank”
Consoliidated Staterrant of Financial Position

3 Dacamber 31 Decambar

in milinps of Urbekickan Soums Notes 2024 2023
ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalants T 2 615,062 1,474,301
Cwe from other banks B 217 564 655,816
Loans and pdvances o customers ] 13041 818 10,485,387
Investment in degt sscurities 0 2178373 217708
invesiment in sguity seournities 1 103,126 30,887
invesatment in associates and joint venhires 12 50,000 60,501
Pramises, squipmant and fght of use resats 14 2032283 2447 480
Intangible assats 14 3,046 44,750
Defemrad income tax assal 26 40,259 50,306
Oiher inancis assels 13 1,094, 742 40,236
Ohar non=financial assots . 13 181,682 261,820
Mon-curmerd assel hald for sala 15 a7 020 .
TOTAL ASSETS 22,504,024 15,778 166
LIABILITIES

Dua to othar banks 16 2,141 167 1,144,772
Custemar accounts 17 12 780 423 B.518,7206
Dilhasr barrowed funds 18 4,135,368 3,230,501
Other financlal Bab@tias 14 218,781 223,770
Oither non-financial Babilities 19 43 358 64,036
Corporate mcome tax Eabilitles 1,500 28,240
Subordinated dubt 20 171,731 160,342
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,404,328 13,380,480
EQUITY

Share capital § 25824 157 1,187 178
Relained earmings 674,509 1,200,177
Mit assats attributabls 1o the Bank's owners 3,008,758 2,367 355
Hon-controlling interast Sl 331
TOTAL EQUITY 3,088 696 2,307 686
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 22,584,024 15,776,166

Irishekova Kammuna
Acling Chalrman of the

Menagement SBoard

The notas set aut on pages 12 k5 72 form an Integral part of fhesa consolidated financial statements,



Jolnt - Stock Commaercial “Alogabank™
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

in millons of Lizbekiatan Soums Motes 2024 2023
Interest income caloulated using the effeciive interest method 22 2581452 1,934 BT
Cither smilar mcome 22 1,072 2,208
Inbarast and similar expense 22 (1,771,260} (1,280,102)
Mal margin on inlerest and similar Incoma E11,274 B51,060
Crdit loss allowance for sssels camed at amoriised cost T,8.8,10,13 {A21,841) L T2e,G6681)
Iritlal Fesognition adjustment on inkerest Dearnng dssels {13,378) #
Met margin on interest and similar income after credit loss

allowance 176,055 522,309
Fee and cormmisshn Income 23 EE312T &0 B2T7
Faa and commissicon expanse . =2 (BEEO09} (514,089
Foroign exchange translalion gaing loss losses 70,583 66,341
Mat gain from trading In foralgn cumencles 92,817 &9,704
Civer opamting Incoma 24 421,980 261,229
Administrative and othar oparaling exponses 25 (T83,371)  (850,358)
Oither impalrment provisions 13 {4,825} E
Impalrment of non-cumant azsats held for sals 15 {2,337} -
Shara of result from associales and JY 2} [553)
Profit before tax 85,018 485,304
Incoma Loy expenss 2 (42,103}  {1D6,796)
Profit for the year 252815 356,508
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INGOME FOR THE YEAR 252,815 358,508
Profit is atbributable to;

- Orwneds of the Bank 252,306 350,133
- Non-controfing interest 609 (G285
Profit for the year 252 915 358 508
Total comprehensive Income s atiributable o

= Cromiers of the Bank 252306 350,133
- Man-corntroling Inberest e (825)
Total hensive income for the year 252,915 358,508
Earnings per share for profit attrlbutable to the owners of tha 28 ad 0.3

Bank, basic and diluted {expressed in UIZS per share)

f the Board of Management on 13 Juna 2025,

p

IIII " L
Irisbekova Kammuna %% wﬁ M&e& Clur
Acting Chalman of the Chief Accou
Managament Board ii‘%‘i-"—:a k '

The notes sat out on pages 12 to 72 form an integral part of thess consalidated financial staemnts.



Jalnt - Stock Commercial ¥

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Bank . mm"ﬂ; bl
Note Share Retalned Total interest
in miliong of Uzbakistan Soums capital eamings
Balance at 1 January 2023 956,289 841,044 1,798,023 a5 1,708,280
Profit for the year . 359,133 358,133 (625) 358,508
Totad comprehansive incomsa for the year - 353,133 a9, 133 (6250 338,508
_Shares issue 21 240,189 - 240,180 - 240,189
Balance at 31 December 2023 1,107,178 1,200,177 2,397,355 331 2,397,686
Profit for the vear - 252 306 252,306 800 252015
_Total comprehenshve income for the year - 252,306 252,306 609 252,315
Shares iasus 21 500,000 . 500,000 - 500,000
Capitalization of dividands 21 B36.979 (826,978 . = *
Dividends declared for payment and tex on divideands 21 - {50,805) {50,905 - {50,205)
Balance at 31 Decermber 2024 2,524,157 574,500 __3,008,756 240 1,099,555

Irisbekova Kammuna ;
Acting Chairman of the Manage

The noles aet oul on pages 12 bo 72 form an Rlegral pert of thees coraclidated financial statements.

1



Joint - Stock Commercial "Alogabank™
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I'n Fridiiares of Urbakistan Soums Mates 2024 2023
Cash fliows from operating activities
Intenest income recelvad calculated using the effective interast method 2200 253 1,699,785
Other simiar income eceived 1,072 2,205
Irteneal pald calculsded wusing the effective interast mathod {1, 840.657) {1,322 447}
Feas and commission received BE4, 003 B2, 771
Fees and commission paid (671,2687) (487.583)
Met gains from trading in foreign curencies 82,817 80,708
Dthar cperaling ncome meeived 8,545 5,258
Staff costs paid (3894,578) (368, 233)
Administrative awd other operaling expenses pald (e TEY) (168,478
Income tox E{ id — R T T~ (BE.B13) (122,887}
Cash flows (usad in eratin ther anges
in oparating assets and ixlllﬂna i 34.087) Aa2,008
Net (ircresss) / decrease i
- due from ather banks 453,152 70588
- koang and advances to customers (2,785.834) (328,392}
- other assats {454) {145,857}
= investment in aquity securitios 157.804) 1 20,907)
Ned (decrensa) /increase in
= tlue i other banks B94.200 [1.59592,881)
- euslomer acrounts 4,173,605 710,166
= athias liabililies (4.122] (49,832}
_Net cash from/{used in) operating activities Rl ot S LA
Cash flows from Investing activitles
Aciulaiion of investments in debt securiles carrlad at amortised cost (2, 120,825) [1.066,403)
Proceeds from redemption of debl securties camed at amoriieed cost 218,087 1,645,801
Acquialion of pramiaesa, aqulpment and Intangible asseta (T AT {Ho7,518)
Proceeds from disposal of premizes, aguipmant and intangible sssets 18,126 114,000
Apculziion of agsociales - (2,273}
Procaads from sabe of aesociatas &E0 =
Dividends recelvad 1,900 =
Met cash usad in Investing activities (2,655,701) {19,493}
Cash flows from financing activities
Procasada from shara laaue 29 340, 000 240,185
Procaada from due o other banks 27 2,200 -
Repayment of due to othar baniks 2 {25, 086) x
Procaada from otheer bormowad funds a7 2,255 604 1,131,809
Rapaymant of cthar bomowed fenda 27 (1,408,2085) (1250411}
Rapaymant of principed of leasze llabilities 27 {10,587) {1,812)
Dividerds pakd 27 {50,107) ?
Met cash from financing activities 1,167,737 118,755
Effact of -IEI'IH'I"H ritis uhlnpu o s !ﬂﬂ Cash lrgl.ll"l'ﬂﬂ'ﬂl 18,850 50,034
Met increaseldecrease)in cash and cash equivalenis 1,140,781 1, 58%,824)
Cash and cash aquivalenis at the beginning of the year T 1,474,301 064,125
Cash and cash equivakonts at the end of the yoar 7 2815.062 1,474,301
Mon-cash transactions
Write off hoars ] 11r, 759
_Reposeased assatathssets hald for salg, ittt 3

Approved for issue and signed o b

L1
Irisbekova Kammuna L
Acting Chairman of the Managemerif B#s Chisf Accountant |

The noles sel oul on pages 12 to 72 form an indeagral pant of these conselidated financial stataments.
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Joint - Stock Commercial “Alogabank™
Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

| Intraduction

These consolidated financlal staiements have besn prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the [ASB (IFRS Accounting Standards) for the year erded 31 December 2024 for
diint - Sock Commerncial "Alogabank” (the "Bank") and its subsidiaries (the "Group”}].

The Bark was incorporaled in Oeiobar 1984 and Is domiciled In the Republic of Uzbekisian.

Principal activity. The Bank's principal business activity is commercial and retail banking operations within the
Republic of Uzbekistan. The Bank operates undar the license issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of
Uzbekiztan on banking operations Mo 48 dated 9 July 2024 (replaced license No 48 dated 25 December 2021).
The Bank iz slso involved in commercial operations with securities, foraign currencies and orlginating loans and
guarantea origination. The Bank accepts deposits from the publc and issues loans, fransfers payments in the
Rapublic of Lizbakistzn and abroad. and provides banking services for Its commerclal and retail customers,

The Bank aperates from its Haad office located in Tashkent and 94 {2023:88) reglonal banking service cenires,
of which 15 are reglonal complex banking service cenfres (2023:14) and 79 are small banking service cenfres
(2023:74) located throughout the Republic of Uzbekistan.

As af 31 Dacember 2024 Moody's and Fitch rating agencies affirmed for the Bank the following ratings:

Long-larm counterparty risk rating in the foreign curency: Bad/'BEB- (2023 Ba3);
Loy term daposil in the foreign currancy: B1 [2023:B1);

Long term depasit in the local currency: BB- (2023:n/a)

Basaline Credit Assessment; B2 (2023:B2).

Sovereign Risk: BE- (2023n/a),

The registered address and place of business. The Bank's registered address i Tepamasjid std,
Mirzoulugbek district, Tashkent 100164, Republic of Uzbekistan.

Sharaefrolders. Al 31 December 2024 and 2023, the interest of the shareholders n the Bank's share capital was:

2024 2023
Lizbekislan Fund for Recensimeston and Develbament 49.53% &1.80%
JEC "Uzbekbelecom” 17.66% 22.03%
Kaydarow Akrom Adkamovich 16.67% =
Fund for Developmeant of ICT (AKTRL) 5.06% f.30%
Miniztry of Econemy and Finance of Repubkc of Uzbadkistan A4 4.07%
Axmedoy Macmud Madaminavich 2.5 -
Cantar of Elestromagnelic Compatblity 1.60% 2.11%
J5C "Alskom” Insurance Company 0.64% 01.80%
Tashkeat Stale University of Information Technologias 0.51% 0.64%
"Mekhnat Piva™ LLEC 0.1 0.47%
Oilhar sharahaldars A2T% 1.530%
Total L 100%

-

The Bank is ullimately controied by the Government of the Republic of Uzbekistan through the Uzbekistan Fund
for Reconstruction and Development and Ministry of Econemy and Finance of Republic of Uzbekiatan,

Bubsidiaries and associates. As al 31 Decembar 2024 and 2023, the Bank's subsidisries and sssocistes
comprised the following:
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Joint - Stock Commercial “Alogabank”
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Name Ownership Ownership Year of Industry Country
31 December 31 December incorporation
2024 2023
Bank's direct interest in subsidiaries:
"ALCRA FACTORING™ LLG 100% . 2024 Finanes Lizhekktan
*ALOOAVEMTLURES " LLE 1004, 1005 M Wenture Lizhekiian
capita
*ALOCS AKTIVE LLE 100% 100% e irvestment Uzbes gian
*ALOOLIZING” LLC" LLD 56% &% 27 Lagsing Lrhesitan
Bank's indirect interest in subsidiaries via Aloga aktiv I..L{;.
"IARBDOR AKTIS LLE 1005 2024 AgrlculBiure Uzbedintan
"CHUST POYAFZAL" LLD 04, 5% . 2024 Leatwr Lizhekistan
Prescluclicn
*CIRT FADL MODDALAR" a1 015 ania Cheemiatry! Wsberkiban
oG Faseanch
“BIDAZOT IGBR" LLG = A% 2018 Biologw! Uzbekintan
Raseanch
Bank’s inlerest In associabes:
JEG OIBERISTON 20% 8% 2001 Postal sendees  Uzbekistan
POCHTASE
TUZDIGITAL TV LLC 0% 2011 btedin Iizbakistan
Bank's indirect Interest in associates via Almwntum LLC:
FRO-TOKLLS % 20% 203 Prageamming  Uzbakistan
SEMVions
"Mckirlar sizmali® LLC b1 5% 2023 M-oulsourcing  Lizkakistan
SENVICTS
*CRADLE WISION TECH' DT i) i) Programming  Uzbakision
LLC EArCES
“EDU MARKETS"LLE 5 335 2032 Lizbakisian
Bank's interast in Jolnt ventures:
*IT-BILIMLARMI
RIVOSLANTIRISH Educational
MARKAZI” LLC 453 485% 20 hacilty Lekvakistan

Im 2024, the Bank has astablished ona new subsidiary namely, "Moga Facloring' LLC, with ownership stakes of
100%, Furthermore, "Aloga Aktiv" LLC has invested in "Chust Poyafzal" LLC and "Zarbdor Akth® LLC, with the
ewnership stakes 90.5% and 1009 in respactively,

Abbreviations. A glossary of various abbreviations used in this decument is included in Note 37.

2 Operating Environment of the Group

Emerging markets such as Uzbetistan are subject to different risks than more developed markets, including
scanomic, political and sockal, and legal and legislative risks. Laws and regulations affecting businesses in
Uzbekistan continue to change rapidly, whila tax and regulaiory frameworks are subject to varying interprelations.
The future economic direction of the country Is heavily influsnced by the fiscal and monetary poficies adopted by
the government, tagethar with developmenis in the legal, regulatery, and political ervirenmant,

Because Lizbakistan produces and exparts gold m large volume, its aconomy |s sansitive to the global gold price,
which fluctuated significantly in 2024, averaging 2,388 US Dodar per froy ounce (2023; 1,943 US Doltar per troy
OUnce).

The military and political corflict between Russia and Ukraine escalated in early 2022 As a resull, several
couniries intreduced economic sanctions against Russia and Belaruss, including measures o ban new nvestment
and restrict interaction with major financial instiutions and many state enterprises. Since a significant portion of
remittances to Uzbekistan comes from Russia, fluctuations in their flow depend on the nature of the sanclions
imposad, their impact on fthe Russian economy, and the devaluation of the Russian ruble.
Because those factors change from year to vear, the exact impact on Uzbekistan’s financial envirernment remains
uncartain and difficult to predict,

Uzbekistan is curantly taking significant steps to join the World Trade Organization, which may significanthy
change market rules for local players and open up new opporunities to paricipants from aulzside of Lizbakistan,
The process may require significant changes in national lagislation.
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Joint - Stock Commercial “Alogabank
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 December 2024

At the end of 2024, Uzbekistan's gross domestic product ("GDP®) grew by 6.5% (2023 6.0%). Inflation in the
country Increased 1o 9.8% per annum in 2024 (2023 8.8%). In July 2024, the Central Bank of the Republic of
Uzbekistan reduced base rate to 13.6% per annum compared to 14% per annum at the beginning of the period.
However, uncartainty still exists related fo the future development of geopolitical risks and their impact on the
economy of Lizbekistan.

Management of the Group is monitoring developments in the economic, political, and geopalitical situation and
laking measures it considers necessary (o support the sustainability and development of the Group's business for
the foreseeable fulure. However, the consequences of these events and related future changes may have a
significant impact on the Group's operations

3 Material accounting poficy information

Basis of preparation. Thess consolidated financlal stalements have been prepared under the historical cost
cormvention, as modfied by the initial recognition of financlal instruments based on far value, and by the
revaluation of financial instruments categorised at falr value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"). Material accounting
policies information applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial slatemants are set out balow, Theaa
policies have been consiatanily applied to all the perods presented, unless otherwise stated,

Golng concern. Management prepared these consolidated financial siatemanis on & going concern basis, In
making this judgement, management considered the Group's financial position, cumrent Intentions, prafitability of
operations and access 1o financial resources, and analysed the impact of recent macro-economic developments
o fulure operations of the Group,

As al 31 Decamber 2024, the Group's short term liquidity maturity gap is negative. However, as at 31 December
2024, the Bank's liquiddty position was in compliance with the liquidity prudential ratics set out by the CBU.
Management regularly performs siress tests lo assess the potential outcomes due to lquidity mismatches and
evaluates results 1o prapare action plans. In addiion, the CBU monitore Bank's compliance with prudential ratios.
A significant portion of these customar damand accounts are of large state controlled lelecommunication entities
which are either the Group's sharehalders or related endities under common control and the past experience of
the Group Indicate to Management that these customer accounts provide a long-term and stable source of funding
for the Group. Total nogative liguidity gap with maturity up to 1 year is comprised of UZS 2,746,976 milllon which
includes short term deposis from the state controlled entities in the amount of UZS 1,966,727 milion.

The Management of the Group believes that the nagative short term liquidity gap cutlined above combined with
the factors below do not raise a concern over the Group's ability to ceatinue as a going concem:;

=  The Bank is one of the largest and siable state-owned banks with 94 regional banking service centers all
over Uzbekistan and employs more than 2,200 employess. Tha government continusously supports the state
owned banke and implement various state programe in order to support the national economy fhrough
iendings. The Bank i3 stralegcally important to the government as the Bank imvests intensely in
telecommunication and [T sector of the economy, providing speclalsed access to finance for the new start-
up companies and SMEs. As at 31 December 2024, borrowings from the Ministry of Economy and Finance
of the Republic of Uzbakistan and the Uzbekistan Fund for Reconstruction and Development amounted to
UZS 528,831 and 720,452 million, respectively (2023.UZS 405,868 and 638,769 million) and the customear
accounts from the same amounted to UZS 1,327,502 million {2023: UZS 1,555,007 millien) and UZS 180,887
million (2023:nil);

= During 2024, the Group has issued additonal shares in the amaunt of UZS 500,000 milion:

= In addition, during 2024 the Group has received additional financing from International financial institutions
under existing credit lines and new agreaments, including financing from Commerzbank, Banca Popolare Di
Sondnio, Asian Development Bank, ODDO Bank and Cargill Financial Services International, Inc.; and

*  In2024, Moody's and Fiteh rating agencles has aflirmed a positive outlook on all ratings of tha Bank, including
ihe long-term counterparty risk rating in foreign currency (Ba3/8B-) and the long-term deposit ratings in both
foreign and local currency (B1/BB=).

The management belleves thal, based on current forecasts and measures taken o manage liguidity, and also
laking mnte account the economic situatlcn in the couniry, the Group has enough funds to continue its activities in
the fareseeable fulure,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Consolidated Nnanclal statements. Subsiciaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an
antity when it is sxposad to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvemant with the antity and has the ability
to affect those refurns through its power over the entity, The financial statements of subsidiaries are inchedad in
the consolidated financial siztamants from [ha data hal control commencas untll the date thal control ceases,
The accounting policlies of subsidiares have been changed when necessary to align them with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balancas and unrealised gains on transaciions betwsan group companies are
eliminated, unrealised losses are also eliminated unbess the cost cannol be recovered. The Bank and all of its
subsidiaries use uniform accournting policies consistent with the Group’s policies.

Moni-confrolling interest iz that part of the net results and of the equity of a subsidiary attributable o interests that
are rol owned, direclly or indirectly, by the Bank. Mon-confrolling interest forms a separate component of the
Group's aquity.

Azzocistes. Associates are entifies over which the Group has significant influence (directly or indirectly), but not
control, generally accompanylng a sharehobding of between 20 and 50 percent of the voting rights

Investmants in associates are accountesd for using the equity method of accounting, and are initially recognized
at cost. The carrying amount of associates includas goodwil identified on acquisition less accumulated credit
losses, If any. Dividends received from asscciates reduce the carrying value of the investment in assoclates.
Other post-acquisition changes in Group's share of nat assats of an associate are recognised as follows: (|} the
Group's share of profits or losses of associates i3 recorded in the consolidated profit or logss for the year as share
of resull of associates, (i) tha Group's share of other comprahansive incama |s recognisad in other comprahensive
income and presented separately, (ii); all other changes in the Group's share of the carrying value of nel assets
of associates are recognised in profit or loss within the share of result of associates. Howeaver, whean the Group's
share of logzes in an associate equals or exceeds s interest In the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not racognise further losses, unless it has incurmad obligations of made payments on
behalf of the associale,

Linrealized gains on ransactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated o the extent of the Group's
intarest in the associptes; unrealised losses are also aliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
Impakrment of the assel ransferred,

Joint ventures, Interesis in joint veniures are scoounted for using the eqguity method (sea above), after iniially
being recognised al cost in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial ingtruments - key meagsurament teems. Fair value i the price that would be received to sell an asseat
or paid o fransfer a kability in an ordery fransaction betwean market parlicipants at the measuremant date. The
best evidence of fair value is price in an active market. An active market & one in which transactions for the asseal
or Rability take place with sufficient frequency and volurme o provide pricing information on an engoing basls. Fair
value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quated price for the
Individual asset or Habiity and the quantity held by the entity. This is the case even if a market's normal daiky
trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the guantity held and placing orders to sell the position in a single
transacton might affect the quoled price.

Valuation lechnigues such as discounted cash flow modets or models based on recent arm's kength transactions
or conslderation of financlal data of the investees, are used to measure fair value of certain financial instruments
for which extarnal market pricing infermation is not available. Fair value measuraments are analysed by level in
the fakr value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements at guoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assats or labilities, (i) level two measurements are valuabions echiiques with all material inputs
observable for the asseal or liability, elther directly (that is, a5 prices) or indirectly (ihat is, derived from prices), and
(iil] level three measdrements are valuations nol based on solely observable market data (that is, the
measurement requires significant unobservable inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are
desmed fo have occurred at the end of the reporting period. Refer to Moba 34,

Financial Instruments — inftial recognition. Financial nstruments at FYTPL are initially recorded at fai value,
All odher financial Instruments are Initially recorded at fair value adjusted for transaclion costa, Fair value at initial
recognition iz best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there
is a difference between fair valse and transacton price which can be evidenced by other observable current
markst fransactions in the same inetrument or by a veluztion technigue whose inpufs includa only data from
obsarvable markats. After tha inttlal recognition, an ECL allowance & recognised for financial assels measured at
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AC and investments in debt instrumeants measured at FYOCI, resulting in an immediate accounting loss.

All purchases and sales of financial assels thal require dalivery within the time frame establishad by regulation or
market convention {"regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is the date on which the
Group commits to dediver a financial asset Al other purchases are recognised when the entity becomes a party
o the confractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets — classification and subsegueni measurement — measurement categories. The Group
classifies financial assets in the following measuremend categories: FYWTPL, FWOG and AC. The cassification
and subseguent measurement of debt flinancial assets depends an (i) the Group's business model for managing
the related assets portfofio and (i) the cash flow characteristics of the assel.

Financial assels — classification and subsegquent measurament — business model. The business model
reflacts how the Group manages the assels in order to genarate cash flows - whather the Group's objective is:
(i) solaly to collact the contractual cash flows from the assste (*hold to cobect contractual cash flows”,) or (i) to
collect both the coniractual cash flows and the cash flows arsing from the sale of assets ["hold 1o coflect
cantraciual cash flows and sell’) or, if neither of {i) and (i) iz applcable, the financial szsets are classified as part
of "other” business modal and measuned at FVTPL

Business moded s determined for a group of assats (on a portfolio level) based on all relevant evidence about the
aclivities that the Group undertakes 1o achieve the ohjective set out for the portfolio available at the date of the
assesament. Factors considered by the Group in determining the business model include the purpose and
composithon of a poriffolio, past experience on how the cash flows for the respective assets ware collected, how
risks are assessed and managed, how the assets’ performance is assessed and how managers are compensaled.

Financial assefs — classification and subseguent measurement — cash flow characteristics, Whare tha
business modal is to hald assets to collect contraciual cash flows or to hold contractual cash flows and sell, the
Group assesses whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest *SPPI%). Financial
aszels with embedded derivalives are considerad in their enfirety when detarmining wheather their cash flows arg
conastent with the SPPI feature, in making this assessment, the Group conziders whether the contractual cash
flows ara corsistent with a basic lending amangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for credit risk, tima
value of money, other basis lending risks and profit margin, The Group &d nof change its business model during
the current and comparative period and did not make any reclassifications.

Where the conirachual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatiity that i inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the financial assel is classified and measured at FVTPL. The SPPI assassment is performed on
initial recognifion of an sseet and it ie not subseguently reassessad,

Financial assets impairment - credif lozs allowanee for ECL. The Group assesses, on a fonsard-looking
basis, the ECL for debl Instrumants measurad at AC and FVOCI and for the exposures ansing from loan
commitments and financial gearantee confracts, The Group measures ECL and recognisas credif loss allowance
at each reporting date. The measuremant of ECL reflects: (i} an unbiased amount is celermined by evaluating a
range of possible oulcomes, (i) ime value of money and (iii) all reasonable and supportable information that s
available without undue cost and effort at the end of each reporting period about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future conditions.

Debt instrumeants measured at AC are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position net of the
allowance for ECL. For loan commitments and financial guarantees, a separate provision for ECL i recognised
as a Aability in the consolidated stalement of financial position.

The Group applias a three stage model for impairment, based on changes in credd quaity since initial recognition.
A financlal instrument that ks nol credit-impalred on initlal recognition 1s classified in Stage 1. Financial assets in
Stage 1 have their ECL messured at an amount equal to the portion of ifetme ECL that resulfts from default
evenis possibie within the next 12 months or until contractual maturity, if shorler (*12 Months EGL"). If the Group
ideniifies a significant increase in credit risk "SICR") since initial recognition, the asset is transferred o Stage 2
and ils ECL is measured based on ECGL on a lifetime basis, that is, up until contractual maturity but considering
expected prepayments, If any ("Lifetime ECL"). Refer fo Note 30 for & description of how the Group determines
when a SICR has occurred. If the Group determines that a financial assel s credit-impaired, the asset is
ransferred to Stage 3 and its ECL is measured az a Lifetime ECL. The Group's definition of credit impaired assels
and definition of default is explained in Note 30. For financial assets that are purchased or originated credit-
impalred "POCI Agsets”), the ECL s abvays measured as a Lifetime ECL. Mole 30 provides information about
inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used inmeasuring ECL, including an explanation of how the Group
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incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL modeatls.

As an excaplion, for certain financial instrumenis, such as credit cards, thal may include both a loan and an
undrawn commiment component, the Group measures expacted credit iosses over the penod that the Group is
exposad to credit risk, that i, until the expecied credit losses would ba mitigated by credil risk management
aclions, even If that period extends beyond the maximum contractual period. This |5 because contractua ability
to demand repayment and cancel he undrawn commitment does not (mit the exposure bo credit losses to such
contractual notice perod,

Financial assets - write-off. Financial assets are writlen-off, in whole or in part. when the Group exhausted all
practical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Tha writa-off
represents a derecognition event. Tha Group has specified cfiteria for writing-off tha unrecoverable balances in
ita loan businass. Write-off friggers may resul! from decisions about no enforcement due to worthlessness of the
claimicollalaral or generally from assesement that the receivable is economically lost,

Financial agseis - derecognition. The Group derscognises financial assets whan (a) the assats are redeemed
or the rights to cash flows from the assals olheresise expired or (b) the Group has transferred the rights to the
cash flows from The financial assetz or entered info & qualifying pass-through arrangemant while (i) also
fransfaming substantially 8 risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (8) neither transferring nor refaining
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, but not retaining cortrol. Control is retained if the counterparty
does not have the praciical ability to sell tha asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party without needing to
impose restricthons on the sale.

Financial Fabilities - measurement categories. Financial liabilites are classified as subsequently measurad at
AC, excapt for (i) financial liabilittes at FVTPL: this classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held
far trading {e.g. shor poaitions in securities), contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
comhbinafion and other financial labilties dosignated as such at initial recognition and (i} financial guaraniee
contracts and loan commitments.

Financial Fabilities - derecognition. Financial kabilibes are derecognised when they are extinguished (.. when
the obligation specified in the contrac! is discharged, cancalled or expires).

An exchange between the Group and its original lenders of debt instruments with subatantially differant tarms, as
well a8 substantial modifications of the terms and conditions of existing financkal labiities, aré accounted for as
an extinguishment of the original finandcal liability and the recognilion of a new financial liability. The tarms are
substantially different If the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
pald net of any fees received and discourtad using the orginal affective interest rate, |s at lrast 10% different
from the discaunted presant value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial lisbility. If an exchange of
dabt instruments or modification of terms is sccountad for as an extinguishment, sy costs or fees incured are
racognised as parl of the galn or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchangs or modification is nol aceounted for
as an exfimguishmient, amy cosis or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liabiliy and are amorisad over
thea rernaining lerm of the modified lability.

Modifications of liabiities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted for as a change in estimate using a
cumulaiive catch up method, with any gain or less recognised in profit or loss, unless the economic substance of
the difference in carrylng values is aliributed o a capital fransaction with owners,

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily convertible o known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value. Cash and cash equivalents
include deposits and all imerbank placements with original maturities of lass than three months, Funds restricted
for & period of more than three months on origination are excluded from cash and cash equivalents. Effective from
1 July 2024, the CBU revised the regulatory framework governing the maintenance of obligatory reserve. Linder
the revised approach, commercial banks of the Republic of Uzbekistan are required to malntain 100% avaraging
of abligatory reserve wilhin thelr correspondent accounts with the Geniral Bank (Note 7), thus from 1 July 2024,
these amounts are considered as part of cash and cash equivalents. Gash and cash equivalents are carried at
amortised cosl.

Due from other banks. Amounts due from olher barks are recorded when the Group advences money 1o
counterparly banks with no intention of trading tha resulting unquoted non-derhative receivable due on fixed or
determinable dates. Amounts due from other banks are caried at amortized cost.
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Invastments in debl securities. Based on the business modal and the cash Mlow charactaristics, the Group
classifies invesiments in debt securities as camied at AC, FVOC! or FVTPL. Debt securities are carried at AC if
they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and whese those cash flows reprasent SPPL and If thay are
not voluntarily designated at FVTPL in ordar to significantly reduce an accounting mismatch,

frrvestments in equity secuties, Financial assets that meet the definition of equity from the isswer's perspective,
e instrumants that do not condain a contractual chligalbon o pay cash amd had evidence a residual interast in
the issuer's net assels, are considersd as investments in aquity securiles by the Group, Invesimenta in equily
securities are massurad at FVTPL. Dividends continue to be recognised in proft or koss when the Group's right
o recalve payrments is established except when they represent a recovery of an investment rather than a return
on such imrestmeant.

Loans and advances to customers. Loans and advancas (e customers ara racorded when the Group advancas
money to purchase or originate an unquoted non-derivative recenable from a cusiomer due on fived or
determinable dates and has no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and advances o customers are carrisd
at amortised cost less ECL.

Repossossed collateral. Repossessed collateral represents financlal and non-linancial assets acquired by the
Group in settiement of overdue loans. The assais are iniially recognisad &t fair value when acquired and included
in premises and equipment, olher financlal assets, investment properties or Inventories within other assels
depending on their nature and the Group's inlention in respect of recovery of these assets, and are subsequently
remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of assets.

Loan commitments. The Group issues commiiments o provide loans. These commitments are irrevocable or
revocable only in response to a material adverse change. Such commilments are initially recognised at thair fair
valug, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amwount iz amortized on a straight line
hasis over tha iife of the commitmant, except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable that the Group
wil enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulling loan shorlly after origination;
such loan commiiment fees are defarred and inCluded in e carrying value of the koan on initial recognition, Al
the end of each reporting penod, the commitments are measurad &t (1) the remaining unamorised balance of the
armnount at initial recognition, plus () the amount of ihe ss allowance determined based on the expected credit
loss model, unless the commilment 15 1o provide a loan at a below market inlerest rate, in which case the
measurament is at the higher of these two amounts. The carrying amount of the loan commitments represents a
liabllity. For contragls that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and whene the Group cannol
separately distinguish the ECL on tha undrawn loan componant from the loan component, the ECL on the undrawn
commitment is recognised together with the loss allowance for the loan, To the extant thal the combined ECLs
excead the grose camying amount of the laan, they are recognized as a liabiliby.

Maote 30 provides information shout npuls, sssumptions and estimation techniques wsed in measuring ECL,
including an explanalion of how the Group iIncorporates forward-looking informaton in the ECL modals

Financial guarantess. Financial guaraniees require the Group to make specilied payments o reimburse the
halder of the guarantee for & loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debl instrument. Financlal guaranteas are Inltially recognised
at their fair value, which s normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amount is amortised on a
stralght-ling basis over the life of the guarantee. At the end of each reporting period, the guarantess are measured
at the higher of (i} the amount of the loss allowance for the guaranteed exposure determined based on the
expected lbss model and (i) the remaining unamorlized balance of the amaount at iniial recognifion. In addition,
an ECL loss allowance s recognised for fees recsivable that are recognisad in the stalement of financial position
as an assel Note 30 provides information aboul inpuls, assumptions and estimation lechnigues used in
measuring ECL, including an explanation of how the Group incorporates forward-looking information in the ECL
models.

Premises and equipment, Premises and equipment are stated &l cosl less accumulated depreciation and
provision for impairmand, where required.

Costs of minor repaira and day-lo-day maintenance are expensed when incurred. Costs of replacing major parts
oF components of premises and equipmant items are capitalised, and the replaced part is refired.

Al the end of each reporling period managemant assesses whelher there s any indication of impairmant  af
premises and equipment. I any such indication exists, management estimates the recovarable amount, which is
detarmined as tha higher of an asset's fair valus less costs 1o sall and its value in usa, The camying amount is
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reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss s recognised in profi o loss for the year, An
Impairmant less recognised for an assel in prior vears iz reversed if there has been a change In the estimates
used to determine the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs 1o sell.

Gains and losses on disposals determinad by companng proceeds with camying amount are recoegnised inm profit
of loss for the year (within other operating income or expenses).

Depreciation. Land and construction in progress ame ot depreciaied. Deprecialion on ofber items of premises
and equipment s caloulated using the straight-ling method o allocate their cosl to thelr residual values over thedr
eatimated wsafd lives:

Usaful lives In years

Buildings T H
Office and compuler eguipment 510
Right-of-use aseals 1-5

The rasidual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Graup would currentty obtain from disposal of tha
assel less the estimaled costs of disposal, if the assef were siready of the age and in the condifion expected af
the end of iks usaful fife, The assets’ rasidual values and useful lives are reviewad, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets. The Group's intangible assets have definite useful lives and primarily comprise capitalised
computer software, Acquired computar software licences are capialised on the basis of the cosis Incurred to
acquire and bring them fo use, All other cosis associated with computer software, e.9. #3 mainienance, are
axpansed whan Incurred. Capitallsed computer software (s amortized on a straighi-ine basis over expecied useful
lives of five yvears.

Capitalization of borrowing costs. Bormowing costs that are direcily atiributable to the acguisition, consiruction
or production of an asset that is not carried at fair value and that recessarily takes a substantial pariod of ime o
gel reacy for Iis niended use or sale (a qualifying asset), form part of the cost of that assel. Other barmowing costs
are recogrised as an axpense using the effective interest method. The Group capitalises borrowing costs that
would have been avoided IT it had nol made capltad expanditure on qualifying assels, The commencement date
for capitalization is when {a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying asset; {b) it incurs borrowing costs;
ard (o) | undertakes aclivitles that are necessary lo prepare the asael for s intended use or zale, Capitalization
ceases when all activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assel for its intended use or sale are complate.

Due to other banks. Amaounts due to other banke are recorded when money or other 2eeeis are advanced to tha
Group by counterpardy banks, The non-derivative labllity Is carried a1 AC, If the Group purchases [is own debt,
the liabdity is removed from the consofidated statement of financial position and the difference between tha
carrying amount of the Hability and the considaration pald & ncluded in galns or losses ansing from retirement of
deht.

Repurchase agreement. The Group's repurchase agreements (referred 10 as “repo”) are the transactions in
which a transferor fransfers a financial asset (fypically a high-guality debi security) to a transfereea in exchange for
cash, The Group, simultaneously, anlers into an agreement fo reacquire the securily on a specified fulure dala
for an amount equal to the cash recelved plus interesl These repo are accounted for as secured borrowings.

Customer accounts. Customer accounis are non-dervative liabdities o individuals, state or corporate customers
and are carried at AC.

Other borrowed funds. Other borrowed funds include bormowings from government and non-govarmnment funds
and financial Institutlons and are carried at AC.

Subordimaied debl Subordinaled debl can only e paid in he evenl of a liquidation after the claims of other
highes priority creditors have been met, Subordinated debt is carried at AC.

Forelgn currency swaps. Foresgn currency swaps are carried al their fair valua.

The Group enters into offsetiing loana with its counterparty banks to exchange curmencies. Such loans, while
legally separate, are aggregated and accountad for as a single derivative firancial nstrument (cufrancy swap) on
a el bass whare () the loans are entered into at the same ime and in contemplation of one anothar, (i) they
heve the same counterparty, (i} they relate to the same risk and (iv) there i no apparent business purpose for
glructuring the transactions separalely that eould not alzo have been accomplished in a single transaction.
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All derivative Instraments are carmied &5 assets when fair value is posifive, and as llabiliies when fair value is
negative, Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are included in profit or loss for the year (geins less
losses on dervatives). The Group does not apply hedge accounting.

fncome faxes. Income 1axes have been provided for in he consolidated financied sEtemants in accordance with
legisiation enacted or substantively enactad by the end of the reporting peried, The ncome tax charge comprises
current tax and deferred tax and is recognised In profil or loss for the year, except if it is recognised n other
comprehensive inoome or directly in equity because it relates 1o transactions thal are also recognised, in the same
ora different period, in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax is recognised on lempaorary differencea between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in tha
conaolidated financial stetemants and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit
Defarred tax Habilties are generally recognised for all taxabla temporsry differances. Delerred tex assets are
generally recognised for all deductible lamporany differences (o the axtent that |t iz probable ihat taxable profits
will ba available agalnst which those deductible temporary difierences can be utilised.

The carying amount of deferrad tax assels s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profils will be available to allow all or part of the assetto
be recovenad.

Share capital. Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discrefionary dividends are both
classified as equily. Incremental cosis directly atiributable lo the lssue of new shares are shown in equily 85 a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of considaration racelved over the par value
of shares issuad is recorded as shane pramium in equity.

Preference shares which carry a mandatory coupon or are redeemable on a specific date or at the option of the
sharehodder are classified as financial liabilities and are presented in other borrowad funds, The dividends on
these preference sheres are recognised as interas! expensa on an AC bass, using the effective interest method,

interest income and expense recogmition. Interest income and expense are recorded for &l debt Instuments
o an accrual basks using the effective interest mathod, This method defers, as part of interest imcome or expense,
all fees pakd or received between the parties 1o the contract thal are an mtegral par of the effective inlerest rale,
transaction costs and all oflver premiums or discounta. Intereat income on laase raceivables caloulated at nominal
interest rate s presented within 'other similar income” line In profit or lbse,

Feas iMegral 1o the affective intersat rate include origination fees recalved or pald by the entity ralating to the
creafion or acquisition of a financial assel or ssuance of a financial liakilily, for example faes for evaluating
eradibworthinass, evaluating and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the Instrument and
for processing transaction documeants, Commitment fees recelred by the Group to originate loans at market
interest rales are integral to the effective interest raje f il s probable thal the Group will enter Into a specific
lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination.

Fee and commission income. Fee and commission income is recognised over fime on a straight-line basis as
the services are rendered, when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group's performance. Such income includes recurring fees for account mainienance, account sanvicing fees,
account subscription fees. Variable fees are recognisad only to the extant that management datermines that it is
haghly probable thal a significant revarsal will not oecur.

Dither fes and commission incomea s recognised at a point in time when the Group satisfies its performance
obligation, usuglly upon execution of the underlying transaction. Tha amoun! of fea or commission recelved or
receivable rapresents the ransaction phce for the services ientified as distinct performeance obligations.

Such income inciudes purchase of foreign cumencies on behalf of a customer, fees for processing payment
transactons, fees for cash settlements, collection or cash disbursements. Loan syndication fees are recognised
as Income wien the syndication has been completed and the Group retains no part of the loan package for itself,
or refains a parl al the same effective interest rate as for the other participants.

Eales and purchases of foreign currencies and currency conversion. The Group sells and purchases foraign
currencies in the cash offices and through the bank accounts, as well as exchanges foreign curencies. The
transactions are parformed al the exchange rates established by the Group, which are diffarent fram the official
epot exchange rates at the particular dates.
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Tha differences betwaen the official rates and Group rates are recognised as gaing less losses from trading in
foreign cumencies at a point in time when a particular performance obligation is satisfied.

Forelgn currency translation. The functional currency of each of the Group's consolidated entities is Lhe
currency of the primary economic emvironment in which the entity operales. The functional currency of the Bank
and iis subsidiaries, and the Group's praseniation currency, s the national currency of Republic of Uzbekistan
(“UZS").

Monetary assets and labilities are ranskated inte each entity's funclional currency af the official exchange rate of
ihe Central Bank of Uzbekistan at the end of the respective reporting period. Forelgn exchange gaina and loases
resulting from the settlement of ransactions and from the translation of monetary assets and Eabllites into each
enlity's functional currency at year-and official exchange rates of the Central Bank of Uzbekistan, are recognised
in profit or loss for the vear (a6 foreign exchange translation gains less lossas). Translation al year-pnd rates does
not apply to non-monatary items that are measured al historical eost

Mon-maonetary fiems measured 2t fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are transiated
using the exchange ratas at the date whan the fair value was defermined.

Efiects of exchange rale changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
recorded as parl of the fair value gain or loss,

Loans between group enfities and refated foreign exchange gains or losses are eliminated upon consalidation.

At 31 December 2024 the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
UsSD 1 = UZS 1292048 (2023: USD 1 = UZS 12,338.77) and EUR 1 = UZS 13 436.01 (2025:EUR 1 = LLZS
13,731.82).

Offsetting. Financial assets and liabilities are offsat and the nat amoum reported in the consolidated statement
of financial posifion only when there i3 3 legaily enforceable right to offsat the recognised amounts, and nere is
an inention o either setie on @ nat basis, or to realise the asset and seltle he lisbiity simulianeously. Such a
right of set off (a) must nol be contingent on a future event and {b) must be legaily enforceable in all of the following
circumstances: (i) in the normal course of business, (i} the event of default and (i) the event of insolvency or
bankrupiocy.

Earnings per share. Praference shares are not redeemabla, and are considered lo be participating shares.
Earnings por share ate determinad by dividing the prafit or lass aftributable o awners of the Bank by the weighted
average number of parficipating shares aulstanding during the reparting year,

Staff costs and related contributions. Wages, salarles, contribufions to the Republic of Uzbekistan state
pensian and social nsurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonusas, and non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which tha associated services are rendered by employees. The Group has no legal or
consiructive abgation to make pension or similar benefit payments beyond the payments to the statutory defined
cantribution scheame,

Segment reporting. Segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reperting provided to the
Group's chief operating decision maker. Segments whosa revanue, resuft or assets are ten percent or more of all
the segments are reporied separataly,
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4 Critical Accounting Extimates, and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policias

Tha Group makas astimates and assumptions hat affect the amounis recogniged In the consolidated financial
statements, and the carrying amourts of assels and Fabilites within he nexi financial yaar. Eslimates and
judgements are continually evalualed and are based on management's experience and other factors, including
expecialtions of fulure events thal are belleved 1o be reasonable under the circumsiancas. Management also
makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the sccounting
palicies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised In the consolidated financial
statements and estimates thef can cause & signficant adjustment to the carrving amount of assels and liabdities
within the next financial year include;

Pramises, equipment and right of use assots - bullding in Tashkent City. During 2024, the government of
Lizbekistan issued a resolution mandating the sake of a bullding owned by the Bank located in Tashkent City (the
“Tashken! City Building') with the carmying value of UZS 2,525,043 million as at 31 December 2024. Whila the
Bank initially acknowledged this mandate, the Managament's intentions ragarding the Tashkent City Buliding have
bacome uncarain as of the reporting date. Following the sale of a bullding located in IT Park that the Bank used
for operations of its Head office as disclosed in Mole 14, the Management has relocated its operations nto the
Tashkant City Building subsequant to the reporting date. Consequenty, the Management i aclively engaged in
discussions with the government regerding a pofential change in the mandated use of this bullding or a
modification (o the rasalution requliring its sale. Given the significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate disposition
of the asset (full or partial sale versus full or partial owner-occupation) and ongoing government discussions, the
bullding does nol meet the criteria for classification as a non-currend asset held for sale as at 31 December 2024,
In addition, as at tha raporting date, the construction of the Tashkent City Building was still in progress and the
Management had nol carried out a professional valuation necessary lo reliably measure fair value less costs to
sell. Considering these ciroumstances inciuding the fact thal the ultimate resolution of this matter s uncertain and
dependent upon the outcome of dscussions with the government, the Tashkent City Building confinues 10 ba
classified within Premises, equipment and right of use assels as Consirection in progress. Management will
reassess the asset's classification, Intended use, and carrying amount n the subsequent periods once tha
discussions with the governmant are concluded and a definitive plan for the Tashkenl Gity Building is approved.

ECL measurement, Measurement of ECLs is a significant estimate that involves determination of methodology,
models and data inputs. Delails of ECL measurement methedology are disclosed in Mote 30. The following
components have a major impact on credit loas allowance: definition of default, SICR, probability of default (“PD"),
axposune at defaull ("EAD"), and logs given default ("LGD"), e well as models of macro-economic scenarios. Tha
Group regularly reviews and validates the models and nputs o the modals to reducs any difarences betwaeen
expacted credit loss estimates and actual credit loss exparience,

The Management analyzaed forward looking nformation and assessed that effect of macro was not significant as
at 31 December 2024 and 2023, The Management updates its staticstical tests for correlafion as at each reporting
data.

& 10% incraase {or decrease) in PD estimates at 31 December 2024 would result in an increase (or decrease) in
total expected credit loss allowances of UZS 9,554 million {at 31 December 2023: UZS 9,424 million). A 10%
increase (or decrease) in LGD estimates at 31 December 2024 would result in an increase (or decrease) in total
expected credit loss allowances of UZS 28,214 million (&t 31 Dacambar 2023: UZS 14,078 millan).

Significant increase in crooit risk (“SICR"). In order to detarmina whether thare has baen a significant incraase
in credit risk, the Group comparas the risk of a defaull cccurring over the |ife of a financial instrument at the end
of the reporting date with the risk of default at the date of initial recognifion, The assessmant considers ralathva
increase in credit sk rather than achiewing a specific kevel of credit risk at the end of the reporting pariod. The
Group considers &l reasonable and supportable forward looking information avaifable without undue cost and
affarl, whiich includes a range of faciors, Including behavioural aspects of parikcular customer portfolios. The Group
dentifles behaviourd hdicators of Increases In credit risk prior o definguency and incorporated appropeialbe
forward looking information info the credit risk assesament, either al an Individual instrument, or on & portfolio
level, Refer to Note 30 for further detalls.

Should ECL on all loans and advances lo cusiomers be measuwred at [Hetime ECL (that is, including those that
ara currently in Stage 1 measwed at 12-months ECL), the expectod cradil loss allowance would ba higher by
UZS 408,166 million as of 31 Decamber 2024 (31 December 2023: higher by UZS 101,109 millicn}.

Starting 1 January 2024, the Managemant of the Group has updated the Methodology for assessment of financial
assets for expected credit losses in accordance with IFRS 8 ("Methodology™). These updates incleds introduction
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of additional qualiiative criteria and certain methodaological calibrations in determination of koan's quality and
estimation of PD, LGD and macroeconondc model, which are disclosed in "Risk Management™ (Note 30}, The
cafibration of the Methodofogy is considerad as a change in accounting estimate in line with |1AS & Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Should the previous methodology have been appled, ha
ECL provision woukd have been higher by UZS 112,863 million as at 31 December 2024,

Fair value of derlvatives and certaln other instruments, Information about fair values of instruments thal were
valued using assumptions that are nol based on observable market data is disclosed in Nole 34,

Other borrowed funds, The Group oblains long term linancing from government, state and intermational financial
institutions al inlerast rates at which such insfitutiors ordinarily lend in emerging markets and which may be kwear
than rates at which the Group could source the funds from local lenders. As a result of this financing, the Group
iz able to advance funds to epecific customers at advantagaous rates, Managemant has considerad whather gains
or losses sheuld arise on inilial recognition of these instruments and its judgement is that theee funds and the
refated lending are at the market rates and no initisl recognition gaine or lossas should arise. In making this
judgemeant management also considerad that thase instrumenis are a separate market secior

Tax legisiation. Uzbekistan tax, curreancy and cusloms kegislation is sublect to vanving interpretations. Refer to
Mote 26

B Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

Mew and amendad IFRS Accounting Standards that are effectve for the current year.
The following amendments and interpretations are effeclive for the Group effective 1 January 2024:

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities 1 January 2024
&t Current and Non-Curranl

Amendments to 1AS 1 Mon-current Liabdities 1 January 2024
with Covanants

Amendments o IFRS 16 Leases—Lease 1 Janiary 2024

Liability in & Sale and Leaseback

The above standards and Interpretations were reviewed by the Group’s management. but did not have a
significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group,

- Mew Accounting Pronouncements

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not appiied the following new and revised
IFRS Standards that have been issued but are not vel effective;

Mew or revised standard or Interpretation Applicable to annual reporting periods

beginning on or after
IFRS 15 — Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Siatements 1 January 2027
IFRS 18 — Subsidiarios without Public Accountabilty: Disclosures 1 January 2027
Amendments to IAS 21 — Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2027

The Group & cwrrenty assessing the possible impact of IFRS 18, Undil the Group has completed s review, it is
not possible to make a ressonable estimate of the financial impact,

Tha Group doas not expect thal application of IFRS 18 and the amandments to IFRS 21 will have a matesial
impact on the Group's consoldated financial statemeants.

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents
11 Deceamber 31 Decamber

In milfians of Uzbakisdan Sooams 2024 2023
Caash balances with the CBU (other than mandatory resaries Mobe B) 1,512,260 16,272
Correspondent accounts and ovemighl placemants with olher banks BET, 083 333,863
Cash on hand 510,025 427,420
Plasamants with olhar hanks with original maludty of lese then thies months 35 T4 -
Less credi boas allowanca L (20} {B6,254)
Total cash and cash aguivalents 2,615,062 14T 4,301
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The lable below discloses the credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances basad on cradit risk grades at

31 Decembear 2024,

Cash balances  Correspondent  Placements with
with the CBU accounts and  other banks with
owvarnlght  original matuwrity Total
placemants of lege than
with other thirea months
I mitons of Uzbekistan Soumns banks iz
- BBB- to Ads+ rated - 64,231 - 64,2
- BB- io BB+ rated 1,512,260 472 800 25704 2,010,844
= B- In B+ rated = 20,052 10,000 20,052
Less cradt lss allowance [45) (32} {13) (a0)
Total cash and cash equlvakents,
sxcluding cash on hand 1,512,205 BE7 051 agvad 2,105,037
The credil quality of cash and cash eguivalenis balances at 31 Dacember 2023, was as follows:
Cash balances  Cormespondent Placerments with
with the CBU accounts and other banks with
overnight criginal maturity of Total
placements less than
with ather three months
in miions of Lizbekistan Souwms banks
- BEB- bo AlA rabed - 54,214 54,213
- BB- to BE+ ratad 1827k 218,055 - 937,337
- B- o B+ rated = 5,664 5B, 560
Unrgted - 2026 3,026
Less credit loss allowance [(3.911) {2,343 {6,254)
Total cash and cash aguivalants,
excluding cash on hand 715361 331,520 - 1,046,881

The corespondant accounts and overnight placements with no available credit quality, Le., unrated were rated

by “C" by the Group for the financlal reporiing purposes,

The country rating was applied for the cash balences with CBL. The credit rating ks based on tha rating agency
Standard & Poor's (if available) or the rating agencies Moody's and Fitch, which are converted to the nearest
equivakent value in Standard & Poor's rating scale. For the purpose of ECL measurement cash and cash
equivalents balances are Included in Stage 1. Refar to Note 30 for the ECL measurernent approach. Interes! rate
analysis of cash and cash equivalents is disclosed In Mote 30, Information on related party balances is disclosed

in Note 35,

The following tables explain the changes in the credit loss allowance end gross camying amount af cash and
cash equivalents bebween the beginning and tha end of the annual period due o these faciors:

Cradit loss Gross camying
In militons of Uizhaklstan Soums allowance (Staged) amont {Staget)
At 1 January 2024 (8,254) 1,480,555
Menw originated or purchasod {322 1,461,217
Derecogmsed during the parod B ARE [Ei,104)
Foraign sxchange Fanslation and afher movemanls - 53,489
At 31 December 2024 {80} 2,615,152

Crodit logs Grose carrying
In mitfiens of Lerbakiztan Sourms allowance ai amouni 1
At 1 January 2023 i3, 748) 3,057 873
Hew originated or purchasod (6254 18,743
Deresognisad during the pardod 3.748 (1,663,005)
Forgign sxchangs ranslation and sihier movemants - 5,034
At 31 Docember 2023 {6.254} 1,480,555
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B Due from Other Banks
H December I December

fn mittiors of Uzbekistan Soivns 2024 2023
Placaments with othar banks wilh Griginal maturities of mora than

thress months 166,111 238407
Shorl torm loans to ofbar banks - 156,054
hMandatory reaanses with CBU = 84,085
Socurity deposit 55,624 70,382
Less credil loss allowance (4.181) (4,822}
Totel due from other banks 217,554 55,816

Effective 1 July 2024, the GBL has implemented a revised framework allowing 100% of the mandalory reserves
to ba maintained in the Bank's correspondent account with the CBU under an averaging mechanism which permits
daily balance flucluations provided the average meets regulatory thresholds. Under the previous rules, the
commercial banks were required to hold only 80% of the mandartory resenves within their cormespondent accounts
with the CBL), while the remaining 20% was hald in a spacifically designated sccount within the CBU, which was
unavallable for use in ordinary operating activities of the Bank.

Securily deposit represents cash collateral for oparations with intemational payment systems (VISA, Union pay,
Mastercard and athar)y and fully provided legacy balances with Russian banks in the amount of LZS 3,147 million
{2023: WZS 3,678 milllon), that weare disconnecied from SWIFT during 2022,

The table below discloses the credit gquality of dus from banks balances based on credit risk grades al
H December 2024.

Mandatory cash Flacemants with Soournity Tatal

In milliars of Uizbedistan Soums balansas with CBU ather hanks deposit
= BBE- [0 AlA raked = - g2,ava 52,378
= BB- to BB+ rofsd = 06, 452 55 Qe 507
- B- to B+ rated . HO.E50 50 68,708
Linratesd = - 3,141 3,141
_Leas credl loas allowance - [1,025) (3,156} {4,181)
Total due from other banks . 165,086 52 468 217,584

Tha restricted cash with no available credit quality ie,, unrated were rated "C" by the Group for the financial
raporting purposes.

Analysis by credit quality of amounts due from ofher banks outstanding 2t 31 Dacember 2023, i5 as folows!

Mandatory cash Placements  Shorl Term Securlly

balances with CBU wilth othar Loans Ta doposit Total

fn mithoris of Uzbekistan Sourmi banks Other Banks
- BEB- to AAA+ radad - - - 8,704 84,70
- BB- to BB+ rated 84,085 108,801 156,864 &5 159,805
- B~ to B+ rated . 230,500 . By 230,656
= G-t COC+ rated = = A= 3,573 3,573
_Less credil loss allowanca (612 [3,008) [B53} [3448) (4.922)
Total due from other banks 93,573 336,300 156.011 69,833 655,816

The country rating was applied for the balances with CELL The credit rating ks based on the rating agency Standard
& Poor's (if avallable) or the rating agencies Moody's and Filch, which are convertad to the nearest equlvalent
value in Standard & Poor's rating scale.

The following tables explain the changes In the credit loss allowance of due from ofher banks between the
beginning and the end of the annual period:
Credil loss Gross carmying

allowance (Stage1) amount {Staget)

At 1 January 2024 {4,922) G60,T38
Mew originated or purchased [2,572) 75,750
Deracognised during the perod 313 (535,440}
Forsign axchange franskation and other mevemanta = 201556
At 31 Deceamber 2024 4,181} 221,736
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Notes fo the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Credit loss Groes carrying
allowance (Stage armaunt 1
At 1. danuary 2023 (2,402) 333,547
Mew ariginated or purchiasesd 4,822} S, 250
Darecognizad duning the perod 2402 (806, 101)
Forsign axchanga translation and other movamants - 25,042
At 31 December 2023 {4,822 660,738
. Loans and Advances to Cuslomers
31 December 31 December
I mitlions of Uzbekistan Souwns 4 2024 N
Gross lnans and advances io cusiemars 13,4685 306 10,644 821
Less cradil kess allowamos (423 3RH) {156,234}
Total lpans and advences b0 customears 13,041,818 10,485 387

Gross carrying amount and credit loss allowance amount for loans and advances to customers at AC by classes
al 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are disclosed in the table below:
31 December 2024

Gross camyl Cradit loss

in mitions of Uzbestan Soums .Jl""ﬁ‘! allowance C¥TYING amount

Lovans ang advances o oorporale cusiomes

Large loans B.644 GOG (2T 728 8,372,940

Micm loans 86,973 [AGTY 96515

Loans (o indivioum's

Car loans 2311145 (122,651) 2,160,494

Ratail modgaga 1,066,728 {7,126} 1,058 801

Consumer lnans B33,437 {13,471} B19 09686
_Agro and micro retall 513,337 {8,058) 505279

Total loans and advances bo customers 13,465,308 (423, 388) 13,044,918

41 Decernber 2023
Gross camryin Cradit loas

In miltions of Uzbedkistsn Soums smioxing allowance ConYIng Smount

Loans snd advances io conporata customers

Large loans T2237979 (122 887} 7.100 23

ki loans 21,705 [204) 21,501

Loans o indindualz

Car lcana 1,708,534 {8,169 1,700,365

Congismar boans T2 046 {8,57E) GE4 370

Ratail mongage iGEZ 840 {@,082) Bre 848
_Agre and micro retail . 727 ﬂ:’!j‘_ﬂ] ___i:aﬁl.lﬂ

Total loans and advances to customens 10,641,621 ([ 158,234) 10,485 387

More detalled explanation of classes of loans s provided below:

# Large loans — loans issued fo commercial enfities under the standard ferms, mainly for working capiial
financing and for capital expenditunes, Loans are considered to be large, if gross loan amount is highear than
UZS 150 million as at reportng date.

= Micro loans — all loang, which are not classified as large loans, issued to legal entities. These loans are
provided Tor working capital financing and for capital expendiures,

Car loans — loans [ssued ta indiveduats for purchase of automobiles,

= Consumer [oans — kpans issued to individuals for purchase of consumer products and all othear koans isswed
to individuaks other [han those axplained abova.

Fetail Morigage — loans issued o individuals for purchase of real estate or propearty;
Agro and micro retal — loans issued to individuals and private enfreprensurs as micro loans,
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The follmeing tabde discloses the changes in the credit loss allowance and gross carmying amount for keang and advances o astomens carfed al amortised cost between the beginning
end the end of the reporting period

Credit loss allowance CGross carrying amousit
Staga i Stage 2 Stage 3 EBtage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
{[12-monthe m {'"'::" EiL oWl amonths  (ifstime ECL "L'HI.:'“ ot To!
; ECL) scintih ECL) For SICR) i
_In miliang of Lizbedesion Soums SICR) irnpairgd) I parasel
Large foans
At 1 January 2024 28,737 AT.TT6 45 376 122,087 4. TO5,454 1,040,724 608,501 T.223,7Tra
Movermants with impec! o crecl bes alowancs
chavpe for e padad:
Transdara
« to lifalime (from Stage 1 io Stage Z) 13,128 a12e = . [l v 450975 . "
= to gredit-impaired (from Stage 1amd Sage 2 o
Stage 3] {1.403) {T.5TE) a7 - (191 588) {4048, 214) A6, 809 -
= Irom Slage 3 o Stags 2 ard Siage 1 4,128 4,500 (8,628) = 21,783 Tra1a {0056 =
Mesy orjgicated o purchased z 35,267 E . .mT 4 053,073 - - 4 053,072
Derecogrized during the period (8.17H [2.960) [29.478) (41617)  (1.48B213) {103,418 (434,870 {2,028 501)
Changes in gross valee of financial assets . - . . (520,114} {323,304) 02 (842, 708)
Chanpes o ECL measuremeant madel
azgunplors ard othar moavernants” [29.438] 7,008 104, 537 172,145 - - - -
Changas In scorneed interast JE3 311 16,380 17,68 S2.035 16,825 o014 124,574
Total movemants with impast en credit loss {3.405) 4,500 181,799 182,854 1,466,953 (277,363 118,848 1,308,440
allowance charge for the pariod
Movanants wilhout impact an onedi’ ioes
Silsnance Shae far fa paviod
Wviriteoffs . r (32.8717] | 34,87E) - ' {24.872) (24,872}
FE amd ofar mevemants T 158 R BT 108E 06 AT 24T 12,095 147,330
AE 3 Dacamber 2034 26,441 53,433 192,282 I T2E 6,240,473 1,508 504 TO5, 204 8,644 BE2E

* The line “Changes to ECL measuremenl model assumplions and ofher mowermants” undar columng relaled lo Cred® Loss Allowance represens changpas in sk paramelers (PD, LG0}, changes in EAD and
adfjusimenl of ECL dus o tranafer b new stapes, as well & transfers of ECL on new kcans onginaed during the neporting penod from Stape 110 oiher siages. Deé io cumen echrical irsaions be Group
presentsd changes in EAD and rsk parameters in one fine. The infoamation on fransfers abeee reflects the migration of lnans fram their initlal staga (or the stape s af the beginning of the raporting date) o the
simge fhey wans in e al raporting data, This nfomsion doeg. ol reflact e intamedisie ataps sl e leens could be sasigned b throughout the reporting perod.
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Cradit loss allowance Gross carmying amount
Stage 1 Stage 2 Staga 3 T Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Toted
{12-months {lifetime ECL {Iatima ECL fior {12-moaths {lifetime ECL fifelime ECL for
in mit¥ons of Uzbokistan Saums ECL} For SICR) cradit impaired) ECL) for SICR) eredit impaired)
Micro loens
Af 1 Janunry 2024 440 . 154 204 20 583 - E12 21,785
Mersamanta v impact an onedlf lbes
alowance chams for the penod:
Transfers
-t lifeSime (from Stage 1 io Stage 2 - . - - (50 &0 - .
-tz creditdmpained {from Stags 1 and Stape 2
o Stage 3) - . - - . - . -
- from Stage 1 o Staga 3 and Staga 1 - 2 - = - x - i
Mew originated or punchased x24 - = 24 HA 6T . = B4 BTO
Damarngrised during the period {44} . (154 [108) {8,518} . {#12) (7,330}
in gross walue of linencial azzels - - - . 13,143) 135 a1 [ 162)
Changes o ECL measurement mads|
assumpiors ard ollver movements® [145) -3 TEG B4R - . - -
Changes in aconeed s 2 = I 8 T2 B 13 L3l
Tatal movemants with impast en credt 137 [ 842 TE4 74,888 181 [ TEE00
loss allgwance charge for the pariod
Mirvarmants withow kmpad on cnedif fnss
aioaancs chams or the penoa;
Wiribe-0ffs 1 = {731} a1 = s (721} 721
F ainid qﬂ\-ﬂf__rﬂuvumantu e - " = _E - x
At 31 Decomber 2024 mn 5 8 357 96,629 181 153 26,372

* The line ‘Changes o ECL measuramant modsd assumptions and other mavements” under columns refated to Credit Loss Allowarce rapresants changes in risk paramesens (FD, LG0) changes In EALD and
adjustment of ECL dus 1o ¥anstar [0 new stages, as well as transfers of ECL on new lvans onginabed during fve reporting period from Stage 1 e offvir stages. Due to oument techrical limitatiors tha Group
presented changes in EAD and risk paramietors in one Gne. Tha information on ransfons abowe refects The rmigration of inans from their initial stage (or ®he slage 85 at the bagiming of the reparfing dale) o the
stapgs Mey wara In as at reporting cate. This information doas not refiect fie intermediate stage that the koans could be assigned to throughout the repering pesied.
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H-n{ﬂ.t!i_:l the Conzolidated Financial Statemeants - 31 December 2024

Credit loss allowance Gross garmying amount
Stags 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 i Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 3 v
(1Z-manthe  [ilstma ECL {iifatime ECL for {1monthe  (Hetime ECL  (lifetime ECL for

fn millions of Urbekistan Soums ECL}) far SICR] credit impained) ECL) far SBICK) credil impained)
Car foams
Al 1 January 2024 4,845 T 2,833 2,168 1.684. 782 14,831 BB 1,708,538
Morwarrsarids willi PGt an credt inas

afcamnce chame Br e aensd
Transfers:
- b [fedme (fom Stage 1 1o Siega 2] 187 BT - (19, 004) 14,048
- b0 credit-impaired (from Stege 1 end Siage 2

Ly Skapa 3y (221 {187 SH - (31,549 (#1748) 3E02d .
- from Staga 3 1o Slage 2 and Stage 1 533 95 (33 1,823 28 {108} -
Bew criginated of purchassd 10E83T - - 12,837 1,204,678 % 3 1,254,376
Darecognisad during the period JEKT) {1813 11,E93] [2.E677) (308, 938 {3.584) 5,104} (318,528
Changes in gross walue of financlal essals - . . - {616,472} A5,481 H04.524 (378, 487T)
Changes to ECL measurament model

SEsuMmpions and ofer movemenis” [104,144) 3,127 118271 1T, 55 = = - .
Changes in accrued inleresd 4 12 2184 10,847 3060 33,855 AT TR
Total movements with rpast on credit (1.E7E)} 2553 118,537 118,614 200,240 50.118 267,385 0T, T

loss alfowance charge for the paricd
Movamants withoul impact an creddt IDes

alowance chsrge for e pedod
Whiter-offs 3 - {5,132} (5,132) - - 15.132) (5.132)
FX and gher movements = - = . . . £ u
At 31 Dacember 2024 2,668 3.654 116,328 122 551 1,875,622 63,080 271,074 Z.311,145

* Tha line “Changes to ECL measurement model assumptions and ofher movermsnis” unter columns ralsted io Credh Loss Allowance rapresents chanpes in dsk parameters (PO, LG, changes in EAD amd
scfjustmant of ECL dus o Uandfer o nerw stages, a5 well as transfers of ECL on new loans ordginated during the reporfing periad from Siage 1 1o ether siages. Dise to curent technical imitations the Group
presentad shanges in EAD and sk parameters in one line. The information on transdars abowe reflacts the migration of loans from their inifial stage (or the stage &5 81 the beginning of tha reporing dabe) o the
slage they were in & af reporting date. This nformation does nod raflect the intarmediabe stage that the loans could be assoned to throwghout the neparing perfod.
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Gredit loss allowance Gross carmying amouni
Stage 1 Staps 2 Stage 3 " Stags 1 Stage 2  Stage 3
{fd-months  |lifetime ECL {ifatime BEEL for (12.months  (lifatime ECL {lifetime ECL for e

In miftons of Lizhekistan Ssurs ECL} for SICR) crodil imipaired) ECL} for SICR] eredit impained]
Retail morigage
AL 1 January 2024 4723 873 4,387 0,592 B5T. 865 11.807 11288 ERZ 240
Moverments wilf impact on credt doss

aitwance chame for the pevioa:
Transfers:
= b tifetime {from Stage 1 io Stege 2) {120} 120 - - {7.07%) o
- to crod-impoired (from Stage 1 and Siage 2

o Skaps 3| 23] {107} 128 - 15,550 (1,183 3,743 -

- from Blage 3 bo Stage 2'and Stege 1 2032 627 (2 BEH 5 5,704 10847 (7.705) :
MNew origimated or purchesed 14687 - = 1,687 453,228 5 - AR TR
Derecogrizad during the pesicd {51) (165} (1,168 [1.578) {29, TES) (1,638 [3.734) (35, 158)
Chanpes In gross valus of findncal assets - - - - (36,232 [5.885) 1,534 [40,783)
Changas o ECL measurement madel

assumpfons and cfhar movemenls” {4.408) (143) 273 {1.B17) 3 : = -
Changes in accrued Inerest . ;] . 69 ar 6, GAG a5 141 B
Total movements with impact on credit (1,054 1 (1] {1.612) 363,066 e (6,211} 384,142

kzss allowancs charge for the period
Movements withouf impact o creol! loss

afowanos charge fov e periog,
Wirite-ofle - - {1,255] (1:233) = . {1,235} 11,255)
FX and allher movamants = = % - H 5 = -
Af 31 Decambar 2024 3,668 1,214 2,243 T.i2s 1,047 831 12,005 3182 1,065,728

* The line "Changas in ECL measuremant madel assumptions and aiher movements” under colurmns ralated to Srodil Leds Allewancs reprasets changes in sk paramaters (PR, LODY, changss n EAD and
adpustment of ECL due to fransfer o new stages, as well 35 franafers of ECL on new loans. onginated during the reporting perisd Eom Slage 1 o other stages. Due 10 cument techrical mitifons the Group
presentes changes i EAD and fisk parameters n one lina. Tha informalion an transfers above reflacts the migretion of loans: fom their nitial s5age (or the stage a: 81 the beginning of the reporting data) i the
Flage ey wors in &= at reporing date. This Infoimation doss nol reflect the miemediate stage hiat ihe loans coud be sssgned o thoughout the repanting pariod.
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Credil losa allowsnca Gross carmying semaouni
Singa 1 Stape 3 Stage 3 Total Staga 1 Stage 3 Stage 3 Total
{12-monthe  [ifotime ECL {|Ffatima ECL for {12-months  (lifetima ECL {lifatirme ECL for

In millans of Lizsalistan Soums ECL) for SICR) credil impaired] ECL) for SICR] credit impalred)
GConsinmer fGans
AL 1 January 2024 2,306 409 4,881 B,5TO BE0,450 T.A27 14,6092 TOZ, 340
Adovernarils will dmpact on ol foas

alcrasince chane far fe pannd
Transfors:
- b lifefime {from Staga 1 to Stege 2] (2] 44 - - {5586 5,686 - -
- o creditimpaired {from Stege 1 end Stage 2

b Skaga 3) f14a) (111} 280 {11,384) [2.088) 13,492 -
- froem Stage 3 to Siage 2 and Stage 1 1665 246 412) gz T4B {1,280 .
e omginaled or purchassd 5,572 s . §.5T2 470,160 N . 4T0,160
Berscognised during the period (e ) (195} {3,887} 14,763) {123,507 (3,780} 111.587) (143,974}
Changes in gross velue of inancial sesals - - - - {316 538) 7.565 12,545 [186,129)
Changes o ECL measuramant modsl

srsumptions and clher movemenis” (5.700) b 12,331 13,301 = . = :
Changes in acorued inisrest ] X 20 af 12,928 T4 2,035 15,345
Todal movamends wilh impact en coacl (BZE) 263 15,387 14,208 115,902 2,008 15,3505 440,402

k= allowance charge for the pariod
Movements without impeet oo credl loss

alfowance charge for the periog:
Wirte-offs - - {2811} i0,011) - - @811} {3,211}
FX and oflser movameants - F F = . - .- =
Al 31 Decesmbar 2024 1,4E8 ] 10,332 13471 TRE. 442 16,732 0,763 BI3437

* The e “Changes o ECL messuremant model sssumptions asd ather movements” undes columns relabad to Credil Loz Allawarss reprasants changes in fsk parameters (PO, LGD), changes in EAD and
adjustment of ECL due fo transier lo new stages., a5 well as transfers of ECL on new loans ofgirated during the: reparting pericd from Slage 1 fo other stages, Due o curent fechnical limbtatons the Group
prasanted changes in EAD and riak paramatars in one line, The Infamasan on rerefers abovs reflscts e migrstion of laans froen Beir initied staae (or the staoes ag at the bagineving of the reparting dals) ia the
stage thay wens In as &t reporting date. Thia information does not reflect the intermadials stage that the loans couid be assigned o thesughout the reporting period.
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Credit loss allowance Gross carrying amaunl
Srage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 e Stape 1 Stape 2 Stage 3 Takal
{12-menths {Nifetime ECL {lifetime ECL for [12-months (lifetimne ECL {lifetima ECL for
I mftans of Lirbaiistan Soums ECL) for SICR] eredit impalrad) ECL) for SICR) eredit impaired)
Agro and micro retail
A1 January 2024 264 183 BEG g l-] 85005 4129 2,853 301,727
Mevements with impec! on credl oss
aflowarnes cfarge for he paroa
Transiars:
= 1o ifetime (from Stage 1 b Sage 2} i) 44 - . {2440} 2840 - *
- to ereditimpaired (fom Stags 1and Siage 2
i Slage 3) {2y (8} 180 . {4,024} (411) 2435 =
- from Stage 3 o Stage 2 and Stage 1 £ 2 F 2 s 3 ! .
Mew origisated or purchased 6088 . - 5,058 366 383 P s 356 383
Derecagrisad during e period (rat) Lih (4g1] {1.336) {37480 (1,475} 17,445 (46873
Chanpes in pross vales of financial asgets - - - - [ *D0.632) (454 1,549 [=8.484)
Changes o ECL megsurameant madel
assumptons and ather mawemants 14.534) 35 Ba4T {041 - - . .
_Changss in eocnesd nteoast L 7 12 278 2,08 166 ki) XAk
Total movemants with impact on credit (338) 267 3134 anes 207,595 15z 5,086 b i)
logs allowsnce chargs for the perlod
Movemernts witfou bmpanc on cradf o
afgamnce chame for e peviod,
Wirite—alts . : {1,323} {1,323 = . {1,323} {1,323
FiX and other movemankz - . - . = 3 : 3
Al 31 Degamber 2024 4,828 450 4,670 &, I58 502,600 4,389 B ARE 13,337

* The Ena Thangas io ECL mesasramant model sasumplions and sther movements”™ under calumns ralated to Credit Loss Alowancs réprasents changes in fek parametans (PO, LGDG changes in EAD amd
adjustment of ECL due fo Fansler 1o néw slages. &5 wall as transfers of ECL on new loans. orginated dusirg the reporting peried fom Stage 1 o cther siages. Due o curant ischnicel lmitatons e Group
presenisd changes in EAD and risk paramebsrs in ane line, The informetion on trensfers above reflects the migrstion of loans from their initial stage [or the stane a5 al Bie baginning of the reporing dale) 1 the
stage they were in as &l reparling dale. This informmstion does not reflect the Inlemmediste stage that the loans could ba assignes i throughaut the reporting period.
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Crodi loss allowamcn Gross carmying amount
Stape 1 Sapa 7 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 1

{12-months  (Hifetime ECL W'Ef"' EcL A {12-monthe  [Iifetime ECL for ':'“"':f“'::ﬂ o
s riiorss & Llsbadkisdors 5 ECL) for SICR) ; ""I"'“‘!.I ECL) SICR) impaired]
Lange loans
At 1 January 2023 33523 23,235 48 33T 103,085 5,378,238 818 506 E0E 005 7. 182 750
Mivamants with (mpact an credit ines
allowance Gharg for the period:
Traresfers:
= bo etime {from Stage 1 1o Slage 2) (23,873 38T [ + [1:.242,335) 1.2423355 - -
= b eradit-mpaired
[fram Stage 1and Slage 3 o Stage 3) (1E8.964) (30185 21,8978 . (186,073 {180,594) ATEBGET
- fraen Slape 3 bo Sdape 2 and Stage 1 T T4 {7,831} . 2] 421501 47T 24 .
hew criginaied or purchased 10804 - - 10,208 1,797 4523 - - 1,797 623
Derecogrised dwing the paniod (3440 [T.565) {5,730} [16.735) (9 .5682) (B8, 756 1545, 646) [T2E.054)
Chamges in gross value of fnancsl sseets . . . . (a2, B (523,827 {15,007 {1,187, 350)
Changas o ECL measursmeant madel
asmimptions and oiher movemenis 40,760 (8,628 108,840 136,772 - : = =
Changas in aconsad imberast 214 234 (774} T2 22067 40101 19.47H] 532
Total movements with impact on credit loss i4.081) 21,505 113,434 131,318 {762,641) 239,850 (181,286 :%%
allowance chargs for the pariod
framarids wilfau impec on el ioss
Wiibeafis - - (117,759} (117,759) - - (117,754} (117,758}
F¥ and ather movesnents 1,275 3645 1.313 6,233 143856 32 368 106481 192 865
At 3 December 2023 20717 47,775 48378 1X2 587 4,758 484 1,84E 724 643 801 1,223,714

* The: line “Changes o ECL measurement model assumpiions and other mowements™ under columne ralsted to Credit Leoss Allowance represends changes in dek paameters (PO, LGDY), changes in EAD and
acustment of ELA4. disa o ranshar i naw s1apes, &5 wall Ba franshers of ECL on new kaeng oiginated during the reporing period froem Stage 1 10 alher siages. Do 1o cumenl techrical Emitadons the Group
presanied changes m EAD and =k paramaters in ona line. The information on transfers above refizcts the migration of boans fram: their inftial staga {or the staga as at the begnning of the reporting date) o the
slage thay sare in &= at feparting date, Ths nfomation dioes nof rafiacs the infarmediate siapa et the loans could bae sssignad o throwghout the raparing pariod,




Joint - stock commercial "Alogabank™
Notes fo the Cansolidated Financial Statements - 31 Docomber 2024

Cradi loke allowance Grogs Carmying Aot

Staga 1 Stage 3 Stage 3 Totl Biage 1 Stage 2 Stags 3 T
{12months  {lifetima ECL {Iatime ECL for oA {1Zmonths  [ilotima ECL {lifatima ECL for R

in millions of Lizbekision Soumns ECL) for SICR) eradit Irnpaired) ECL) for SICR) eradif impained)
Micro loans

Al January 2023 119 - 412 k3| 19,743 - 4,982 24,703

R sqrtbards willt irapect oo Sradif es

Eivaancs chiange for e penod

Transiers;

- to Betima ifrom Stege 1 to Slage 2) - - - - . - = =

-~ to credit-mpaired

{from Siagea 1 and Siage 2 0 35808 3 - - - = - = - -

- fram Stage 3 o Stage 2 and Stage 1 i F . ; 3 F (e 5

Mew originated or purchased L} . - B3 12 468 = - 12,408

Derecognsad during the period {24) - (276) {300) {4,074} 2 (1,433) {5,507)

Changes in gross valise of inanclal assets - - - - {7.209) - (2.475) 18,.684)

Changas 1o ECL measurement model

AsETElions and Geher movenants” (58] - 1 (0] - -
_Chanigas in scerued inkerest . 3 s e &2 i (238) _ (187}

Total movemants with impact on crodit 4 & (258) [23T) 1.240 . 4,150} (2910}

lo=s allowanoe charge for the period

Movemants withour impact on creal ioes

ellowanca chags for the pesdod;

Wirile-oils ] a a . [ = = -

Fi and other movemenis - - - - - = z X

At 31 December 2023 140 = 1= 204 20,083 = Bz 1,795

* The line "Changes jo ECL measyrement mode] assumnplions and other movermsents” under columns ielabed 1o Credl Losa Allowance represents changes in dak pasmstes [PD, LOD), changss in EAD amd
adjustmen of ECL dis o transfer o new stapes, s well &% Fansfars of ECL on new lcans odginated during the reporting pariod from Stage 1 o other stages, Dus io cument technical limatons the Group
presanbed changes in EAD and rigk péramelers in one Bne The infaemation on transfers abowe reflects the migration of loans fom ther inifial sage (or the sage a5 a8 the beginning of the reporting data) o the
glage they were in 88 al eporting dabe. This Biomation doss not reflect the mbermediate stage thatk the loans could be assigned ta thrughout the reporting period,




Jdaint - stock commereisl “Alogabank™
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staternenis — 31 December 2024

Cradit loss allowanso Gross carrying amauet
Stage 1 Siage 2 Slage 3 Towl Stage 1 Biage 2 Stage 3 Total
{12-manths {lifstirme ECL (lifatima ECL for 1 3-mianhe. {ifatima ECL [lifatima ECL for

In milans of Lirbainatan Soums ECL) lor SICRY credit impaired) ECL] for SICR) credit impaired)
Car lcans
AL 1 January 2023 39132 342 1,754 5228 1,363,055 4,223 4813 1,370,800
Adovarnenls wills e on credht foes
alfawance charpe for e pencd
Trarsfers
- ko lifefima {from Stape 1 to Stege 2) RET 147 - - {3,617} 3BT - -
- b credildmpained
(from Siege 1and Stapa 2 1o Stage 3) i1,06E6) {17} 1,240 - {3217} (324} 2741 -
= from Stage 3 to Stage 2 and Stage 1 1 2 {3 . B2 7188 {7,881 E
Merw orginated or purchased e s - - 2,332 B3 “ E B13,623
Dweracognised durng iha pariad {305 (54 {720 1,173 168,714} {706} {1,805) {171,315}
Changes in gross value of Inancial assalg . - . . [321, 668 SE3 968 {320,117}
Changes io ECL mesasurement modsl
assumplions and ather movemenis* Lilat] 416 18,042) 553 = . , .
Changes in agcrued inferest =4 23 B804 8,741 B8 a0 2084 15,453
Toinl moverents with imgact on credilt 4413 350 1168 2,941 322 727 10,709 4208 337 644
ioes allowance charge for ihe period
Movements withoo! imoas! o credd oss
atfowance chage for the perod:
Writp-nffs. - - - - - - - -
Fx and ofhier movamants - - 2 - - - - -
At 31 Decombar 2023 4,545 Lok 2923 B, 163 1,684, TEZ 14,93 EA 1,708, 534

* Tha lra Changes o ECL messuramant moded gesumptions asd other movements” under colums reated o Credit Loss Allswance represents changes in risk parameters (PO, LGD), changes in EAD and
adjustmant of ECGL dus o fansfer io mew stages, &3 well a= irarsfers of ECL on new lcane anigirated during the reparling pericd from Slage 1 o other siages, Dus o surmant techniced limitabons e Group
pasented charges in EAD and risk parameters in one line. Tha Infamation on transfers abova reflants the migration of loars from Sheir inifal stage {or the stage as at tha beginning of the reparfng daie) 1o the
stage they wene in as at reporting datee This information does not refiect the imermadiate stage that the fnans could be assigned o theoughout e mporting pericd,
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Nofes fo the Consolidated Elnanﬂgfnll' Stataments = 31 December 2024

Credit loss sllowancs Gross carrying amount
Stage 1 Stage 2 Siage 3 it Stage 1 Stage 2 Singe 3 N

i 2-meantha {Iifatimme ECL {Iitatime ECL for i1 2-months {ifetirme ECL {fifatima ECL for
fn millens of Uzbekizin Sawms ECL) for SICR) credlt impaired) ECL} for SICR) credit impaired)
Consumer fans
AL Janumry 2023 X530 342 0,865 12,537 4E2 433 B89 25842 S04, 308
Miwarmarts willy imMpach an aregt knas
allmuancs changs fioy the pariag
Translors:
- [0 lifetime {(Fom Stage 1 12 Sage 2) (50 50 - = (1.268) 1.264 -
- b0 credit-impained
(from Siage 1 and Stege 2 10 Sege 3) (1,212 [ 180) 1,582 - (4.26E) (o) 4 505
« froems Sitage 3t Stage 2 and Stage 1 B 12 {181 - a74 1,447 2,201
Mew onginated or purchassd 1,479 . - 2428 491,858 - - 451 /550
Drermcagnized durng the pariod (499} [24] {3,008 (3,842} {100.043) {1,723 [7.703) {108,439)
Changes in goss value of Bnancial sssets - - 5 - {184 257) 1423 |7.395) {190,229
Changes fo ECL measurement model
assumplions and ottvr movements™ 449 252 {4,084} (3.383) - ‘ . .
Charrges in eccnied inferes B2 AT 445 515 0,263 (574} 14,344 10,080
Todal movements with impact on credit aTe 87 [5.004) (3061} 2017 1,206 {11,273 202,040
Inss aflowance chargs for [he pesiod
Mauemants withoot impact an creci bes
alfowance charge for the pevod:
Write-offe = - - B
FX and ofier mowaments - = - . = = i F
Al 31 Decembaer 2023 1366 q0g o FEl 8578 E30,450 TB2T 14,5662 TO2 B4

* The line "Changes o ECL measuremest mods| assumptions and other movements” under cofumns related fo Creds Loss Allowance rapresants changpas in risk peremeters (P LGOY, changes in £A0 and
adjustment of ECL dus o transfer bo new stages, a5 well a5 fransfers of ECL on new Ibars ofginated during the reporting pericd from Stage 1 to other stages. Due io curend lchnical Imiaticns the Group
presentsd changes in EAD and risk parameters in cne fne. Tha infarnation on ransiers sbeve refiacts tha migration ol loens from thedr indtial stage (or the stage s al the begirming of the reporting data) o e
sage they wans In a5 at reporsing date, This information does nol refect Bue inbemediabe stage el the leens could be sssigned to throughout the mporfing pericd,

ar
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Notas to the Consalidated Financial Statements - 31 Decembar 2024

T R L

Credit loas alfowance Grogs chrrying amount
m— Stage 2 Stage 1 = Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Yol
{12.months  {lifetime ECL {IFfetime ECL for [12-montka  (lifetime ECL flifetime ECL for

Iy irilons of Lisbekister Soune EGL} for SICR) cradit impaired ECL) for SIGR) credit impalred)
Ratail mortgage
AL 1 January 2023 3,602 ET) 142 18,250 Bi3,B35 2,781 3T.530 554,128
Mavemenls wilth impec! on credd oss
afiowance chavge fbr B perind:
Transfars:
- {0 Ufetima [inom Siage | o Stage 2| (343 344 . ] [, F3E) 3,732
- to credit-anpainsd
{trom Stage { and Stage 2 o Stags 1) {1.348) - 1344 - (4,057 - 4047 -
- from Stage 3 in Stage 2 and Stage 1 Fi'd 175 {252} = 2,686 5,696 (185,382} .
Mew originated or purchesad 2,276 - - 2,276 207,370 ' - 287,370
Dierecogrised during the period 135) {18 {4.052) {1, 158) {13,271} (154} {2.768) {16,181}
Chanpes in gross valise of finsncisl sssets - £ : - (146, 529) [Z18) {11,854 {158, 608)
Changes ta ECL measurement madel
REaUmptione snd ofher mowamanks” N 4] {1047y {5.971) . . - -
Changes in accrued intenesi 42 (1] i 603 4,865 (212} 1,638 6,139
Total movemants with inpact on credit 1,120 08 [0.574) {B.258) 44,130 BEa (24,262} 128,713
loss sllowance charge for the periad
iMovamants wihou Mpac! an credil iose
allowarce ciargs for the period:
WAl bg-affs e s ; & - - X =
F¥ ard afal mevemanls - e~ - - - . x i
At 3 Desarmbar 2023 4,78 L 4,397 5882 657,865 11.607 13.268 GEEZ. 840

* Tha line “Chanpes o ECL measirement modsl assumptions and other mowsmants” undar columing malated to Credit Loss Allowancs represents changes in rsk parameters. (PO, LG00. changes in A0 and
afusiment of ECL duse o ranafer i new slages, as well g8 ansfers of ECL on new knans crginated during the reporting pariad from S%aoe 1 1o other stages: Due fo curent lechnical imitalions the Graup
presented thanges m EAD and fsk paramelesrs in cne line. The indormation on transters above raflects tha migration of koens from thair inftial stage (or the staoe & at the begmning of the reporting date) 1o the
siage they were in as al reporting date, This nformatian dices not reflect the intermediate siage that the loans could be sesagned o throughoul the reparfing paricd,
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Notes fo the Consolldated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Credil lods Albowancs Gross carmylng amount
Slage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 —— Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 )

{1Zmonths  (lifetime ECL (litetime ECL for (12months  [WhtimeECL (Iifwtime ECL for A
in milians of Lizhekisian Soums ECL) far BICR] credit impared) ECL) for SICR) cradit mpainad)
Agro and micno nedail
At January 2023 2,133 3 BT 2,783 136,666 104 1.701 138,471
Movements witlt impact on credi loss
afowance change for the period:
Transdars:
- o fifatima (from Stege 1 o Siege ) ez 142 - - {4,120) 4120 - -
- o credil-impaired
{from Stage 1 and Stage 2 to Staga 3) (TEs) i3 TH . {2,207 1 2,908 <
- from Staga 3 fo Stage 2 and Siags 1 iz i (13 . Ba7 & (T3 -
"lﬂﬂ'ﬁﬂﬂ'ﬂﬂﬂ ﬂ'_ﬂ'-lfﬂ'lm'ﬂ‘ 4,208 - 133 4,331 35841 70 236,211
Derecogrised during the pericd (216} iy [2848) {13,885) . 217 {14,082)
Changes in gross value of financial assets - - . 159,82E) (2 = E {&0,531)
Changes o ECL measuremernt mods
assumptians and olfsar mouemants” 14 2] 1817} {60s) : : % .
Changes in accrued interest 13 i 70 105 1,808 i62] 211 1,958
Total movements with impact on credit 31 180 212 358 13833 4,025 892 163,256
logs aflowance chargs for the paricd
Mavements without impact oo crecl oss
afowance change for iha pericd:
Wirite-oits = = = > = -
Fi and afer movamanks - 5 = = - = b -
Al 31 Decormbar 2023 L 183 850 8,3E 2051005 4,129 2,583 204,127

* The Era “Changes to ECL measuremant model sssumplicns and atfar mevamanis” under sslumne relabed bo Credit Los= Allowarce represents changes in sk paramesters (PO, LGDL changes in EAD pnd
adjustment of ECL due fo transfer io new stages. 35 wall as trarslers of ECL an new kans ongirabed dwing the reporfing pericd fom Stage 1 o other stapes, Tue to curant techaical imitstons e Sroup
presenied changes: in EAD and risk parameters in one line. The infarmaion an transfers above reflects the migration of lpans from thelr nitial siage (o the siags as at the beginring of the repartng dals) o the
siapa thay wene in 85 51 reporting dete. This information does not reflect the intermadiate stage that the loans could be assigned (o Shroughout tha reporting period.
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Economic sector risk concanirations within the cugtomer loan portfolio ere a5 follows;

M Decamber 2024 3 December 2023
I millions of Uzbekisian Soums Amount % Amount R
Manufaciring 4,737,7M 35 4,728,541 A4
Indisiduals. axcapi for privale entreprenaurs 4,760,133 a2 2,047 @02 i
Trada 16765117 13 638,925 &
Sen/ices 661,024 & Ti2 02 7
Transportation 560,426 4 194,744 2
Communication 476 628 4 Ry T.000 5
Constniclion 456 6T 3 452 382 5
Agpricullurg 305307 - £137TH 2
har 312,201 s 75454 1
Gross loans and advances to customers 13,465,306 100 10,641,621 100

As at 31 Decemnber 2024, he Group had 4 borrowears (2023 4 bormowers) with aggregated loan amaunts
individuaily exceeding 10% of Group's equity, The total aggregate amount of these koans was UZS 1,606,545
rillien (2023: UZS 2,002,097 million) or 11.83% of the gross loan portfolio (2023:10.66%).

The exposure to these 4 borrowers was collsteralized as follows:

Outstanding balance of UZS 750,664 millicn of two state owned entities was collaterised by cash deposit
of LIZS 497 167 millllon, real estate of LUZS 217,760 milion and letters of surety of UZS 730,887 milllon,
Dutstanding balance of LUZS 378,408 million of onae private entity was collaterised by real estate of UZS
428,000 million and letters of surely from owners of UZS 1,546 608 millian.

- Outetanding balance of UZS 478,475 million of ona antity with foraign capital was collaterised by real
aestate of LZS 204 000 milion and lettars of surety from owners of UZS 627,417 million.

The Group's polickes regarding obtalning collateral have nol significantly changad during the reporting period and
there has been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral held by the Group since the prior period,

As al 31 December 2024 and 2023, the gross loans and advances to customers assessed on a collective and
individual basis amounted to UZS 12,736,197 milllen (2023; UZS 10,208,018 milion) and UZS 729109 (2023;
25 433,602 millian) with allowances for ECL in the amount of UZS 265,335 (2023: UZS 144,210) milon and
LIZS 138,053 million (2023: UZS 12,024 million), raspectively.

Description of collateral held for loans carried at amortised cost is as follows =t 31 December 2024

Loans to corporate cusiomers Loans o indivioums
i maitions of Uizhekstn Consumer Retall Aggre and
SOUmS — Large entilies  Micro entilies Car loans lwans  morgage micro ratall
Unsecured Loans: 000 44 54 - o+ Sa6 52,385
Loans with other credi
enhancamani:
- lallar of suraly 3 A58,004 10820 49574 ABa ORg J28.0a0 44 553
- insurance policy 551,874 4,754 bl e A2 b2 5,606 t16, 728
Lomns collateralized by
- il | Eakabe 2033, 198 5020 445 1,556 723, B3 38 664
- gash depoeil 108,479 25217 120 - an T.TET
- AT Vahici T2 TIE 7.BER 1222076 31,908 441 243119
= gquiprmeni 6,089 - - - = E
- iother 46,803 054 - a6 . &3
Collateralized loans 2167 482 39,068 1422850 23 556 T24.223 268,533
Loans and advances bo
_ Customers 8,372,060 BE.E18 2188, 404 819,966 1,088 603 505 275
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Description of collateral held for loans carried at amortised cost (s as follows at 31 December 2023

Loans o corporale CUSTOMErs Loans fo indfwidusls
It radlions of Lishekislan Congumer Retall Agro and
Soums Larga entifies _ Micro entities Car loans leans  morigage  micro retail
Linsesunad Loans: 307,260 1 3,620 =
Loans with pdhar onedit
anhancement:
- labier of gurety 2446 FRA T. 22 447 286 {132 404 S 204 2,845
= insurance palicy A0 G607 4. 59496 204,066 48,425 5840 103,844
Leans collataraizad by:
- radl astats 2,488 BE1 2530 247 184 ara. e 14,306
- imalear vahichk 57a,308 A 640,401 arr 360 177,383
- gmsh depoait 22T ATh - 208 - 104 i
- agulpmsent TdE . . _ = 2
- alhor 815459 1.0 AT 86T 9,396 12,043 a7
Collateralizad loans 3 540 TET 0,303 1048113 9.8a7 a4 502 166,547
Locgures and advances Lo
cuslomers T,100.892 21,50 1,700,355 &0 370 672 B48 295,411

The outstanding conlraciual amounts of loans and advances to customars written off that are still subject o
enforcement aclivity was as follows at 31 December 2024 and 2023

it ritttons of Lirhekistan Souwms 2024 2023
Loans lo corporsle customars

Large nans 34,672 113,065
Micre kcans Car loans Ratall morigags T21 2820
Loanez io inahvidusls

Car lnans 5132 1,237
Ratall morigage 1,266 4172
Consurmer loans 9,011 3854
Agro and micro retail 1,323 6,408
Total 53,214 131,726

The Group's policy is to complete legal enforcement steps that were initiated even though the loans were written
off as thare is no reasonable expactaton of recovery.

As gt 31 Dacamber 2024 and 2023, none of the loans and advances to customers were pledged as collaleral

against borrowings of the Group.

10 Investment in Debt Securities

31 December 3 Decamber
i pmitions of Uizbewsian Sourns - 2024 2023
Uzbaklstan governmant bonds 2,191,001 -
CEL bonds —— - 218987
Gross invesiment in debt securities 2,191,001 218,987
Lass cradil loss allowanes (12,718) A.981)
Total investment In debl gecurlties 2,478,371 217,708

Irvestment In debi securities comprises of Uzbekistan government bonds (Standard & Poor's credit rating for
Uzbekistan slards al BB- with & stable oullook) with 15%-16.5% coupon irterest rate and up to three years
maturity. Investment in debt securities is sccounted at amortised cost since business model is *hald o collect”

and SPP| test was passad.

Ag at 31 December 2024 and 2023 investment in debt securiiies was in stage 1 and there wera no movements

betwaan slapes
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Az al 31 December 2024, Uzbekistan government bords in the amount of UZS B0 459 milllon are pledged to
atiract short ferm financing obfained from commercial banks of Uzbekistan under repo agreements without right

io sell or repledge in Mote 16.

Fefer 1o Mote 34 for the estimated fair value of Investments in debl securithas.

11 Investment in Equity Sacurities

As al 31 December 2024, investment in equity securities include equity securites of domestc companies that the
Group accounts for ai FWTPL with a carrying value of UZS 103,126 million {2023 UZS 20,697 million]. Refer to
Mote 34 for information on the estimation of the falr value of irvestments in equily securitios,

Az at 31 Decamber 2024 and 2023, none of the equily securitiez were pledged as collateral against borrowings

of the Group.

12  Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures

The Group's interests in its principal associates and joint venture were as follows:

3 Dacamber 2024

i December 223

Prneipal Fluce of Fo it = el e s
Hame % oownershlp  Carrying % ownership  Garrying
et | tinisite interest hedd  armount imtorest held  amount
*FIBERIETON POCHTASH SC Postal services Uizbekislan 8% Gl 8 289% B S
IT bilimidami rividantiveh makcazi Educafianal
e p— tasility Lizbakizlan 49% 51M 9% E.80G
Metweark of
“FRO-TCEC" LLC charging Lizbakizian a0%% 1508 0% 1,617
shations
"Mohidar xizmas® LLE ﬁﬁ:‘“’mﬂ Uzbakistan a8 1,138 254 522
"CRADLE VISION TECH® LLC m Lizbakixian 0% sa7 0% arg
“EOU MARMETS" LLG T Urbaki=ian M 460 A3% dE6T
Total Investment In asacclates and JY 50,000 60,501
13  Other Assets
31 December 31 December
b mittlens of Uizbekistan Soums 2024 2023
Oither financiel azseis af AC
Receivables from sale of office buiiding in IT Park E5B 107 -
Receivablas from shareholder 200000 -
Receivables from monay iransfer eystems 17,609 14801
Mon-interest income recaivables 16,164 189,766
Commission recaivalble [rom cusiomens Taa &21
Cahar 2283 3425
Loss crodil lose allowanos {280} 12, 205
Total other financial assels at AC 1,094, T42 38,831
it Rnancia assats o FYTPL
Dherivad s (Nobe 33) - 3605
Total other financial assels at FVTPL = 3,605
Total other financlal assets 1,084,742 40.236
Cthar non-finencal aeeets
Prepakd axpenses 46,838 BE. 101
Prapayments for premises and equipment 44417 1766
Repossessed assets on loans and leasing 58,063 141,765
Prapayment for laxes offns than income lax 27 B16 27 808
Frventaony 4 630 3.535
Citbver a4 D3 455
Lass allwwancs o impairmant [4,025) =
Total ather nonfinancial assats 181, 882 261,920
Tolal other assels 1,278,624 302,156
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During 2024, the Group sold its office bullding located in IT Park used for operations of its Head office for the
amount of LIZS 858,107 million, The full payment of building has been complated subsaquantly to the reporting
date.

In accordance with decision of Supervisory Board #92 dd 3 December 2024, the Group has issued new ordinary
shares in the amount of UZS 500,000 million, of which UZS 200,000 million was paid subsaquent 1o the reporting
date.

Repossessed collateral represenis real esiate assels and equipment acquired by the Group In settlement of
overdue loans, The assets recaived were measured al the lower of thair carmying amount and fair value less cosls
1 sell, The Group expects o dispose of the assels in the foreseeable fulure,

Al of the above assels are expected 1o be recovered less than twealve months after the year-end. Other financial
assats were included in Stage 1 for ECL measurament purposas, and waora not past due.

Information on releted party balances ks disclosed in Nofa 35,

frn mions of Lzbatdsian Sowms Siage 1 Stage 3 Tatal
ECL at 1 January 2024 {2,305} - {2,305)
ECL charge (280 - (280)
Financial assels derecognisad during the perod 2,305 - 2,305
ECL at 31 Decernber 2024 (2a0) - {80}
i erillicns of Uzbakistan Sowms Stage 1 Stage 3 Tatal
ECGL at 1 January 2023 (1,470) - (1,470)
ECL charge {2,305) - (2,308)
Financial assets derecognised during fe perind 1470 1,470
ECL at 31 Doecombar 2023 (2,305) - {2,306}
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14  Premises, Equipment, Intangible Assets and Right of use Assets

Buibdings,  Officeand Constrec-  Terminals Total  Intnglble  Righi-of- Tokal
Premises [=tignlly il Han bn wnder e B Anpnis [I5.1.3
Iy sreiovs o and Land lﬂ.ﬂl‘l‘lﬂﬂi [ErGgross aparating and hagats
Uizbaisian Sourms . tmase  oquipment
Carrylng amaunt
at 1 January 202] 107,171 74,708 1,341,126 4830 1,557 B35 57,756 11,430 1,506,821
Additons 23,680 115488 GOO,2E 173 B0, 015 1,831 23 BT TRT
Capialised s e 145,887 149, BB7 . 145,087
bormwing coss
Bat Bansiors 164, T4 = {15471 1] .
Disparak (13,404} 11,56E) a (74,030) [RE Na i §
oo e aTEa)  E43eT (1840)  (30.083) (M85 (3385 (4B28E)
Carrying amount
wt 31 Decombor
2023 309,338 168,288 1,986,575 2,863 2437064 44750 10,396 2,492,210
Caal ol 31 Decemibar
202N a0 533 g BT 1 888575 17,852 2,581 B30 T4, 186 10,829 2, G50 GBS
Ao labed
depreciasion
amaorlsation L2, 1848 {11820 114 58 [ V5 R0 133 A168) {8.503) [ 188, 385]
Carmrying amaount
nt 31 Decamber 2023 304,538 168,288 156575 2, 8E3 2,457 064 44,750 10,386 2492, 110
Eddl‘nma 130,685 73,708 a04,383 F TO8,TTE 1,438 - 710,206
apialicad
boriowing coss - - 177,373 - 377 = 1y aTE
Met arefers . (222) goo : = - 3
Disnozalk [310,473) (40,547 . (361, 120) (130 [118) [367,350)
Depreciton
i ot b 6, 968) [38,138) [1678) (45, TE4) 115.002) {3,364) (65, 150)
—_Dmariizason ohEangs
Carmying amount
ot 31 Decombar 2024 122,582 162,089 2,638,330 1408 2825390 M8 B3 2953368
Costat 1 Decambar
2024 160, 744 ned1d 2838 330 18,078 3,138,880 T, 464 18, T&80 3,224 304
S ar e
depraciation)
i isasion (28 1823 1156 421) 18867] (20, 250) (484181  11,887) [261,535]
g amaunt
ot 31 Descombar
| E0E 132,582 163580 _2/B3E330 408 TAZS30 M489I 2953068

Construction in progress mainky consist of works performed by contractor in the emount of UZS 1,782,131 million
(2023 UZ5 1,332 576 milkon) for construction of head quarter office in International business center “Tashkent

Cily" in accordance with Investment agreement between the Bank and Shanghai Construeton Group Co.

The Group leasas offices for s regional service centres. Rental contracls are typically made for fixed periods of
12 months to & years, but may have exiension options, All leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding Eability (Mote 19) from the date when the leased assel becomeas available for use by the Group.

The Group leased paymert terminals to ifs customars under operaling lease amangements for 2-3 years,

The Group capilalised bormowing cost &s Construction of new premises. Tolal capitalised cost as at 31 December
2024 amounted to UZS 419,475 million (31 December 2023. UZ3 242,103 million) Capitalisation rate used o
determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable fo the
Bank's general borrowings during the year, in this case 6.26% (2023 - 509%),
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15 Non - current asset held for sale

31 Decernber 31 December

i mitlore of Uzbakisten Soums 2024 N
Repossassad assals:

- Buildings hald for sala 61.487 -

_- Other assats hedd for saie 38,760 :

Less imparment allowance (2337 -

Total non-current assets held for sale 87.920 .

Az at December 2024, non-current assel held for sale include the repossessed bulidings and equipment for the
lotal ameunt of UZS 61,497 million and UZS 38,760 million, respectively, In Decamber 2024, tha Group's
management approved and initiated active customer search programs. The assets received were measured at
the lower of their carmying amaolent and fair value less costs to sell,

16  Due to Other Banks

I Decomber 31 December

In milions of ebakisian Souwrs 2024 2023
Long - term pacements of other domestic benks BaY.Fib G0a,083
Comespondent account with alther banks 224 883 190,140
Shost = ferm placements of other domeslic banks 180000 245 548
_Payables under repo agresmeont 801 450 &
Total due to other banks 2,141 157 1,144,772

Included in long — term placemants of other domestic banks are deposits placed by the commercial banks in the
amount of UZS 141,365 million (2023; UZS 74,243 million) mainly directed to financing of sarvice industry and
small businesses (Moba 27). Thesa deposits have the purpose of financing and repayment schedules, Funds were
provided at interest rates from 3%-14% in local currency with a maturity up to 20 years. Should the Bank use the
procesds for a different purpose, these deposils become repayable on demand,

Refar to Mote 34 for the disdosure of the fair value of each dass of amounts due to other banks. Interast rate
analysis of due lo other banks |s diacloaad in Note 30. Information on related party balancas is dsclosad In Mote

36,
17  Customer Accountz

3 Decambar M Decambar
i rrittons of Uzbekistan Soums 024 2023
State and publle arganlzations
- Cumentisettermant scocounis Ba3.973 arr.oe3
Othar begal entities
= Currantisatiiarment acoounls 1.694 565 1,208 485
= Tanm daeposits 1.877.5408 1,547 847
Individuals
- Tarm deaposits 3,045 520 2.380.531
- Cumani’satilament accoun|s O P - 784 855
Tatal cusiomer aocounis 12,780,423 B.518.726

Economic sector concentrations within cusiomer accounts are as follows:
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31 Decamber 2024 3 Decamber 2023
_In mitlions of Uzhekislan Soums Amaunt %o Ameint T
Privvate individuals 5,122 444 0% FAB5 41T 37 5%
Finaneial secor 2,524 THA 184% 1 ABS, 52 7%
Spacial lunds 20T TR 18% 1,504,153 18%
Dihar governmaent enlities 1,060,358 8% 7o 651 9%
Senices Bl % G3,482 7o
Communication and iranspor 308,957 3% 240 204 3%
Trada 173,714 1% 143,414 2%
Manufacturing 156,611 1% 202 17 2%
Conslruction B8, 1% 173,657 2%
Cahar 255, 0 2% 101,574 2%
Total customer accounts 12,760,423  100% B8.516,726  100%

Dwring 2023, the Group has introduced a new onling retall deposi "Siz uchun™, The deposit maturity ferm is 2
years with an annual interest rate of 23%. As at 31 December 2024, the Group has aftracted term depoasils in the
total amount of UZS 3,338 052 millon (2023: UZS 1,377,682 million).

A 31 December 2024, the Group had B customers (2023; 5 customers) with aggregate balance of UZS 3,803,387
million {2023 UZS 2,590,191 million), which individually exceed 10% of Group equity.

Al 31 December 2024, included in customer accounts are deposits of UZS 1,163 milkion (2023; ULS T8 405
million) held as collateral Tor irrevocable commitments under impert lellers of credit. Refer to Mote 34 for the
disclosure of the fair value of each class of customer accounts, Inferes! rate analysis of customer accounts is
disclosed in Mole 30. Information on refated parly balances is disclosed in Note 35,

Spedal funds in the customer accounts represent funds of the govemnment related non-profit organzations that
are sel aside or allocated for a particular government purpose or requirernent which are intended to meet specific
needs or obligations of the govermnmeant before the community,

18  Other Borrowed Funds

31 Dacamber 3 Decamber
I millions of Uzbaikdetan Souwms 2024 2023
Borrowings from domestic financisl Instibutions 2,700,078 1,578 202
Borrowings from Intermational financkal Institutions 1,316,576 1,205 170
Borrowings from Central Bank of Uzbakistan (SCELM) 3,38 48210
Total other borrowed funds 4,138,368 3,230,504

Ag al 31 Decambaer 2024 borrowings from international financial Institutions included the following significant
balances:

# In 2022 Alogabank atiracied funds of Banco Popolare di Sondrio with guarantee of Azian Development Bank
(ADB) and insurance of SACE (export credit agency) in USD. The balance of borrowing as of 31 Decamber
20024 s UZS 452 320 million (2023: UZS 385 585 million) with interest rate of 6% on average for USD loans

« |n Ocioher 2024, the Bank has atiracted funds from Mashreqbank with contracteal amount of USD 1.3 million
{in WZS equivalent; UZS 16,796 milion). As al 31 December 2024, the balance of the borrowing Is UZS

16,4771 million wilh matierity unbl May 2025 and Interesi rate of 3.15% par anmum,

+ In December 2024, the Bank has atiracted funds from Cargill Financial Servicas International, Inc. with
contraciual amount of USD 14 millien {in UZS equivalent; UZS 180 887 milbon). As at 31 Decamber 2024,
the balance of the borrowing is UZS 180,887 million with maturity until December 2025 and interas! rate of
SOFR+5.75%.

= EUR denominated borrowings were attracted from Commerzhank to finance import of goods from OECD
couniries to Uzbekistan by Uzbak companias. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of the borrowing is UZS

485147 milion (2023: UZS 564,504 milion) with interest rate ranging from EURIBOR+0.9% to
EURIBOR+1.3% per annum.

As at 31 December 2024 borrowings from domasiic financial instiuions included the following significant
balances:
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s UZS denominated bormowing from Uzbekistan Furd for Reconstruction and Development (Immeadiate parent
company of the Bank) for the amount of UZS 473,366 millien and USD 9,649 was obtained in 2018, 2020,
2021, 2023 and 2024 for the financing of projects In services secior and project of young entreprensurs.
Borrowings will mature from 2027 to 2034, and issuad with inferest rate of Central Bank of Uzbekistan
refinancing rate minus 4%, ™ and 0% per annum raspectively. The balance of the borrowings of 31
December 2024 is UZS 528,931 milkion (2023: UZS 576,370 million).

s I 2020-2021 JICA (Japan International Cooperation Agency] provided cradit lina in US dollars (USD} and
Uzbek soums to fiance agricwliural projecis with confractual amount of JPY 540,000,000 equivalent to the
Bank. The balance of the borrowing as of 31 December 2024 is UZS 60,090 million (2023: UZS 57,385 million)
in USD and UZS 3,600 million (2023 UZS 3,600 mdllion) In WZS matwring by December 2044 wilh average
interast rate of 5% for WSO loans and 13.5% for UZS per annum. Alsoe in 2024 JIGA provided credit ling in
LSD 9,000,000, under agreement JICA-UZB-P-F-1, The balance of the borrowing &s of 31 December 2024
in UZ5 75,735 milion maturing by Decamber 2037 with average interest rate of 10.6% for UZS loans per
annum,

«  UZS denominated borrowing from Ministry of Economy and Finance of Republic of Uzbekistan for the initial
amount of UZS 63,022 milion was obtained in 2018-2024 for the financing of profects on construction of
kindergardens. Bormowing matures by 2020, 2035, 2037, 2040, 2042 and 2044 and issued with interast rate
of 2%, 8%, 10.5% for loans denominated in UZS and 1% for loans denominated in USD, 4%, 1-6.48% and
5% per annum respectively. The balance of the bomowing as of 31 December 2024 s UZS 720,432 million
{2023: UZS 470,831 million).

As of 31 Decamber 2024 and 2023 and throughaul the years then ended, the Groun was in compliance with all
covenants on the above loan facilities.

1%  Other Liablities
CHher Habilitkes comprise the following:

41 Decemiyer 31 Decamiker

in milions of Uzbeldsian Soums 2024 2023
Orther financial liabilities
Apcounts payable for construction A5, T51 107,373
Aocounts payable for sarices A1.3Ta 64,378
Liahilitizs on maney transfar of individuals 1727 24814
Leas= liabilites 12,435 15,310
Prowision for Bank's guaraniees and letiers of cradil 2877 2820
Cividends Payabile o8 =
Cilier . Forad 9,066
Total other financial liabillties at AC 207.506 223,770
Orther financial liabilities at FyTPL
Dervatives B.585 =
Total other financial liabilities 218.781 2ZITTO
Criher non-financial liabilities
Eatlaments with amployans G g2 832
Incares and othar Wy payable g | 226
Cilbwer 3618 ave
Total other non-financial llabilities 43 368 64,036
_Total other liabilities 260,149 287,806

Refer to Mote 34 for discloswre of the fair value of other financial liabilities. Information on relaled party balances

is disclosed in Note 35.
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20  Subordinatad Debt

In 2022, part of ihie loans, borrowed from IBRD and |DA throwgh the Republic of Uzbekistan in the amount of USD
10,025,000 and USD 2,970,000 were reregistered as subordinated debt, Interest rales are 6.07% and 4.30% per
annum respectively and will mature on Seplember 2042 and May 2037, The debl ranks afier all other creditors in
the case of liquidation. The balence of the borowing as of 31 December 2024 is UZS 171,731 million
{31 December 2023: 160,342 million).

Refar to Mote 34 for the disclosure of the fair value of subordinated debt, Interest rale analysis of subordinated
debt is disclesed in Mote 30, Information on related party balances is diaclosed in Mote 35,

s | Shara Capital

KMumber of Ordinary  Proforanca Shara Taotal
outstanding shares ghares  premium

fn rriters of Uebekisian Soums shares, in
excep! for numbar of sharas millions L e
At 1 January 2023 7060 950,824 2,253 34912 050,989
|ssum of new sharas 1,085 240,188 . - 240,189
At 31 Docomber 2023 8845 1.981.013 2,263 3,812 $.1'ﬂ?,1?ﬂ-
SHock splilefMac 1,181,388 - = = =
lzsiue of new shares 500,000 500,000 - - S00,000
Capitalizaion of dividends BRG.97 B25,542 1,437 - Beg8T0
At 31 December 2024 518223  2.516.555 3,600 31812 2,524,157

At the Shareholders’ meeting in August 2024, the Group declared dividends in respect of the results of 2023 in
the amount of UZS 870,504 milion (2023: nil) on ordinary shares and preference shares, of which UZS 826,979
million {2023 nil) was capitalized o Share Caplial proportienally to each shareholder and the remaining UZS
43,525 million was allocated to tax on dividends, The shareholders has announced stock spit of 1 to 121, thereby
raducing the nominal value from UZS 121 o UZS 1 per share,

in Nowvember 2024, the Group declared dividends in the amount of UES 7380 milion (2023: nil) on preferance
sharas.

In accordance with decision of Supervisory Board #02 dd 3 December 2024, the Group has issued new ordinary
shares in the amount of UZS 500,000 millien, of which LEZS 200,000 millien was paid subseguent to the reporting
date,

As al 31 December 2024, the total outstanding number of ordinary shares is 2,514,533 milion shares (2023:
0,827 million shares), with a par value of UZS 1 par share {2023: UZS 121 per share), Each ordinary share
carries one vote.

The total outstanding number of preference shares is 3,690 million shares {2023: 18 milon sharas), with a par
value of UZS 1 per shara (2023 UZS 121 per shars).

fdinimum annual dividends on prefarence sharas are fixed atl 40% of the nominal value and rank above ordinary
dividends.
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22  Interest Income and Expense

In millons af Lizbekiglan Sowms I 2024 2023
interest Income calculated using the effective inlerest method
Loans and agvances to customers 2,075,823 1,805,158
Cebt securtias £64.203 1,311
Do frorn odhier benlks 41,3206 42,304
Total interest incoms calculated using effective interest rate method 2,381,452 1,939,657
Other similar o
Cther 1,072 2206
Total other similar Income 1,072 2,208
Total Interest income 2.382.524 1,942,062
Interast and othar similar expanse
Customar sceounts 1,424 211 830,048
Cither bormowed funds 176,256 163,957
Due ko ofher banks 148,599 180274
Subordinated debi 15471 3070
Laass Iablities T3 3,748
Total interest and other gimilar sxpenas 1,771,250 1,280,102
_Nat margin on interest and similar income 611,274 651,960
23  Feeand Commission Income and Expensa
Fee and commission ncome and expense for 2024 and 2023 as follows
i mittiors of Uzbekistan Soums z024 W02
Sattlemont transaclions AT 224 582 343
Intemalional money transfers AR, 756 400, 7R
Cash iransactions 35,208 a9.650
CGuaranteas and kettars. of cradit sswad 28,212 15501
Forelgn currency conversion sarvices 003 2061
Cther 13,124 10.285
_Total fee and commission Income B53,127 680,627
Selllement transaclons 619,534 488 447
Cash transactions 7,082 4025
Forelgn currency conversion services 436 3486
Transactions with securities 1,684 1341
Cither _ 30,273 16,790
_Total fee and commission expense 658,909 H14,080
Mat fos and commission incoma 194,218 176,538

Significant increasa in income and expansa from settiement fransactions is due to growth in use of online payment
apnlications and the Group is one of the largast partner of companies by servicing Fansil and current accounis.

24  Other Operating Income

in milions of Uzbekistan Soums 2024 2023
Mat gain on disposal of property and aquipment 404 BOT 252 622
Gains less lossas from equity securifies al fai valus theowsgh profit or less 5,625 223
Rental incoma from renting card transaction leeminals of the Bank 6,587 20M
Dividend mcomea 1,80 G674
Other 3,261 5,618
_Taotal cther operating income 421,980 261,229

During 2024, the Group soid its office building located in IT Park used for oparations of Its Head office for the
amount of UZS 858,107 million. The full payment of building has bean completed subsaguent {0 the reporiing

date.
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Met gain on disposal of property and equipment includes the gain on disposal of office building located in IT Park
in the amount of UZS 508,614 million and loss from sale in deferred terms of repossessed assels in the amount
of UZS 118,548 million {2023: UZS 27,939 million), respectively.

Dwuring 2023, the Group sold its building located al Amir Temur avenue, 4, Tashkent used for operations of is
Head Ofice and recognized gain in the amount of UZS 241,700 milllon from sake.

25  Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

in milions of Uzbalisfan Sowms _ 2024 2023
Staff cosbs 371,366 400,210
Capreciation of pramisas and equipmant, 65,150 48,285
Membership fees 56,758 34,011
Chanly and sponsorship expensss 53,038 48622
Repairs and maintenance 47 233 11,036
Office supplies J9.9092 14,213
Eeourity service costs 25,785 23407
Advertlsing costs 24208 18,680
Professional servioes 22005 9 B0
Raprasentation axpansas B.682 5,268
Taxes other than Income fax 7.519 G247
Business tip and travel sapensas 5,967 4,008
Cormmaurication axpenses 4,427 84484
Short-term rant expansas 2,800 5,152
Dihar 26542 18,051
Total adménistrative and olher operating expenses T53,371 850,356

Staff cosla contain stelulory pension contributions of UZS 37,798 million (2023 UZS 40,465 milllon)

The fes for the non-audit services provided by the auditers of the Group for 2024 s USD 50,000
tin UZS aquivadent: LZS 846 milion) {2023 Nil) net of VAT, The audit services fees iz includad in Professional
sarvicas line of the table above and amounted to LUZS 2,142 million net of VAT (2023 LIZS 2,760 million)

26  Income Taxes

fa) Componenis of income tax expense

In mittians of Uzbekistan Saums 2024 2023
Currant tax charge 32,070 128,773
Daferrad tax chargedcradit) 10,033 {21,977)
Total incoma tax expense for the year 42,103 106,796

(b}  Reconciliation between the tax expense and profif or foss muitipiied by applicable tax rate

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Group's 2024 income is 200 (2023 20%). A reconciliation
bebween the expected and the actual faxation change s provided below,

It vitfone of Uzbakisten Soumna 2024 2023
Profit befora tax 205 014 AES, 304
Theoratical tax change at the applicable statutory rate - 20% (H023: 20%) £0.0i04 B3.081
<« Mo deductible axpansas 34,245 20,388
= Tax axampl incoma (53,705} (20,7
- Dhifare 2 544 14,128
Income tax exponse forthe year 42,103 106,796

(e}  Deferred faxes analysed by type of temporary difference

Mon-cgeductible expenses in the table include 20% of the statutory ECL charge for UZS 19243 milllion (2023
5,871 million), and non-teductible charity and donation axceading the tax code regulation limil make up the rest,
Tax-exempi income in the (able above consists of interest income from government bonds and CBU bonds,
iotaling UZS 53,415 million (2023: UZS 18,122 million), and remaining 20% of the dividends income received,
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Differences betwean IFRS and statutory laxation regulations in Uzbekistan give rise to temporary differences
belween the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposas and their tax bases. The tax
effeci of the movaments in thase tempaorary differences s detailed balow,

2024 credited to stzy Satiedi 2022
. . |osE F"‘ﬂlﬂl or
In millions of Uszbakistan Souns W icobodsed loss
Tax effaci of deductible/{taxakie)
temporary differences
Loans and advances 1o cuslormers 34 158 0,501 24 187 20,B81 3,786
Due from banks ECL 3,308 ] 2473 1,085 1,388
Cue from Banks cut-off i 1.083) {1.083] - - -
Premises, equlpmeant and intangible esssts (1,005) (T.057) 8,053 (6,194) 12,248
Recagnilion of impairment loss from e
imvesiment in Bespeiata [B3T) {1,123] 288 Fauti] -
Investmernt in debl securities: recognition of
imterast income using EIR method 411 303 ik {140] 158
{Mhar assels G508 a3g (431) {1,303 472
Custormser accounts avarchanpac commnms son
income (287 {2,008 1802 [(938) 2,740
Odhar bomowed funds - (48] H4H 174 174
Differance due o sccnus of bonuses and
_resarve for unused vacations 5,018 {10,509 15,580 8,124 7461
Net deferred tax asset/{liability) 40,269 ~[10,033) 50,302 21,877 28,128
Recognised defarrad lax assel 43 40 12,249 60,733 0,561 #B, 325
Recognised defarred 1ax Habllty {3 2228) {22284} {431] (8,575} =
Met deferred tax aaael 40,2648 {10,033] 50,302 21,877 28,325

27 Reconclliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

The table below sets out movernents in tha Group's liabdities from financing activities for each of the pericds
presentad. The iteme of these lablites are those that are reported as financing activities in the statement of cash

fiowrs.
Liakilities from financing activilies
Oilhear Subor- Due to
homrowead dinated Lease ather Dividends
In millinng of Lizbakislan Soums funds debt  Habilities banks paid Taodtal
Liabiilties from financing
 activities at 1 January 2023 3,002 628 145875 13,474 - - 3,251,877
Proceeds from liakilikes 1,131 889 - : . - 1,131,868
Repaymant of labities (1,250,411} - (1,912 - (1,252,323)
Forelgn exchange adusimants 233,904 12,537 - = - 246,445
Accrual of inlerast 163,957 3070 3,748 = - 170,775
Interast paid {141 280 (1,840 - - - {142,520)
Liahilities from financing
aciivities at 1 January 2024 3,230,581 160,342 15,310 = - 3,406,243
Froceeds from liabilities 2,258 604 . - @2 208 - 2351812
RFapeyment of labiles (1408 29E) - (10,587  (25,0848) - [1,443,868)
Foreign exchange adustmants 58,965 7,550 M - - 67,524
Accrual of inlerast 180,727 16,471 T.712 11,858 - 225,769
interes peid {183.924) (11.8541) - {11,823 . {21€,888)
Dividends declored fior paymant - £ e e
and tax an dividends 50,805 90,905
_Dividends paid - - - . (50,107) {50,107}
Liabllittes from financing
activities al 4,138,368 171,731 12438 67,158 TOE 4,381,490

31 December 2024

28 Eamings per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable lo owners of the Bank by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in ssue during the year, excluding treasury shares.

1
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The Bank has no dilutive polential ordinary shares; therefore, the diluted earnings per share equal the basic
earmings per share. Earmings per share are caloulated as follows:

# Deoember 31 December
i milione of Uzbekizfan Soums 2024 2023
Profitless) for the year from continuing oparafions attributable 1o the
shareholoers of the Bank 252,506 A59,133
Less undistributed profit or loss for the year atiributabée to preference
_ shareholders based on berms of the shares (1,478) (ari}
Profit or loss for the year attributable to the ordinary sharsholders
__of tha Bank_ 250,830 358,262
Waighted avarage mimber of ordinary shares in lssue (thousands) 2,054 003,551 1,064 663,941
Total basic and diluled samings per share atlributable 1o the ewners of the: bank
{exprassod in UZS par shara) 0.1 0.3

Comparative information on waighted average number of ordinary shares in issue has been retrospectively
adjusted for the stock split that came into the effect during 2024,

29  Segment Analysis

The Group made changes 1o Bs segmeni reporting structune in 2022, As a resull, 1he Group's retail and corporale
operations have bean inlegrated, and their performance is no longer measured separalely. Instead, they are now
reporied a5 a single segmenl

The Group provides mainly banking services In the Republic of Uzbekistan. The Greup identifies the segment in
accordance with the crileria set in IFRS B "Operating Segments” and based on the way the operations of the
Group are regulary reviewed by the chiof operating decision maker to analyse perfformance and allocate
resources among business units of the Group.

Thie chief aparating decision-maker {"CODM”) has baan detarminad as the Group's Chairman of the Management
Board. The CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources,
The CODM regularly uses financial information based on the IFRS and profit before tax in accordance with the
IFRS for operational decision-making and resource allocation.

The Management has determined a single operating segment being barking services based on the internal
reports and the following factors were considerad upon changng in the sagment reporting:

Simpiification: By consalidating the two segments into a single segment and meaguring the performance based
on |FRS profit before tax, the Group can simplify its financial reporting process. This reduces complexity,
sireamline disclosures, and make it easier for stakeholders o understand the financial performance of the Group
a8 a8 whole.

Cost and Resource Efficiency: Maintaining separale segment reporting requires additonal resources and costs
for data collection, analysis, and reporting, By moving to a single segment, the Group can potentially reduce these
expenses and allocate resources more efficiently.

30  Financlal Risk Management

Tha risk managemant function within the Group is carried out with respect to financial risks, operational risks and
legad risks. Finanecial risk comprises market risk (including currency risk, interast rate risk and other price risks),
credit risk and hquidily risk. The primary function of fimancial risk managemeni is 1o establish risk fimits and o
ansute that any exposure to risk stays within these limits. The operational and legal risk management functions
are irtended to ensure the proper funciioning af intermal poficles and proceduras in order to minimise operational
and legal risks.

Risk management activities of the Bank are carried out in accordance with requirements of the Central Bank of
the Republic of Uzbekistan on risk managemen! and corporate governance in commercial banks, as well as
internal Policies of the Group on rizk management and limits,

Credit risk. The Group exposes itself to credit risk, which is the risk thal one party to a financial instrument will
cause a financial loss for the olher party by failing 1o meet an obligation.
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Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the Group's lending and other transactions with counterparties, giving
riga o financial assets and off-balance sheet credit-related commitments.

The Group's maximum exposure to cradit risk is reflectad in the carrying amounts of financial essets on the
consofidated statement of financial position. For guarantess and commitmeants fo axtend cradil, the maximum
exposure 1o credil risk s the amount of the commitment, The credit risk B mitigated by collateral and other credit
enhancaments.

Risk lfmits comtrod and mitigation policles. The Group manages, limils and controls concentratans of cradit
risk wherever they are idenfified — in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, &nd 1o industries,

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing Emits on the amount of risk accepled in
redation fo one borower, or groups of boarrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks ere
monitorad on a revolving basis and subject to an annual or more fraquent review, when considered necessary.

Limits on the level of credit risk by product, industry sector and by country are approved quartarly by the Group
Couneil,

Whera appropriate, ard In the case of most loans, the Group obisins collateral and corporaie and personal
guarantee. Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate.

Some olher specific contral and mitigation measures are outlined below.

{a) Limits. The Group established a number of credit commitiees which are responsible for approving credit
limnits for individual borrowers:

O eredit instruments and fransaclhions camied oul in domestic currency:

= upto UZS 2,000 million koans —under the underwriter's decision

- Ioans above ULS 2,000 milllon and less than UZS 5,000 million - based on a positive decision of the
RCSG"s Gradit Commissions,

- leans higher than UZ3 5,000 million and up to 15 (iftesn) percent of the Bank's net assets — based on a
dacision of the Bank Credil Commities;

= loans sccounting for 15 (fifteen) percent 1o 50 {fifty) percent of the Bank's net assets - based on a decision
of the Bank Supervisory Board,
In the cases specified by the current legislation — based on a decision made at the General Mesating of
the Bank Sharsholdars,

O credll Insiruments and transactions carmied oul in forsign cumency!

- loans up to USD 200,000 (wo hundred thousand ) eguivalent - usder ihe undarvriter's dacision

= loans above USD 200 000 {two hundred thousand) equivakant and less than USD 500,000 {(five hundrad
thousand) equivalent - based on a positive decision of the RCSC's Credil Commissions;
loans above USD 500,000 (five hundread thousand) eguivalent and up o 15 {fifteen) parcent of the Bank's
net assel - based on 8 decision of the Bank Credit Commitiee;
loans accounting for 15 (fifteen) parcant aquivalent to 50 (fifty) percent equivalent of the Bank's net assets
- based on a decision of the Bank Supervisory Board;

= In the cases specified by the current legislation - based on a decision made at the General Meeting of the
Bank Shareholders.

Loan applicalions, along with financial analysis of lcan applicant which Includes liquidity, profitability, inferest
coverage and debt service coverage ratios, originated by tha relevant client relationship managers are passed on
o the relevant credit committee or Group Council for approval of credit limit,

(b) Collateral. The Group employs a range of polices and practices to mitigate credit risk. Tha most traditional of
these is the taking of security for funds advances, which is comman practice, The Group implements guidelines
on the eccepiability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation,

Callateral before being accepted by the Group s thoroughly analysed and physically verfied, whera applicable.
Debl securities, treasury and other eligible bills are generally unsecured,

The wincipal collaleral types for loans and advances are:
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- Cash deposits;

- Muator vehicle:

- Guaraniees of large state controfied organisations;

= Latter of surely of large state controdled organtsations,
= Residential house;

- Equipment;

= Baliding; and

- Insurance policy of large slate companies.

Collateral held as securily for financial assets other than loans and advances is determined by the naiure of the
Instrument, Cebt securities, treasuny end other eligible bils are genarally unsecurred.

{e) Concentration of risks of financial asseis with cradit risk exposure. The Group's management focuses
on conceniration risk:
= The maximum risk to single borrower of group of affiliated borrowers shall nol excesd Z5 parcent of the
Bank's tier 1 capital. (Refer to the Notes 4 and 30 )
= Tatal amount of unsecured cradits shall nol exceed 5 percent of Bank's tier 1 capital;
= Tolal amount of all large credits cannot exceed Bank's tier 1 capital by more than 5 imes; and
- Tatal lgan amount to retated party shall not excead 50 percent Bank's tier 1 capilal.

In order to monitor credit risk exposures, weekly reparts are produced by the credit department's officers based
on & structured analysis focusing on the customer's business and financial performance, which includes overdus
balances, disbursements and repaymenis, outstanding balances and maltiurily of loan and as well as grade of [oan
and collateral, Any sgnificant exposures against cuslomers with deterforating creditworthiness are reported to
and raviewad by tha manageamant daily. Managemant mon#ors and follows up past due balances,

Crodit risk grading system. For measuring credit risk and grading financial instruments by the amount of credit
risk, thie Group applies two approaches = an Intermal Risk-Bazad {(IRB) rating system or rigk grades esfimated by
external intemafional rating agencies (Standard & Poor's - “S&P°, Fitch, Moody's).

The Group's internal credit rating grades are a5 follows:

Standard 1 Timely repayment ol *standard” lpans |s not in doubd. The borower ke a
financially stable company, which has an adeguate capital level, high level
profitability and sufficient cash flow to meet its all existing obligations, including
present debl. When aszessing the reputation of the borrower such factors as
the history of previous repayments, marketability of collateral (movable and
immaovable property guarantee) are taken into consideration.

Substandard 2 As a whole, the financial position of & bofrower is stable, bul some unfavorable
circumstances or iendencies are present, which, if not disposed of, raise some
doubts about the borowear's ability o repay on time. “Standard” loans with
insufficient information in the credit file or missing information on collateral
could be also classified as “Substandard” loans.

Uresatisfactory 3 “Unszatisfaciory” loans have obvious shorfocomings, which make doubtful the
repayment of the loan under the terms, enviseged by the initial agreament. For
loans classified as “Unsatisfactory”, the primary source of repayment s not
sufficient and the Bank has to seek additional loan repayment sources, such
as the sale of collateral.

Doubiful | “‘Doubtful are lcans which, in addition to having the characterstics of
"Unsatisfactory” loans, have additional shortcomings, which make it doubiful
that ihe loan will be repaid in full under the existing circumstances. The
probability of incurring loss In respect of such loans is high

Bad loans 5 Loans classified as "hopeless” are considered uncollectible and have such a
littie vakue that thelr continuance as assets of tha Bank is nol worlh. This
classification does not mean that the kans have absolutely no likelihood of
recovery, but rather means that the Bank should cease recognising such oans
ardd make effors o get rid of such deb through selling collaleral or make every
effart to collec! the outstanding lean
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Unsatisfactory, Doubtfiul and Hopeless are classified as impaired loans. Group used those classification also for
Olher financial assals.

External ratings are assigned o counterparties by independent infernational raling agencles, such as S&P,
Moady's and Fitch, These ratings are publicly available, Such ratings and the corresponding ranga of probabilities
of default {"PC7) are applied for the following financial instrumenis: interbank placements and Investments In debt
securitias.

Expected credit loss (ECL) measurement. ECL s a probability-weighted estimata of tha presant value of fulure
cash shorifalls (Le., the weighted average of credil logses, with the respective risks of default ocouring ina given
time period used as welghish, An ECL measurement is wunbissed and is defermined by evalualing a range of
possible cutcomes. ECL measurament is based on fowr components used by the Group: Probabdity of Default
("PD), Exposure at Default ("EAD"Y, Loss Given Default {"LGD™ and Discount Rata.

EAD is an estimate of exposure at & future default date, taking inlo account expected changes in the exposura
after the reporting period, ncluding repayments of principal and interest, and expected drawdowns on cormmitbad
facillies, The EAD an credd ralsted commitments is estimated waing Credit Conversion Factar ("CCF”). CCF iz &
coafficiant that shows the probability of conversion of the commilted amounts to an on-balance shesl exposura
within & defined pericd. The Group’s management estimatas that 12-manth and lifetima CCFs are materially the
same. PD is an estimate of the [ikelihood of defaull to occur aver a given fime period. LGD = an estimate of the
Ioss arising on defaull. i is based on the difference between the contrectual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect o recelve, including from any collateral. |t 1z usually expressed as a percenfage of the EAD,
The expected Insses are discounted to present value at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
represents the effective interest rate (*EIR") for the financial instrument or an approximation thereod.

Expected credil losses are modelled over a 12-month perod for Ingtruments without a significant increase In credit
rsk (i.e, Stege 1), and over the instrument's [ifetime for those with a significant increass in credit nsk or cradit-
impared instruments, The Weime perled 5 equal 1o the remalning contractual perod to malurity of debt
imnstruments, adjusted for expected prepayments, if any.

For kban commwtments and financial guarantee cantracts, It is the canfractual period over which an entily has a
presanl confractual obligation to extersd credit.

Management models Lifefime ECGL, thal is, losses that resull from all possible defaull events over the remaining
lifetirne period of fhe financial Instrument, The 12-month ECL, represents a portion of lifefime ECLs that result
from default evenis on a financial instrumert thal are possible within 12 months after the reporting period, or
ramaining fallme perfod of the financlal insfrument if It 1= less than a year.

The ECLs that are astimated by management for the purposes of these financial statements are point-in-time
esfimates, rather than throwgh-the-cycle estimates that are commonly used for regulafory purposas. The
estimates consider forward looking nformation, that is, ECLs reflect probability weighied development of key
macrseconomic variables that have an impact on cradit rsk.

Thi main indicators thal a debt inancial instrument Is credit-impaired (Slage 3) hclude:
For corporate and privede individual borrowars and other financial Instruments, except for inter-bank oparations:

the borrower s more than 90 days past due on 15 contractual payments;

Inan restructuring with signs of financial difficulties;

presence of an event of impairment (default) at the repoding date, which affected the classification of othar
financkal Instruments of the debtor in the Bank as Stage 3

= initiation/presence of legal proceedings on the borrower's debt to the Bank (bank being both as a plaintiff and
a8 dafendant),

L

For Inter-bank operafions;

= axternal rating of CC or below as of the reporting date;

= the borrower s more than 30 days past due on s contractual payments;

= negative information on the issuer/counterparty, including lquidation, restrecturing, or reorganazation due to
inabdlity to meet obligations, or calastrophic evenis leading to suspended operations;
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset (POCI);
cross-default on other obligations of the Bsuer'counterparty.
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For purposes of disclosure, the Group fully aligned the defintion of defaull with the definition of credit-impaired
assets, ’

An instrument s conslderad to no longer be in default (i.e. 1o have cured) when & no longer meets any of the
default criteria for a consecutive period of three months. This period of three months has been determined basead
an an analysls that considars tha likedihood of a financial instrumant retuming to default status after curing by
using differant possible defindions of cures.

The assassment whether or not there has been & significant increase In credt risk (" SICR’) sinca initial racognition
i performed on an individual basis. For loans issued (o individeals and corparate entities and interbank Inans at
AC, SICR is assessed by monitoring the triggers stated befow, The criteria used Lo ientify an SICR are monitored
and reviewed perodcally for appropriateness by the Group's Risk Management Depariment. The presumption,
being that there have been significant increases In credit risk since Initial recognition when fnancial assets are
more than 30 days past due, has not been rebutted.

The main factors either of which indicates that a significant increaaa in credit risk cocurred are;

For loans issuad to legal entities:

= the borrower is mora than 30 days past due on ite contractual paymants;
= rasfructuring of loans, excluding clients classified as cradit-impalrod;

# availability of one or several alarme according lo (b lis! of alarms,

For loans 1o individuals and individual enterprenaurs:
s ftha borrower I more than 30 days past due on its confractual paymaents;
s resiructuring of loans, excuding clients classified as cradit-impaired.

For interbank opesations:

o cradil rating downgrade by 1-3 notches depending on the credit rating at initlal recognition;

» payment delay of interast {coupon) andfor principal by more than 1 day (excluding techaical delays);

= nagative information about the iszvercounterparty from internal or external sources, not indicative of
impairment.

The level of ECL that is recognised in these consolidated financial statements depends on whether the credit risk
of the borrower has increased significantly since initial recognition. This Is a three-stage model for ECL
measurement. A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial recognition and its credit risk has not
increased significantty since Initial recognition has a credit loss allowance based on 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), F
a S|CR since initial recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to Stage 2 but is not yet deemed to
be credit-impaired and the loss allowance is based on |fetime ECLs. If a financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financlal instrument is moved to Stage 3 and loss allowance is based on lifetime ECLs.

The consequence of an assel being in Stage 3 is that the entity ceases to recognise interest income based on
gross carrying value and applies the asset's effective interest rate to the camrying amount, net of ECL, whan
calculating interest incom. Il there is evidence Lthat the SICR criteria are no longer met, the instrument s
fransfarmed back to Stage 1. IF an exposure has been ransfermed (o Stage 2 based on a qualitative indicator, the
Group moniters whether thal indicator confinues o exist or has changed.

ECL for POCI financial assets is always measured on a lifetime basls, The Group Iherefore only recognises the
cumulative changes in lifelime expecied oredit losses

The Group has three approaches for ECL measurement: (1) sssessment on an individus! baais; (i) assessment
on & collective basis, and ; (i) assessment based on axternal ratings. The Group performed |ndividual assessment
of ECL for Stage 3 borrowers with the oulstanding loans receivables which are above 1% of fotal regulatory capiial
of the Bank &t reporting period date. As &t 31 December 2024, the management assesses that threshold of UZS
34,000 million s appropriate given the size of loan portfolio and internal sk assessment procedures. The Group
parforms an assessment on 8 collective basis for the remaining loans, such as corporate and individual loans,
which are not conslderad (o ba individually significant and classified in Stage 3. The Group perdorms assessments
based on exiernal ratings for interbank loans. ECL assessment on an individual basis s performad based on
determination ane of the following repayment strategies:

- "Restructunng’ strategy: restructuring the loan, revising credit conditions and developing an action plan that can
allow the bormower to repay the loan;
- Sirgtegy "Realization of collateral®; liquidation of & loan by zelling cobateral,
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The choice of the most appropriate sirategy & detarmined based on the individual situation of the borrower, its
availabilily and conseni to cooperation, the availablity of opporiunities lo restore achvity, production or the
possibility of eliminating the causes that caused Iosses and the inabiity to service the debt, the availability of funds
fram other business lines of the borrower, value, condition of pledges regarding debt and other factors.

When assessmeant is perfarmad on a collective basis, the Group analyses its exposures by segments determinged
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, such ihat exposures within a group have homogeneous of similar
risks, The key shared credil characteristics considered are: type of customar (such as corporale or indhvidus).
product type (car loans, consumer loans etc.). The different segments also reflect differences in credit risk
parameters such as PD and LGD. The appropriatensess of groupings is monitored and reviewed on a perodic
basis by the Risk Management Departmant.

In general, ECL is the sum of the multiplications of the following credit fek parameters: EAD, PD and LGD, that
are defined as explaned above, discounted to present value using the instruments effective interas! rate, The
ECL iz detarmined by predicting credit risk parameters {EAD, PD and LGD) for each future year over the 12-
months or lifetime period for each individual exposure or collective segment. Thesa three components are
miultiplied together to calculate an ECL for each future pariod, which is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summed up. The discounl rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interast rate or an
approximation theraeof.

Az al 31 Decamber 2024, the mndification of the terms and conditions of the renegoliated loans and advances o
customers was not substantial and did not result in their derecognition. The Group classified them within Stage 2
and 3 and did not change their allowance for impaimment from lifetime o 12-month ECLs.

The key principles of calculating the credit risk parameters. Two types of PDs are usad for calculating ECLs:
12-month PD and ifetime PD, 12-month PD is based on the averaging of historical migration matrices and default
data, adjusted for supportable forward-looking information. Lifetime PD and lifetime migration matrices are derived
thrawgh matrix multiplication (Markov chain methodology) and further adjusied for forward-looking information
when available. PDs are modellad separately based on ihe characieristics of each portfolio segment and product
typa, taking into aceount differances in risk profiles and behaviour patterns.

LGD represents the Group's expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by the type of
counterparty, type of the exposure (impaired or non-impaired), and the avallability of coliateral,

For the reporting period, the Group calculated LGD based on historical recavery stelistics of defaulted loans. The
Group differentiates between noi credit-impaired and credit-mpaired instruments, taking into account the
diminishing recoveries after default over tme. LGD is determined separately for corparate entities and privata
individuale, raflecting diferences in their risk and recovery profilas,

ECL measurement for financial guarantees and loan ecommitments. The ECL measurement for lhese
instruments includes the same steps as described above for an-balance sheeat exposures and differs with respect
tn EAD catculation, The EAD is a product of credit conversion factor ("CCF") and amaount of the commitment. CCF
for undrawn credit lines of corporate customers, credit cards issued to individuals and for financial guarantess is
defined based on stalistical analysis of past exposures at cefaull.

Principles of assessment based on external ratings. Cartain exposures have external credit risk ratings and
these are used to estimate credit isk parameters PD and LGD from the default and recovery stalistics published
by the respeciive rating agancies.

Market risk,. The Group takes on exposure o market risks. Market risks arise from open posttions in inlarest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The Group
manages its market isk through risk-based limits established by the Group Supervisory Board on the value of risk
that may be accepted, The risk-basad limils are subject o review by the Group Councll on 8 guarterly basis.

Owverall Group's position is split betwean Corporate and Retail banking positions. The exposure of Corporate and
Retall banking operations to market risk 5 managed through 1he system of limits monitored by the Treasury
Dupartmeant on a daily basis, However, the use of this approach doss not prevent losses outside of these limita in
the event of more significant market movemeants.

Currency risk. In respect of currency risk, management sets limits on the level of expoaure by currency and in
total for both overnight and intre-day positiena, which are monitored daily.
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The table below summarises the Group's exposure to forelgn currency exchange rate risk at the end of the
raporting pariod;

Monctary Maonetary
financial flnancial Dervathas Hat balance sheet
In milions of Uzbekiafan Sowms assals ligbilities position
2024
UEs 1427804 (14,405, 753) . {126,737}
LIE Daollars 4 235 566 (4380 B24) {B, 888 {154,148}
Euros aT6. 127 (E1B.666) - (42,530}
Chinsasa Yuan - = 3 3
ther 56,840 (35,332) = 21,608
Todal 10,147,648 (19,440,575} (&, 805) (301,811)
2023
UFS 140,402 {8,670,064) g (420,662)
US Dollars 4,090,161 (3802 4189} (167,155) 28,687
Euros 640,561 {614,351 - 35,210
Swiss francs s ; 4 e
Chinsese Yuan - {175,468) 170,760 {4, 709)
Cther 10,608 (23,808) {4,290)
Total 12,808,628 {13,276,201) 3,605 (364,958)

The following table presants sensitivities of profit or loss and equity 1o reasonably possible changes in exchange
rates applied at the end of the reporting period relative to the functional currancy of the respective Group entities,
wilh all other variables held conetant:

At 31 December At 31 Decamber 2023

024 Impact on profit
Impact on profit or loas and equity

In matttons of Uzbheklstan Soums or loss and egquily
LIS Dollars strengtihening by 5% (2023 10%) (7,707) 2.550
LS Daollars weakening by 5% (2023 10%) roror [2.858)
EUR strengthening by 2% (2023 weakening by 10%) [B51) 3524
EUR weakening by 2% (2023 strengihoning by 10%} B51 (3.521)

Fates used for the sbove sensitivity analysis are based on the actual change of forelgn exchange rates for
respective currencies during each year, The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances denominated
in curencies other than the functional currency of the respective entity of the Group.

Imterast rate risk. The Group takes on exposure o the eflects of luctuations in the prevalling levels of market
interest rates on ite financial position and cash flows. Interest marging may increase as a resull of sich changes
but may reduce or create lossas in the evant that unexpecied movements arise. Management monitors on a daiy
basis and sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be underiaken,

The fable below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks, The table presenis the aggregated
amounts of the Group’s floating rate of financial assets and liabilites al carmying amounts:




Jadnt = stock commarcial “Alogabank™
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2024

Demand and From 1 o From & to Orver Tatal
N e h;ﬂ;m B months 12 months 12 months
S
31 Decamber 2024
Total financial assets - Bel 2444 B5,.522 1,038 876 1,208 642
Total financial Eabiities [7.692) (702 645 (283,846) {383,172) {1,977,555)
Mot interest sansitivity gap
at 31 Decamber 2024 (7 683} 1B18.601) (198,324} 55,704  [TEB,913)
3 Decamber 2023
Total financial assets 34 387 97,858 107,433 1,038,606 1,278,375
Total financial liabilties (272,140)  {120,867) (231,668) (BET,003) {1,524,478)
Nat interest sensktivity gap
__at 31 Deacember 2023 (237,753) (22,808)  (124,235) 141,693 (243,103)

As al 31 December 2024, if interest rates at that date had been 110 basis points lower (2023; 200 basiz points
lower) with all other variables held constant, net prafit for the year would have baen UZS 8,458 million (2023: UZS
4,862 million) highear,

If interest rates al thal date had been 110 basis points higher (2023: 200 basis points higher) with all other
vartables held constant, net profit for the year would have baan UZS B,458 million (2023: UZLS 4,862 million) lower.

Financial labdlites with a fioating rate comprise of other borrowed funds and subordinated debt, of which 48%
(2023: 45%) are al ivating rales.

2024 2023
In % p.a. UES UsD EUR Other  UZS uso EUR Othar
Assate
Cassh ol cash equivalents 11,5%-16% - : 185
0%
Dwa from other banks e-15% -9.5% . 16%  0%-10% 4% - -
Investmeant in dobl sacuritias 18- 8.89%: - - - 16.58%
Loans and advances i
Cusiomers D%-34% Fh-16% 6% - 1%37% %1% 5%-11% -
Liabilities
Due to cther banks R 6.5%-10% - - W B2NA%
Customar accounts 0%-30% 0%-Th - - O%-M% OR-B5%
187 % 25 4. TE%-
Diher barnowad funds 0A5-18. 55 045 -8 54% 1.4% 6H% DMh-15% 10.09% BM% 625%
4 3%
Suborcineted debt - 43%-607T% < i . G.07% -
Lemse kabiitas 22865% - - - £4.0F% = &

The sign “-* in the table above means that the Group does nol have the respective interest bearng assels or
liabilitias in the cormesponding currency,

Other price risk. The Group is exposed to prepayment risk through providing fixed rate loans, including
mortgages, which give the borrower the right to sarly repay the loans. The Group's cumrent year profit or less and
equity at the current reporting date would not have bean significantly impacted by changes in prepayment rates
because such loans are carried at amortised cost and the prepayment right Iz at or close to the amortised cost of
the loans and advances to customers (2023 no materal impact). Tha Group has na significant exposune (o equity
price risk,

Geographical rizk concentrations. The geographical concentration of the Group's financial assets and liabilites
at 31 Dacember 2024 & sel out below:
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b kbt 6 LichakiniAn Siwames Uzbekistan DECD  MNon-OECD Russia Total
R R e e
Cash and cash aquleabenis 2.0511,683 48,217 21372 33,780 2.6185,062
Diue from ather hanks 186, 446 21,108 - - 217 554
Loans and advancas to 13,041,918 - - - 13,041,918
cusiomens
Investment in dabt securnties 2,178,373 - - - 2,178,373
Inveatments in equity securiias 103,126 - - - 103,126
Mhar financal assats 1,004, 742 - - - 1,004,742
Total financial assets 18,126,208 69,325 21,372 33,780 18,250,775
LiabllkHies
Due to othear banks 1,840,685 23 BH.111 74,838 2. 941,157
Customer accounts 12,780,423 - - - 12,780,423
Hher bosrowed funds 2,823,382 1,298,517 17 A58 - 4 130,368
Subordinaled debd 171,721 - - - 171,131
Other financial labilibes 216,781 * — —— 216,781
Total financial liabllities 17,873,012 1,288 040 102,570 T4, B3R 19,449 460
Wt halanca sheat position

__ 8531 December 2024 1,153,286 (1,229,715) {81,198} {41,058) {198,685)
Cradit related commitrments

__{Note 32) - S . ", "1 5 2 - 1,844,429

The Group maintalne a correspondent account with JSC “Asia Invest Bank®, which is located in the Russian
Federation and is a subsidiary of the JSC "National Bank of foreign economy of activity of Republiz of Uizbakistan®
which ls state owned bank of Republic of Uzbekistan, JSC “Asia Invest Bank” is not subject to intemational
sanctions, and there are no restrictions or limitations on fransactions of operations conduciad with this Bank. Also,
the Bank has vosiro accounts with Credit Union "Payment Center” Lid. and JSC "Solid Bank of Moscow” which
are nor-sancticned entities. The Group monilors gaopalitical developments and assessas related risks.

The geagraphical concentration of the Group's financial aasets and Rabibties al 31 December 2023 is sel out
O

I WS of Lizbakistan Sounms Uzbakistan OECD Hen-DECD Ruseia Total
Asaals
Cash and cash egquivalants 1,318,116 ol £A1T wa1n 1,474,301
D from odhar banks oA, ET 2487 64,233 3,039 a55.816
Loans and advances 1o cusiomers 10,435,367 - - = 10,485,367
Investrment i debl securilies 217, TRE - - - 247,106
Invesimants in equity securilies 30807 - - - a5.607
Orthear financial assals A0, 236 . - - 40236
Total financial assets 12,887,318 56,817 BE,B840 102,457 12,843,233
Liabilities
Due 1 olher banks 054,632 807 TE 042 144,521 1,144,772
Cuslomesr acsounts B.518. 734 - - - B.518, 726
Olhar boroved funds 1,025.412 730,264 300 444 175,460 3 230,501
Subtrdineted debi 160,342 - - - 160,242
Diher fnancid liabilites 237 - A = o5 770
Total financial liabliites 11,7E2, 882 730,873 474,456 288,590 13,278,201
Net balance sheet position

__as 31 December 2023 004,437 (674,056 {407 B16) {187,533) {364,968)
Credit related commitmants

_{Note 32) 1,110,506 ' . - 1,110,565

Other risk concentrations. Management monitors and discloses concenfrations of credit risk by oblaining
reports lisling exposures o borrowers with aggregated loan balances in excess of 10% of net assets. Reter fo
Maota B,

Liguidity risk. Liguidity rigk i= defined as the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meating obligations
arsociated with financial liabiities. The Group is exposad to daily calls on its available cash resources from
overnight deposits, curent accounis, maturing deposite, loan draw downg, guaraniess and from margin and atkar
calls on cash sattled derivative instruments. Tha Group does not mairdain cash resources to meet all of these

G
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needs 25 experience shows that a minimum level of reinvestment of maluring funds can be predicted with a high
level of cartainty. Liquidity risk is managed by the Resources Management Committee of the Group

The Group seeks 1o maintain a stable funding base comprising primarily amounts due to other banks, corporale
and retail customer deposis and invest the funds in inter-bank placements of liquid assels. in order 1o be abla (o
respond quickly and smodthly 1o unforezeen liquidity requirements.

The lguidity managemeant of the Group requires considering the evel of fiquld assets mecessary 1o setlle
obligations as they fall due, mainigining acoess (o a range of funding sources, mainlaining funding contngency
plans and moniioring batance sheed lquidity ratics agalnst regulatony requirements. The Group calculates Nguidity
rafizs on & monthly basis In accordance with the requirement of the Central Bank of Uzbekistan, These ratios are
calculated using figures based on National Accounting Standards,

The Treasury Department receives Information about the liguidity profile of the financial sasefs and liabiliies.

The Treasury Depariment then provides for an adeguate portiolio of short-lerm liquid assets, largely made up of
ghort-term liquid trading securites, deposits with banks and other inter-bank faciliies, to ensura that sufficient
liquidity is maintainad within the Group as a whole,

The daily liquidity position is monitoresd and requlae Rguidity stress testing under a variety of scenarios covaring
both normal and more sevare market conditions is padformed by the Treasury Deparimant.

The table balow shows liabilities at 31 December 2024 by thair remaining contractaal maturity, The amounts of
liabilifbes disclosed in the malurty table are the confractual undiscounted cash flows. Thesa undiscounted cash
flows differ from the amount included in the statement of financial position because the statement of financial
position amount is based on discounted cazh flows. Financial derivatives are incleded at the contractual amounis
to be paid or received, unless the Group expects to closa the derivalive position belore its maturity date in which
casa the derivallves are incuded based on the expected cash flows,

Whan the amount payvable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined by referancea to the condilions existing
at the reporting date, Foreign currency payments are translated using the spol exchange rate al the and of e
reporling period.

Liguidity requirements to support calls under guarantess and standby letters of credit are considerably less than
the amount of the commitment disclosed in the below maturity analysia, becausa the Group does nol generally
expect the third party to draw funds under the egreement The tfotal outsianding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credil as included in the above maturily fable does not necessariy reprasent Tuture cash
requirements, since many of these commitments will expire or terminate wilhout being funded.

Custempr accounts are classified in the below analyeis based on confractual maiuritiss. However, in accordance
with Uzbekistarn Civil Code, individueals heve a right to withdraw thair deposils prior to maturlly IF they forfelt thedr
rlght to acerued interest,

The matunty analysis of financial instruments at 31 December 2024 is as follows:

Dwemand and Frem 1 to Fram & bo Cver Total
less than Emonths  12months 12 months

In millions of Lizbekistan Sours 1 month =
Liabilthes
Due to othar banks 1,230,526 271,116 575,144 261, 745 2 337,530
Customer accounts 4 427939 2,410,329 3,080,281 B204687 16,213,248
Otfver borrowed funds 56,282 1,043,671 758,432 4214384 6,072,769
Subordinated deb 1,120 5 810 10,500 284 148 205,768
Criiver financial lablitios 200 28 12,514 4187 F.aa3 33,680
Guarantees issued 1,154 201,001 138,472 494 044 835,571
lmpart credit ines A = 193,365 : 193,365
Undravwn cradit lines - A8 347 154,052 613,086 815,485
Tatal niial future ]

. ﬁmm phrte HJ;T“““ 5,026,304 2,002,800 4,014,621 12473887 27007414

The malurty analysis of financlal instruments at 31 December 2023 is as follows:
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Demand and From 1 to From & to Ower Total
lass than 6 months 12 months 1Z montha

in millions of Uzbeistan Soums L.
Liahilities
Dua fo odher banks 160,849 474,028 19,035 430,733 1.264.845
Cusiomear aeeounts R 1,540,514 2,151,381 4,059,419 10,720 202
CEhor bonrgwad funts 56,181 S15,103 i, 140 2,01 3, 3 3,492 460
Subprdinated debl [ER 4533 4,504 246,205 286,073
Cther financial liabilites 208.17a 3513 4,211 11,8482 LE6 004
Cussraniees jssusd 822,180 - - - 622,190
Imgcet credit lines 161,237 . . - 161,237
Undrawn cradit ines 337,130 - - - 27 139
Totel potential future payments

for nancisl obflgations 4,787,403 2,745,691 2,787,211 6,761,465 17,001,830

The Group does not use the above maturity analysie based on undiscounted confractual maturities of assels,
[kabilfies and contingent labiitles to manage liquidity, Instead, the Group monifors expected maturities and the
resulting expaciad liquidity gap as at 31 December 2024 as follows:

Demand and From 1 ta From & to Owar Total
TR TRy § g ey e Ininnnm & months 12 months 12 months
SOUNTS
Aagals
Cash and cash equivalienis 2615062 . - " 2.615,062
D Trom other banks K3 Al 2180 - 154 253 217,554
Loans and achvances b
ik 721,336 2763474 21632 452 T 408,017 13,041,818
Imvestmant In detbt
| sacurilies | - 4m1.504 ATE a7 1,310,777 2.1Th 373
nwastmants i equ
e PN 3 : - 103,128 102,126
Cither financial asseals 10 T2 - - - 1 08, T2
Total assets 4,482 260 3,267,163 2,520,579 BA71,773 19.250,775
Liabilities
Cue o othar banks 1.217.971 228,940 532351 161,895 2,141,157
Cuslormsr aceounts 4 372220 1, 727314 2501651 4,279,218 12,780,423
Chhar borrowad funds a0 4649 B3 .7 634 144 2,550,838 4 130,368
Subrerdinaiad debd - 4,829 - 167,902 171,731
Caher financal liabilites 207 B9 & Bas = = 216,781
Cuaranieas issied 1,154 201,001 138,472 494 544 835,671
It crodil lines - - 183,285 - 193,365
Undrawn credil ines = A5 34T 154,062 813,086 815,485
Total liabilitles 5,729,710 3,142,233 4154035 8,267,203 21,293,881
Mot llquidity gap {1,267 450} 144 530 (1,624 4580) 03,870 (2,043,108}
Cumulative liquidity gap
at 31 December 2024 {1.267,450) {1,122, 5200 (2, 7T46,976) (2,043,106}

The Group's expected liquidity gap Is negative as at 31 December 2024, Managemenl regutarly performs sirass
tests to assess the potential outcomes due fo liguidity mismatches and evaluaies results to prepare aclion plans.
In addition, Central Bank monitors Bank's compliznce with prudential rafios

The prudential raties nclude Liquidty coverage ratio, and the Bank's lquidity position was in compliance with the
required minimum &= 8t 31 Decambear 2024

Management believes that in spite of & substantial portion of customer accounts is on damand, the fact that
significant portion of these customer accounts ane of [arge state controlled elecommunication enfities which are
gither the Group’s shareholders or redated enfities under commaon candrol and the pasi experience of the Grouwn,
indicate that these cusiomer accounis provide a long-term and stabée source of funding for the Group. Total
negailve liguidity gap with maturity up o 1 year has comprised of LEZS 2,746,976 milkon which inchedas short term
deposits from the state controlled entities in the amount of UZS 1,966,727 million.

The maturily analysis of financial Instruments at 31 December 2023 |5 as follows:
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Derand and Fram 1t Froim G ta Ovar Total
hess than & maonths 12 months 12 months
Assols
Cash and cash aguivelants 1,474,301 - - - 1,474,301
Due frarm other hanks 178,452 259,17 65,024 152 5EA 655816
Loans and advances o cusiomens Et1,978 1,867,181 1,633,628 &, 188 553 10,485 387
Inwestment In debt sacurities T2.662 = T2.63T T2.507 217 TH6
Investments in aguity securilies - - - a9.687 A aar
Hher financial assats J6,631 - - 3,605 40 236
Total assete 23574014 2210898 1,671,100 6,457,131 12,813,233
Liabllities
Due o other Banks 153,373 GE3, TED - 337620 1,144 772
Customer accounts 2,865 908 1,136 985 1,780,506 2734837 B.518, 726
Mher borrowed funds 332,821 220,297 346,514 2,330,854 3,230,501
Subordnetad dedit - - - 160 3442 160, 32
Other financial Hakilities 223,770 - = = 223,770
Guaranines issund 622,180 - - = G2z, 150
Import credit lines 164,237 - - - 169, 23F
Undrawn crodil Gnes 327130 - TR . - b rr s
Total lkabilities 4,608,538 2,011,081 2,127,518 5,563,663 14,388, TET
Net liqui ap (2,112,524) 100,847 (456,325) £03 468 [1,4T5,534)
Gumulative liguidity gagp at
3 Decomber 2023 (2,112 524} (1,812,677} (2, 20,002  {1,475534)

31 Management of Capital

The Group's chjectives when managing capial ang {i] to comply with the capital reguirements set by the Cantral
Bank of Lizbekistan, and (i) 1o safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a geing concern, Compliance with
capital adequacy rafioz set by the Central Bank of Uzbekistan 8 monitared monthly with reporis outlining thair
calculation reviewsd and signad by the Chairman and Chief Accountant,

Undﬁr the current capital requirerants set by the Central Bank of Usbekistan, banks have to maintain ratios of:
Ratio of regulatory capital to risk weighted assels ("Regulatory capital ratio”) above the prescribad

minimum level of 13 percent (2023; 13 percent);

- Ratio of Bank's tier 1 capital to risk weighted assefs ("Capital adeguacy ratio’) above the prescribad

minimum level of 10 percent (2023; 10 percent);

- Ratio of Bank's tier 1 main capétal to risk weighted assets ("Main capital adequacy ratio™) above the
prescribed minimum kevel of 8 percant (2023: 8 parcant);
- Ratio of Bank's tier 1 capital o total assels less indangibles ("Leverage ralio”} above the prescribed

minimum level of 6 parcent (2023: 6 parcent).

The Group's objectives when managing capital are (i) (o comgly with the capital requirements set by the Central
Bank of Uzbekistan, and (i} to safeguard the Group's ability o contnue 85 a going concem. Compliance with
capital adequacy ratios set by the Central Bank of Uzbekistan is monitored monthly with reports. sutlining thelr
calculation reviewed amnd signed by the Chairman and Chiel Accountant.

31 Decembwer 31 December

2024 2023

in mitions of Uzbekizfan Sowms _(unaudited) {umaudibed)
Tier 1 capitad 2,887,230 2,030,476
Tier 2 capital 512,004 472144
Tolal regulatory capital &,388,343 2,903,625
Risk - walghted assets 24,385,947 17,647,513
Gap-ll:al adeguacy ratk 11.8% 11.5%
_Regulatory capial stlo 13.9% 18.4%
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As al 31 Decamber 2023, the Group was in bresch of CBU covenant "Maximum exposure o a single bormawer of
group of related borrowers to Tier 1 Capital and “Maximum exposure to a real estate investment”. During the
2024, the Bank has implemented necessary remedies to be in compliance within the required level set by CBU.
Remadies actions has comprised of the early rapaymeant of borrower's obligation as well as issuing new ordinary
share in the amount of 500,000 million with par value of 1 UZS in the total amount of UZS 500,000 million
(MNote 21},

As gt 31 Decembar 2023, the Group was in breach of CBU covenant “Maximum axposure 1o a real estate
investment™. As at 31 Decemiber 20024, this predential ratio has been recovered throwgh sefling of its Head office
bailding located in IT-Park and are in compliance with reguired level set by CBU (Note 24).

a2 Contingencies and Commitmeants

Legal proceedings. From fime o time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are
recelad, Ontha basis of Bs own estimates and both internal and external professional advice Management s of
the opinion that no mataral loszes will be incured in respect of daims and aceordingly no provision has bean
made In these consalidated financial statements,

Tax legislation. Uzbek tax, currency and customs legislation is subject fo varying inferpretations, and changes,
which can accur frequantly. Managemant’s interpratation of such legislation as applied 1o the transactions and
activity of the Growp may be challenged by the relevant regional and federal authorties, Recent evanis within the
Lizbekistan suggest that the tax authorities may be taking a2 more asserlive position in thelr Interpretation of the
legisiation and assessments, and it is possible thal transactions and activities that have not been challenged in
the past may be challenged. As a resull, significant addilional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed.

Fiscal periods ramain apan to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years preceding the
year of review. Under certaln circumstances reviews may cover longer pariods.

Managemsant believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and the Group's tax, currency
legisiation and customs positiors will be sustained. Accordingly, at 31 December 2024 no provision for potential
tax liabilities nad been recorded (2023 Nil). The Group estimates that it has no patential obligations from exposura
to other than remote tax risks (2023; Mil).

Capifal expenditure commitments. At 31 December 2024 the Group has confraclueal capital expenditure
commitments in respect of construction of its Head guarier office in International businesa center "Tashkent City”
iMote 14} in the amount of UZS 124,619 million {2023:U25 337 430 million). The Group has already allocated tha
necessary resources in respect of these commitments. The Group believes that fulure net income and funding
will be sufficient to cover these and any simidar commitrmeants.

Covenants of the Bank's loan agresments with ICD. Tha Group Is subjact to certain covanants in regards o
its Line of Financing Agreameant with lslamic Corporation for the Development of the Private Secior (the "ICD")
with the purpose o finance nvestment projects of small and madium sized anterprisas within the Republic of
Uzbekiztan. The Bank has the authority to act as the 1G0D's agent to utilize the line of financing not excaeding LISD
30,000 thousand (in UZS equivalent; UZS 387 614 milion) for the purpose of investing in the ICD's aligible
projects and thus the outstanding balances are accounted for in the credit related commitments under guerantess
issued,. Guarantees related commitments for total eutstanding amount of UZS 635,327 millon were appropriately
disclosed n Note 30.

Covenants of the Bank's loan agreaments with ITFC. The Group is subject 1o certain covenants in regards {o
its Line of Trade Financing Agreament with Intemational Islamic Trade Finance Corporation {the “ITFC") with tha
purpose to finance investment projects of small and medium sized enterprises within the Republic of Lizbakistan.
The Bank has the authority to act as the ITFC's agent 1o utllize the lne of financing not excesding USD 15.000
thousand (in UES equvivaient: UES 193,807 millon) for the purpose of investing in the ICD's efigible projects and
thus the outstanding balances are accounted for in the credil related commitments under guaraniees issued
Guaraniees related commilments for tolal outstanding amount of UES 137822 milon were appropriately
disclosed in Mole 30,

Ag al 31 Decamber 2024, the Group was in compliance with all covenants on the above Bank's lcan agresments.
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Credit related commitments. The primary purpose of these inatruments is o ensura that funds are available lo
a customer as required. Guaraniees and standby letters of credit, which represent irevocable assurances that
the Group will make payments in the event that a cusiomer cannot maet its obligations to third parties, earry the
same credit ik as [sans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit, which are written undertakings by the
Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third party 1o draw drafis on the Group up to a stipulated amournt
under spacific ferms and conditions, are collateralised by the underying shipments of goods to which they relate
or cash deposits and, therefore, carry less risk than a dirsct bormowing,

Commitments o extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credil in the form of loars,
guarantess or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credil, the Group is polentially
exposed o loss in an amount equal to the tolal unuesed commitments, if the unused amounts were fo be drawn
down. However, the Bkely amount of loss is less than the olal unused commitments since most commitments to
exiend credil are contingent upen cusiomers maintaining specific credit standards.

Tha Group monitors the term 1o matuwrity of credit related commitments, because longer-term commitments
generally have = greater degree of credit rsk than shorlerderm commitments Oulstanding credit related
commilments are as follows:

Mate 31 Decembar 31 Decembar
In miliions of Uzbeklsian Soums 2024 2023
Guarantess issuad 235 645 822,180
Import credil lines 195297 161,237
Loan commitments 817, 164 327130
Total gross credit related commitments 1,848 106 1.110.566
Lass: Provision for guarantess ssued 14 {74 {61)
Laas: Frovision for lattar of cradits 14 (TG0 (ETT)
Lass: Frovisien for loan commibmeants 4 (1,670) [2,181)
Less: Commibment colateralised by cosh deposits 17 (1.9683) (78.405)
Total credit related commitments, net of provislon and cash
coverad axposUres 1,844,431 1,029,332

65
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The quality of contigiencies and commitmenis for 2024:

Loan commitmenis Guarantass iEsued Lettars of credit TOTAL
EI-BQB- 1 iugl-i S‘Iﬂu 3 Stage 1 = E'I:ag-’_i -Ed:p“-hﬂ:l—ﬂ:p-ﬁ gt 1 Stage 2 Staga 3
12=-month ECL Lrgitma Liedme EGL  12-month EGL LHetime Litetime 12-menih Lifetirne Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL ECL
Gross amount
a3 at 11 Decomber 2023 278,162 8,975 2 622,180 - - 161,237 - = 1,110,568
- Transfar from stege 1 = x % {BEAT1) a6.371 - S = = =
- Teanafar from stegs 2 14,376 (14,376) = s . . » . - -
= Transfar from staga 3 & = z = = = 2 : : =
Mew assels ssued or acoured a4 ez - - 461,116 - - 166,568 . . 1,451,778
Matured or deracognized (279, 466) {34,583} 2 {247 861) . - {152,508) . - [Me238)
asaets (excapl for writa off)
Firsign anchangs dfiecences . - = = = = = %
Grogs amount
as at 31 December 2024 817,184 - - 749,274 86,371 - 195,297 - - 1,848,106
Lean commitments Gurarantess issusd Lettors of credit
Etage 1 Stage 2 Biage 3 Siage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
1Z-month ECL  Lifstima ECL  Lifetime ECL  12-menth ECL Lifelime ECL  Lifetims ECL 1% Lifstime ECL  Lifetime ECL
Lobs aliowance for EGL
ag at 31 Dacornber 2823 1,582 502 1 & - - 577 - - A
- Transfer from stage 1 b 5 5 ,
- Transhar from slags 7 a8 B8 . i 5 L7 = 3 o =
- Tranater from slegs 3 . . = 5 - s = - =
Mew assetn jsausd or asguired 1,562 ) 3 &0 g 2 738 - = 2,450
Matured or derecognized (1,851) i522) (1) {47} £ = I 56| - ' (2,737}
assats (excapt for wits off)
Farsign axchangs difetences . - - z _ L 2]
Loss allowance for ECL
as at 31 Deceamber 3024 1,679 - - & B - TES x 2,822

2l
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The guality of contigisncies and commitments for 2023

Loan commitments Guarantees isswad Letters of credit TOTAL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Siage 2 Stage 3 Simge 1 Siage 2 Stage 3
12-monih EGL  Lifstines ECL  Lifetlme ECL  12-month EGL  Lifetime ECL  Lifelims ECL 1Z2-month Lifellme ECGL  Lifetima EGL
ECL
Gross amount
as ot 31 December 3022 Tag, 338 12,7898 3183 328 918 - 184 037 176,055 1,411,350
- Transfer from stage 1 (48,577 48,575 2 = = = - = =
- Transfar from stage 2 i F : - s BE (8,801 -
- Trangfar from stage 3 - - - - - - -
Mew assals issued or aoguired 14,888 - - 538,072 - 3216 - S501.176
Maiered of derecognized {398, 088) {12,784) (3,183 (242 8001 {0, 10T (1696,364) (681, B}
atEeh (excapd for wribs oF)
Farsign exchanpe diferences = = i = 5
Gross armount
a8 &l 31 Decamber X33 278,162 45,878 2 B2 190 - 181237 1,110,588
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Smge 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL  {3-month ECL  Lifatime ECL  Lifetime ECL  13-month ECL  Lifetime ECL  Listima ECL
Loss alicwance for ECL
__as at 31 Dacamber 2822 2,080 93 910 31 - - 120 1,642 - 4,865
- Transter from stags 1 {&0s) E08 1 R = : . : E
- Transber from slags 2 - . ' . 333 {329 . -
= Transfer from stage 3 - - - . - - a - -
Tire GRS ISSUET OF Asiured il = = 1 £ = 234 = = -1 |
Matured o deracagnized {254} B3} 21y (14} - {ta0) i1.303) - (2,707}
assels (emcepl lor writs of)
Fanaif e A s G . . -
Loss allowancs for ECL
an at 3 Docamber 2523 1,562 &0a 1 81 - - a77 - - 2028
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33 Derivative Financial Instruments

The fabbe below sets out fair values, at the end of the reporting period, of currencles recelvable or payable under
foreign exchange forward and swap contracts entered into by the Graup. The table reflects gross positions bafore
the metting of any counterparty positions (and payments) and covers the contracls with settlement dates after the
end of the respective reporting perod, The contracis are shori term in nafure;

31 Decamber 2024 31 December 2023

Contracts Contracts Contracis Coniracts
wilh positive  with negative  with positive  with negative
falr value falr value falr walue fair walue

Foreign exchange swaps: fair values, al the

and of the reporling peried, of

= CNY recaivable on sellemeni (+) - 176,316 10 7ED -
= LIS payable on sel@amont (<) . (183,337) {16T.155) .
= USDr receivable on saftemeni (+) = 174,449 - -
= GHNY payable on saldemeant (<) - (176,213) = =
Met falr walue of forelgn exchange swaps - (B, 885} 3,605 -

34 Fair value Disclosuros

Falr wvalue measurements are analysed by level In the falr value hizrarchy as follows: () level one are
moasurements al quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (i} level two
measurements are valuations technigues with all material inputs observable for the asset or llability, alther diractly
{that iz, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derivad from prices), and (i} leval three maaswrements are valuations not
bazed on observable market data (that s, unobzervable inputs), Manageman! applles Judgemant In categonising
financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair valua measvrament uses obsarvable inpuls that require
significant adjustreent, thal measurement s 8 Level 3 measurement. The significance of a valuation Input s
assessed against the fair value messuremant in its entirety.

Falr valua as At

Redationship of
Finanelal Yaluatian Significant

oosealnancal  OSRL Decon Loy modelslondlay  wobewnable  {IESEY
lizbilitias ¥ Inputis] - Bp o i

Dissauried cosh
IFvEsin Therws. Di=cound The grealsr
er 103,126 14,697 Level 3 raater estimaind ru.g::':rr'lt rala, i B
bamed on CEL . smaler fair valua

rafinancing rate

Distourded cash

e Mones. Discound
bl Sl e Thi grevalor
Ofher - 3,505 Lerum 3 rabe esfimatnd [ia s rate et T
wﬂMﬂ: smalar lair valys

Up clindas

Discountad cash

flowes. Hey input -

foarveard rabes

Oihar Gramcial obdoinad fram
Habdiitias-geruaties .48 - Lerved 2 R ripriliani MIA NA

of reporing date
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The Managemeant have ueed the Aeset based valuation approach focusad on investment company’s net sssets
vadus (NAV) and dividend discount model for calcutation of FY amount of equily securities, For dividend discount
madel, the Management built ita expectation based on previous experience of dividends received on financial
ascets at fair value through profit and loss ovar multipla years, and accordingly calculated tha value of using tha
average rate of return on investments. The Management balieves that such approach accurately reflects tha fair
value of thesa securifies, given thay are nof traded. Such financial instrumeants weare categorizad as Level 3.

Ga
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Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy and carrying value of assets and fiabilities not measured

at fair vatue st 31 December 2024 are a5 follows:

in mitlens of Uzbekisian Sowms Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying value
(-ash and cash equivalents 2,679,358 38, 2 615,062
Cue from ather banks - - 210,580 217,554
Loams grd advances 1o customers - - 12,7994 13,041,018
Imeasimant in debi sacuriies - - 2178373 2ATH.ATA
Ciner financial assels - 5 1,084,742 1,094,742
TOTAL 2,579,358 = 16,318,870 18,147,648
In mifions of Uzbakistan Sowms Lewvel 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Carrying value
[Due 1o olfer banks 721,083 ; 1,896,293 2,141,157
Cusiomar accournis - = 12,785,106 12,780 425
Otheer borrowedd funds - - 4,133,614 4,135 368
Subordinated dabt . . 171,731 171,731
_Cither financial liabiities - 8,885 207 B9 216,781
TOTAL 21,983 8,885 19,174,640 19,449 460

Falr values analysed by level in the falr valse hlerarchy and carrying value of assets and liabifities not measured

at fair value at 31 Dacembar 2023 are as follows

in milions of Lizbakistan Soums Leved 1 Loaval 2 Level 3 Carrying value
Cash and cash equivalents 427 420 1,06, BE - 1,474,301
Cua from othar banks - 249 5684 406, 232 655 E18
Loans and atvances 1o customers . 10,480, 3657 10,485 387
Invesimant in debi securtias - - 217, 798 217, Fo6
Citer financial ssaets = _ 40238 40,2306
TOTAL 427,420 1,296,485 11,148,651 12,873,538
In milinns af Uzbakistan Soums Levedl 1 Level 2 Level 3 Carrying value
D bo olher banks - 1,144,772 - 1,144,772
Customer accounts . 2,870,913 0,B47.813 BS16 724
Othver borrowed funds - - 3,230,584 a,230 5
Subardinated dakbd - 180,342 160,342
_Other financial liabilitss - - 223,710 FRITT0
TOTAL - 2,815,685 5.462.516 13,278,201

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss are equity securities and aquity imestments, reglsiered In
Uzbekistan and not publicly traded. Due to the nature of the local financial markets, it is not possible to obiain
current markel value for these invastments. For these investments, falr value iz estimated by reference o the

discounted operating cash flows or dividends from the invesies.

The fair values in level 2 and level 3 of fair value herarchy were eatimated wsing the discounted cash flows
valuation fechnique. Tha fair valua of floaling rale instrumants that are nol quatad in an actave markel was
estimated 1o be egual o their carmying amount. The fair value of unquoted fixed interest rate instruments was
estimated based on estimated futwre cash flows expected jo be received discounted at current Interes! rates for

e Instruments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity,
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a5 Related Party Tranzactlons

Parties are generally considered to ba related if the parties are under commaon control, or one party has the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant
influence over the other parly in making financial or cperational decisorns. In considering each possible related party refationship, attention & directed to the substance of

tha relationshio, not maraly the legal farm,

The Group considers that the tax accruals and paymenis is part of government fiscal policy and therefore does not provide additional usaful information for the users of

the financial siatemands. For details please refer to Note 26,

At 31 December 2024, the outstanding balances with relaled parties were as follows:

Immediate parent Dther significant Aszociates  Entities under  Key managerment Diher Total
company shareholders COMmon perscnmnel related
I iftons of Lzbakdstan Sowms control parlies
Cash and cash equivalants - - - 1,871,055 - - 1,871,055
Due om oher banks - . - 78,854 - 78,554
Loans and advances o cusiomers
{contractual interest rete: 1%-30%] - 380,081 B3, 1651 434 GH2 40 57,783 845, THT
Cradit loss allowance - {1,736} (2786) {4,982) - {1,587} {8,841}
Investmant in debt sacuritias - 2178373 - - - - 2178373
Other aesels - BSB07 - - - 858,107
Due o other banks {conbrsciual inferss)
rata: B.5%-168%) - - - B04,530 - - 804,580
Custamer accounts (oonlraciual
interest rate: 2-22%) - 1.4718,8497 T30 2,567,189 10,253 4,073,480
Cher borrowed funds {contractual - :: .,
$| tereist rals: 0%-14, 5%} 714,772 1,537,253 571,367 2,823,302
ubordindted debt (conlraciual
_interest rales (4.3%-6.07%) : i 2 : 3 : b
The income and expensea items with refated parties for 2024 wera as follows:
Immediate parent Other significant Azsocisles Entities undar Ky mianagemsent Other related Tatal
fn S LE cormpany shareholders cormmon contral parsonned parties
_Sourms
Ini=rest nooms - 337,244 54570 8542 4 18,823 442 126
Inierest axpenss 44 143 140,245 - 1,131 022 452 . 1,315,383
Fes and commission ncoms - 3.27H 1.106 - - ig 4,394
Salares and other benefits - - - - 10,642 - 10,642
Bockal gecufily cosls - - - 1,260 - 1,284
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At 31 Decamber 2023, the culstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Immediate parent Crther significant Assoclates  Entites under  Key management Orther Total
COMpany shareholders COMmon personnel relatad
fn milbons of Lizbekdston Soums control partios
Cash and cash equivalants - = - 108 919 - - 108,949
Due from odher banks - - - 151840 - 131,840
Loans and advances to cusiomers
{contrachual inderest rate: 5.8594-389%) - 62,803 8451 i 120,209 811,428
Cradil Inss aliowance - {097} (51) - (1) (T2} {4,871}
Ivestimant in debt securlties - - - 217,704 - - 217,754
Oither aesats . ] -] 3,606 - 3,705
Do by alhar banks {contrachual intanest
rata: 3-19%) - - . THO.ATT - T69,377
Customer accounts (contractual
interest rate: 2.22%) . 1.578.520 73457 845,407 33 1549 1,566,970
Oither borrowed Furwds {conbrachual
intarest mte: 2%-15%) 405 Bat B10 043 - 71,415 - - 1,08 37T
Subordinated debl (contraciual
interast rates (4.3%-6.07%) - 160,342 - - - - 160,342
The mcome and axpansa itams with related parties for 2023 were as follows:
Immediate parent Other significant Associates Ertities under  Key management Other related Total
I rnilbarss of Lizbeki company shareholders common conirol personnal parties
Soums
Interest nconms - 122,071 1,404 16,452 40 7. 368 156,330
Intarest expenss 34,843 252,419 il 81,027 750 - 34T, TH2
Fea and commission incomss - 4,753 910 - - 37 5,708
Latarizs and other bensfits - - - - 12,174 - 12,179
Socka security cosls = - - - 1,308 - 1,396
Transactions with the state atso include taxes which are detailed in Mote 26. Key management compensation is presented below:
Tro eowiliicarsss o Lizbekistan Spums 2024 2023
Social security conbribulions 1,268 1,398
Balaries 500 545
Bonuses payable - 1,772
Ciiher banefits 10,142 11,830

|
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The Uzbekistan government has condrol over the Group, The Group decided to apply the exemption from
disclosure of individually insignificant transactions and balances with the government and parties that are related
1o the entily because the Lizbek state has control, joint control of significant influence over such party.

The Group lends to and received depasits from a large number of government related entities, Such loans and
deposis ane individually Insignificant and are generally entered info on an arm's length basis,

36 Ewvents after the End of the Reporting Perlod

Agoording to the decision of the Shareholders Meeting Ne1 daled 28 February 2025, Mamanov Ruslanbek has
baen appointad as 8 member of the Supervisory Board,

On 7 March 2025, in accordance with Presidental Decrea Mo, PP-62 dated 14 February 2025 on “Additional
measires in develop youlh erfrepreneurship and ensure youth employment” the Bank entered into a
subordinated deht agreement with "Uzbakistan Fund for Reconstruetion and Development™ for a total amount of
1,850,592 milllon UZS for 10 years.

On 24 February 2025, the Bank hes atfracted funds in the amount USD 20 million (in UZS equivalent: UZS
258.410 million) with maturity up to 3 years and with annual interest rate of 11% under the facility agreeman
between the Bank and Mopane Securities pic, for the purpose of financing small and medium enterprises,

In accordance wilh Presidential Decree dated 16 December 2024 "Development of factoring and micraloan®, the

Group has established new subsidiary "Aloga Finance Development Mikromoliva tashkiloti® with 100% ownership
and share capital in amount of UZS 2 000 million,

In accordance with Presidential Decree Me 357 dated 14 October 2024, "On further development of the startup
projects and venture financing ecosystem” the Group has established new subsidiary Aloga Ventures - 2* with
100% ownership and shara cagital in amount of UZS 70,000 millicn.

Following the sale of a bulding disclosed in Nota 14, the Bank has relocated Its operations into the Tashkent City
Building subsequent o the reporting date.

On 28 Merch 2025, the Bank has received UZS 200,000 million for the new shares Issued durlng the vear ended
3 Decamber 2024,

In March 2025, CBL increased the financing rate from 13.5% o 14%:
AT  Abbreviations

The list of the abbreviations used in these consolidated financial statements is providad below:

_Abbreviation Full rame
AC Amertised Cost = B

_ECF Credit Conversion Factor
CBU Ceniral Bank of Republic of Uzbekistan —=—
EAD Exposure at Defaull -
ECL Expected Credit Loss
EIR Effective inlerest rale =— e _
FWOC Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
FVTPL Fair Vaiue Through Profit or Loss -
FX, Forex Foreign Currency Exchange =
IFRS IFRS* Accounting Standards -
LGD Loss Given Default
PD Probability of Default .
POCI financial assets Purchased or Originated Credit-Impaired financial assets
SICR Significant Increase In Credit Risk
SPPI Solely Payments of Principal and Interest = =

Assessmant whather the financial instruments’ cash flows represent Solaly

SPPI test Paymenis of Principal and Interest

T



XUCOBOT MMNUOA TY3UINIAH UWMPUK BUTUMIAP PYNXATU

Butum | KoHTpareHTHUHr SMUTEHT 6UTUM
14.|Ne | tysunran |®.WU.LL. ékun TYyNUK Butum npeameTtu Cymmacu 6yimnya kum
caHa HOMM XxucobnaHagu
OMUTEHTHUHT
Bwrum | KowTparenTHunr Swrmnap Butumnap 6yiMuua kabyn KunuHraH
Ne |Ty3unran D.U.LL. €kn Butum npeameTtn Cymmacu 6yiuya kapop KADORNAPHUHE TYNUK TALPKEDY
caHa TYNUK HOMM Kabyn Kunrawx popnapi Y. P
opraHu
AT "AnokabaHk" Ba acpcomnnanraH waxc ypracuaa Ty3unum
MyMKUH 6ynraH xap kaHpai 6utumnap, wy xymnagaH GaHk
onepauusnapu, XycycaH KpeauT, nuauHr, 6aHk kaconatu,
KachunnuKk, AenosuT, cBon Ba CnoT Gutumnapu, cyfFypTa, nyn
"W a6eKUCTOH 12 oid, iunnk 18% wyaaaTnm AKLLVIFI[:\Opj‘Iap mabnafnapu Ba TynoenapHW yTkasuw GunaH  Gofnuk
1 | 27.02.2024 n " [IeNo3uT WapTHoMacH 2400 000 000 ymymMun onepauusnap, rapoB Ba KOHYH Xxyxkatnapuaa Hasapaa
outacu” AX AMFANULLIA TyTunraH 6Golka onepauusinap xampa ywby Talkunortnap
TOMOHUAAH KypcaTunaétraH Xusmatnapu to3acuaaH
Tyaunaguran Gutumnap 6yiinya xap Gup GUTUMHUHT cymmacu
6aHk coc akTuBnapuHuHr 50 (annuk) dhomusurava 6GynraH
xonnappa GuTUMNapHK Tyauwra onauHaaH pyxcart 6epuncuH.
2018 iiun 16
fun 16 anpennarm BaHk Bowwkapysu Paucu Basudacu 6axapysun K.Mpucbekosa
MexHar wapTHomacura mexHaT wapTtHomacu AT “AnokabaHk" YcTasura myBoduK
WpucGekosa KYILMMYA KeNULLYBra acocaH st wncsH y
2 | 13.04.2024 KammyHa AT "AnokabaHk" baHk - KysaTtys Kenrawwm ¥ P X
BolIKaDyBM Paucy BAKONAT V4 Bank bBowkapyBu Paucu 6unaH TysunaguraH mexHaT
HapuHbaesHa MK Py . Y wapTHomacu 6YiMya 6utumHM umsonaw 6Gamk Kysatys
AN Mypaatra ysanTupuLl
- KeHralum Paucu s3ummacura oknaTuncuH.
TyFpUcHaa
2023 iun 1 chespannam BaHk bBolwkapyBu ab3onapu 6GunaH TysunraH MexHaTt
Y, Mexpiar LispTHOUBGUS wapTHomacu 6up un Myaaatra y3auTUpuncuH
KyKOHGoeB Kywwma kenvuiyera acocan B:HK Bouwkal F; abaoﬁqm 6w{1aH M‘; HaT -Lua THOMacura
3 | 13.04.2024 YMUaxKoH AT "AnokabaHk" BaHk - Kysatys KeHrawum Kapy . P . P
BolLIKapyBi ab3ocu BaKonaT KMpUTUNaAUraH  kyluumyanapHu ©6aHK HOMMZ@H uUm3onail
A6aypaxmumoBuy ! ! Bowkapys Pauvcu BasucbacuHu Gaxapysuu K.MpucGekosa
Gup iiun MyARaTTa yaaiTUpILI 3UmMMacura IKnaTUIcuH
TyFpUcuaa i
2007 nun 2 uiongaru MexHat
WapTHOMaCHra KyLMMYa Bank bBowkapyBu ab3onapu 6unaH TysunraH MexHat
KenwLyBra acocaH wapTHomacu 6up un Myaaatra y3aunTUpUncuH.
6oHoB Anuiue
4 | 13.04.2024 Kyp P AT "AnokaGark" Bakk . Kysatys Ketratum Bank Bolkapys _abaonapw 6unaH MexHaT LiapTHOMacura
KMpUTUNaAUraH KyluumyanapHu 6aHK HOMUZ@H Km3onaiu
CamapoBuy Bolkapysu ab3ocu Bakonatu P a N v @
. N Bowkapye Paucu Basudacunu 6GaxapyBum K.MpucGekosa
6up “un mypaatra ysautupuLl
- 3UMMacura IoKNaTUNCuH.
TyFpUcuaa
2012 un 16 manparn MexHat
WapTHOMaGHra KjLLIMMYa Bank bBowkapyBu ab3onapu 6unaH TysunraH MexHat
KenuiLyBra acocar wapTHoMacu 6up un MyaaaTra y3ainTUpUNCuH.
MaxkamoB ®appyx
5 | 13.04.2024 ppy: AT "AnokaGarK" Bakk . Kysatys KeHrauum BaHk Bolukapys Na'bSOnEpVI 6unaH MmexHaT LapTHomacura
KMpUTUNaaurad KyliumyanapHu ©GaHK HoMuaaH um3onaiu
Mypognosuy BolLKapyBu ab3ocu BakonaTu P % Ky P .
N N Bowkapye Paucu BasudacuHum Gaxapysun K.Mpucbekosa
6up Anun mypaatra ysanTupuLl
- 3UMMacKra IoKNaTUICcuH.
TyFpUcHaa
2018 un 6 maptaaru MexHat
WwapTHOMaGCHTa KyLIMYa baHk bBolwkapyBu ab3onapu OunaH TysunraH MexHaT
wapTHomacwu 6up un Myaaatra y3auTUpUNcuH.
HacpeT.quoaa KRIMItyBEs acacad Bank Bolkapys absonapu GunaH MexHaT LuapTHoMacura
6 | 13.04.2024 AT "AnokaGank” Bark ) Kysatys Kenrawm KMpUTUNA, miazy ‘LuMMuaEa HU  BaHK )Lomw aHp vm3onatl
Hacu6a leKVIHOBHa Bolukapysu ab3ocu Bakonatu P % Ky P .
N N Bouwkapye Paucu BasudpacuHm Gaxapysun K.Mpucbekosa
Gup iiun MyARaTra yaaiTUpULI 3UMMmacura oKknaTUncuH
TyFpUCHaa :
2021 awun 1 uiongaru MexHat
WwapTHoMacura KyLuMa BaHk bBolwkapyBu ab3onapu 6unaH TysunraH MexHaT
KenwLyBra acocak wapTHoMacu 6up in myaaatra y3anTUpUncuH.
TypcyHoB OnTuboi BaHk B 6
7 | smonzoes V02V AT s S L e | S S s o vt wemoseers
Ymup3akosu Bolkapysu ab3ocu BakonaTtu P an N v @
N N Bowkapys Paucu Basudacunu 6Gaxapyeum K.MpucGekosa
6up nn mypaaTtra ysantupuLl
- 3UMMacHura IoKnaTUNCuH.
TyFpUcHaa
AT "AnokabaHk" Ba acpcpunnaHran waxc ypracuaa Ty3unuiim
MyMKUH 6ynraH xap kaHpgan Gutumnap, wy xymnagaH 6aHk
Kacbun kacbunnuk onepauusnapu, XycycaH KpeauT, nu3uHr, 6aHk kacponatu,
WwapTHOMacu 6yiiuia Kap3nop Kachunnuk, AenosnT, ceon Ba CnoT GuTumnapu, cyfypTa, nyn
- } 3 MaXGYPUATHHI Tyna EKki AKummopPap mabnafmapu Ba TynoBnapHu yTkasuw 6GunaH  GofFnuk
8 | 24.06.2024 |"Y36ekTenekom" AK| 130 000 000 000 yMyMuii onepauusnap, rapos Ba KOHYH XxyxokaTnapuga Hasapaa
KMCMaH Gaxapuium yayH YHUHT .
AFANULLIA TyTunraH 6Gowka onepauusnap xampa ywoy Talwkunotnap
KpeauTopu onauaa xasob . .
o TOMOHUAAH KypcaTunaérram Xusmatnapu lo3acuaaH
6epuLLHM 3 3uMMacura onuLu .
Tysunagurad Gutumnap 6yiunya xap 6up GUTUMHUHT cymmacu
6aHk codp akTuBnapuHuHr 50 (annuk) cousurada 6GynraH
xonnapaa GUTUMNapHU Tyaulura onauHaaH pyxcat 6epuncuH
AT "AnokabaHk" Ba achcpunnaHran waxc ypracuaa Ty3unuiim
MyMKUH 6ynraH xap kawpai Gutumnap, wy xymnagad 6aHk
onepauusnapu, XycycaH KpeauT, nu3uHr, 6aHk kacponatu,
Kachunnuk, AenosnT, ceon Ba cnoT Gutumnapu, cyfypTa, nyn
"YaGeKUCTOH Kpeaut wapTtHomara MyBouk Axuuspopnap | mabnafnapu Ba TynoBnapHu - yTkasuw Gunad  GofFnuk
9 |[19.08.2024 . 18 o mypaatra umnnuk 27 65 000 000 000 ymymMui onepauuanap, rapoB Ba KOHYH XxyXokatnapuaa Hasapaa
noutacu” AXK cdousaaH KpeauT axpartuLl AMFANULLIA TyTunraH 6Gowka onepauusinap xamaa ywby Talkunotnap
TOMOHUAAH KypcaTunaétraH xuamatnapu lo3acuaan
TyaunaguraH Gutumnap 6yiunda xap 6up GUTUMHUHT cymmacu
6aHk codp akTuBnapuHuHr 50 (annuk) dowusurava 6GynraH
xonnapaa GuTMMNapHW Tyaulira onauHaaH pyxcat 6epuncuH




Kadbun kacunnuk
wapTtHomacu 6yinya kap3nop

AT "AnokabaHk" Ba acpcomnnaHraH waxc ypracuaa Tysunum
MyMKUH 6ynraH xap kaHpai Gutumnap, wWwy xymnagaH 6aHk
onepauusnapu, XycycaH KpeauT, nu3uHr, GaHk kacponatu,
Kachunnuk, AenosuT, ceon Ba cnoT Gutumnapu, cyfypTa, nyn

"936eKI/1CTOH 73 MaXGypUATUHI Tyna KN AKuvm,qopPap mabnafmapu Ba TYnoBnapHu yTkasuw GunaH  Gofnuk
10 | 19.08.2024 ; 84 500 000 000 yMymMuia onepauusinap, rapoB Ba KOHyH Xxyxokatnapuga Hasapaa
noytacu" AXK KMCMaH Baxapuium y4yH yHUHT .
amFunuwmn | Tytunrad Gowka onepauusnap xamaa ywby Talwkunotnap
KpeauTopu onauaa xaeob . .
o TOMOHUZAH KypcatunaérraH Xuamartnapu to3acuaaH
6epuLLHM §3 3uMMacura onuL .
Tyaunaguran Gutumnap 6yinya xap 6up BUTUMHUHT cymmacu
6aHk codp akTuBnapuHuHr 50 (annuk) cpomsurava 6GynraH
xonnapaa 6utumnapHu Tysuiira onavHaaH pyxcat 6epuncuH
AT "AnokabaHk" Ba adpunnaHraH waxc ypracuaa Ty3vunuiim
MyMKUH 6ynraH xap kaHpaii 6utumnap, wy xymnagaH GaHk
onepauusnapu, XxycycaH Kkpeaut, nuauHr, 6aHk kacbonatu,
Mypnatnu aenosut Kachunnuk, AenosnT, ceon Ba cnoT Gutumnapu, cyfypta, nyn
"S/S6eKI/1CTOH wapTHomara MyBocuK Axuuspopnap |mabnafnapu Ba TynoenapHu yTkasuw GunaH  6Gofnuk
11 |28.10.2024 " 28.10.2024 pax 29.04.2026 37 000 000 000 ymMymui onepauuanap, rapoB Ba KOHYH XyxokaTnapuaa Hasapaa
noutacu" AXK

rava wunnuk 21 pousgan
Nenos3uT XonnawuTupuLL

ANFUNULLINA

TyTunraH 6Golka onepauusinap xampa ywby Talkunortnap
TOMOHUAAH Kypcatunaértran Xusmartnapu to3acuaaH
Tyaunaguran Gutumnap 6yinya xap 6up BUTUMHUHT cymmacu
6aHk codp akTuBnapuHuHr 50 (annuk) cpomsurava 6GynraH
xonnapaa 6GutumnapH1 Tyaulira onauHaaH pyxcat 6epuncuH

16.

A®OUNNAHIAH LLAXCIAP PYUXATHU
(xuco6om UunuHUH2 KYHU X0famua2a)

XounnawraH epu (Awaw Ynap acpcbunnanran waxc | Acoc(nap)
Ne | ®.U.LL. ékn TynuK HOMM »XoWu) (AaBnar, BUNOAT, 0e6 abTupod aTunuw coaup
waxap, TymaH) acocum 3TUIraH caHa
LLlepmartos Lep3on TOLUKEHT Wwaxpwu, BaHk Kysatys 2022 ann
1 XoTtamoBu4 LLlaiixoHTOXyp TymMaHu KEHrawim ab3ocu 27 anpenb
YmapoB OnumxoH TOLLKEHT Wwaxpwu, BaHk Kysatys 2022 ann
2 MyxammaxoHOBUY fAkkacapoi TymaHu KeHrawum ab3ocu 27 anpenb
MaHcypos Pyctam ToLUKeHT waxpwu, BaHk Kysatys 2022 vun
3 MynatoBu4 M.YnyfGek TymaHu KEeHralum ab3ocu 27 anpenb
XacaHoB HasupxoH TOLUKEHT waxpu, baHk Kysatys 2022 nun
4 HabwxaHoBuu Onma3sop TymaHu KeHrawm ab3ocu 27 anpenb
KOnpawes ®axpuaguH TOLKEHT waxpu, baHk Kysatys 2022 nun
> TypakynoBu4 LLlaiixoHTOXyp TymMaHu KeHrawum ab3ocu 27 anpenb
Mwanxonxaes Acpop TOLIKEHT Lwaxpu, BaHk Kysatys 2022 nmin
6 AcnaHoBu4 Mup3o-Ynyrbek TymaHu KEHrawum ab3ocu 27 anpenb
YmMp3akoB nxomxoH TOLUKEHT BUMNOATH, BaHk Kysatys 2024 ann
7 YpuH6oii yrnu Kunbpaii TymaHu KEHralwum ab3ocu 23 nionb
TNytcynnaesa dunHo3sa TOLUKEHT Waxpwu, BaHk Kysatys 2024 ann
8 PoBLuiaH Kusn LLlaiixoHTOXyp TymMaHu KEHrawim ab3ocu 23 nonb
XanTtmeToB Pyctam TOLUKEHT Wwaxpwu, BaHk Kysatys 2022 ann
9 MaxkamaxxaHoBUY AwHoboa Tymanm KeHrawum ab3ocu 27 anpenb
Wpucbekora KammyHa TOLLKEHT Wwaxpwu, BaHk Bowikapysu 2021 amn
10 HapuH6aeBHa Mwup3o-Ynyfbek TymaHu Paucu 13 anpenb
1 KykoHGoeB YMUaXKoH TOLUKEHT Wwaxpu, BakKk BolLIKapyBI absocH 2023 nun
A6aypaxumoBuy KOHyco6og TymaHu 31 aHBapb
12 Kyp6oHoB Anuwiep TOLIfKeHT waxpu, Banx EoWKApyBM A130CH 2021 amn
CamapgoBu4 LLlaiixoHTOXyp TymMaHu 13 anpenb
Ypokoe XKypabek ToLUKEHT Wwaxpwu, 2024 vmn
13 Tynmyponosuy FOHyco6oa TymaHm Stk Eollwapyen aL.20cH 29 anpenb
14 MaxkamoB ®appyx TOLUKEHT Wwaxpwu, Banx EoWKApyBM A130CH 2021 amn
MyponoBu4 Mupo6og TymaHu 13 anpenb
HacpetauHoBa Hacuba TOLKEHT waxpu, 2021 nun
15 BaHk bolukapysu ab3ocu
MpKkuHoBHa Onmasop TymaHu 13 anpenb
16 TypcyHoB Ontubon TOLI:IKeHT waxpu, Bark BolKapyBy ab3ocH 2021 nun
YMup3akoBuy LLlaiixoHTOXyp TyMaHu 13 anpenb
17| Vasuymn oxnanran | tyuman Tonmacu quaon, | KeAT yorae Gonauza | 2021
. ' 6aHKkHUHr yrywm 100,0% 4 okTA6pb
XKaMUATK 4-yn
ALOQALIZING TOLIKEHT Lwaxpu, Mmp30~ YnyrGek YKANKAT YCTaB (hOHQKAA 2017 viun
18 | MacbynusaTtu YeknaHraH TymaHu, Tenamacxug kyqacu,
- 6aHkHUHT ynywn 55,0% 26 pekabpb
XKaMUATK 4-yn




"ALOQA AKTIV"

TowkeHT waxpu, Mupso Ynyrbek

Macbynuatin YeknaHrax TymaHu, Tenamacxkua kyvacu KamwsT yCTas honamae 2018 #n
19 ¥ y P il ' 6aHkHUHT ynywm 100,0% 30 uonb
XKaMUATK 4-yn
IIN : Tl
OHIEY ROSHSRATVES HamaHraH Bunosatu, Xakkynotoz XKamuat yctaB cooHavaa 2024 vun 31
20 | MacbynuATK YeknaHraH - -
waxap, ¥36eKuCToH Kyyacu 6aHkHUHTr ynywm 29,30% oKTA0pb
XKamusaTu
o B "
Y36ekucton Pecnybnukacu - BT FMIMpLa (hoks b .
R TowkeHT waxpu, A.Temyp kyvacu, yHAaH 0pTUK houn3 2017 amn
21 | TuknaHuw Ba Tapakkuét .
101-yn akumsnapura aranuk Kunysdu 14 Hoa6pbL
>Kamrapmacu
IOPUAVK LLIaXc
XKamuat yctas cooHavaa
29 | ATB "Vamunnuiicank” Tf)LIJKeHT mangm, Amup Temyp TUKNaHULL Ba TapakkueT 2020 nun
Kydacu, 101-yn YKamrapmacuHuHr Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
XKamuat yctas cooHavaa
ATB "Y3caHoat Kypunuiu TowkeHT waxpw, LLlaxpucabs TUKNaHULW Ba TapakkueT 2020 nun
23 6aHK" Kydacu, 3-ywm YKamrapmacuHuHr Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
YKamuaTt yctaB cooHamMaa
24 | ATB "Acaka" TOLIJIfeHT waxpu, Hykyc kyvacu, TUKNaHULW Ba TapakkueT 2020 amn
67-yi YKamrapmacuHuHr Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
YKamuat yctaB cooHavaa
25 | ATB "Xank 6aHK" Tf)LIJKeHT m?xpm, Amup Temyp TUKNaHULW Ba Tapakkuet 2020 nun
Kydacu, 3-ym YKamrapmMacuHuUHI Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
YKamuat yctaB cooHamMaa
- M . . .
26 | ATB "Arpo6aHk” f)LUKeHT ma>§pm, YKYMUi TUKNaHULW Ba Tapakkuet 2020 nun
Kyqacu, 43-yi YKamrapMacuHUHI Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLm
YKamuat yctaB cooHamaa
27 ATB "BusHecHu TowkeHT waxpu, HaBouw kyyacu, TUKNaHULW Ba TapakkueT 2020 nun
pPUBOXNAHTUPULL B6aHKn" 18A-yn YKamrapMacuHUHT Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
X
TowwkeHT waxpu, Mupobop, amnAaT ycras (bOH'qM'?'a -
ATB "Mukpokpegut6aHk" TymaHu, AMup Temyp LoxKyyacu TG 52 TapanmlT 2020 fnn
28 poKpea 4y 7 ’ P VP tuoxky ’ YKamrapmacuHuHr Ternwnm 29 aBrycr
y ynyLwm
YKamuat yctaB cooHamMaa
29 | ATB "TypoH6arK” TOLIJIfeHT waxpu, Aban kyyacu, TUKNaHULW Ba TapakkueT 2020 nun
4a-yn YKamrapMacuHUHT Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLm
XKamuat yctaB cooHavMaa
MK "Kuunok Kkypunuiu TowwkeHT waxpwu, Laxpucabs TUKNaHWUW Ba TapakkneT 2020 nun
30 UHBECT" Ky4acu, 36-yn YKamrapmacuHuHr Ternwnm 29 aBrycr
ynyLwm
YKamuat yctaB cooHamaa
o " TowkeHT waxpu, AMup Temyp TUKNaHWULW Ba TapakkneT 2020 nmn
31 | AK™Yawaxapkypuniw Kyvacu, 4-yn YKamrapmacuHuHr Ternwnm 29 aBrycr
ynyLm
XKamuat yctaB cooHauMaa
32 | "VaOmomkanutan® MUK T?LIJKGHT LLIaX[Zil/I, Amup Temyp TUKNaHUw Ba TapakkuéT 2020 vun
Kydacu, 95A-yi >KamrapmacuHuUHr Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLm
YKamuat yctaB cooHamMaa
"Y¥36ekOMOH MHBECTULMS TowkeHT waxpu, AMup Temyp TUKNaHWUW Ba TapakkneT 2020 nmn
33 KomnaHusacn" MYXK Kydacu, 95A-yi >KamrapmMacuHuUHr Terunm 29 aBryct

ynyLm




YKamuat yctaB cooHamnaa

"Aby nabu TowkeHT waxpu, babyp ky4acwu, TUKNaHULW Ba Tapakkuet 2020 nun
34 Y36ekuHBecTMeHT" MUK 58A-yn. YKamrapmacuHuHr Ternwnm 29 aBrycr
ynyLwm
AX " Y36eKUCToH
PecnybnukacuHuHr XKamuat yctas cooHavMaa
TYFpUaaH-TyFpu TowkeHT waxpu, Amup Temyp TUKNaHWUW Ba TapakkneT 2020 nun
35 nHBEcCTUUusnap Kydacu, 95A-yn YKamrapmacuHuHr Ternwnm 29 aBrycr
Xamrapmacu" 6oLukapyBs4u ynyLwm
KOMnaHuscH
YKamuat yctaB cooHamaa
36 | "YANGI KON" MU Tf)LIJKeHT ma)fpm, Onumnap TUKNaHWUW Ba TapakkneT 2023 nun
Kydacu, 43-yi YKamrapmMacuHuUHI Teruwnm 31 aHBapb
ynyLwm
XKamuat yctas poHamMaa
"TalkKeHT MeTannyprus TowkeHT waxpu, byHéakop TUKNaHULW Ba TapakkuéT 2020 nvn
37 3asoau” MK Kydacu, 42/1-yn YKamrapmMacuHuUHI Teruwnm 29 aBryct
ynyLwm
. T 1n
38 | "Vs6erucTor Mouracu” AX OLLKEHT maxvpmv, POHy0060V.q YKamuat yctaB cooHamaa 2021 vun
Tymanu, Onon kyvacu, 1-yi ©aHkHUHr ynywm 29,35% 9 aBryct
BaHKHUHI nurupma ous Ba
- TowwkeHT Wwaxpu, A.Hasoui HOaH opTuk houns 2023 aun
39 | "Y3bekrenekom" AK . XQ ’ yHa P
Kydacu, 28A-yi akunanapura aranuk Kunys4du 13 ceHTAGpL
IOPUAMK LIaxc
"Svyazsoorujeniya stroy" TowwkeHT Wwaxpu, KOHycobon XKamusaT ycrae ooHauaa 2023 in
40 | MacbynuaTti YeknaHraH TyMaHu, YUMKeHT TpakT nynu AK "Y36eKTenekoM"HUHr 13 cenTS6DL
XaMusaTu Kydacu, 4A-yi TEernLwnm ynywm P
"TawarpouHsect" TowwkeHT BUNnoaTn, ByctoHnuk YKamuat yctaB cooHamMaa 2023 iun
41 | MacbynusaTti YeknaHraH TymaHu, XyxkakeHT KON, AK "Y36eKTenekom"HUHr 13 cenTs6bL
XaMusTtu KopuWHKyn KMLWNofu Teruwnm ynywm P
"Tenekom Kypunuw" TowwkeHT waxpu, AwHoboa YKamuaTt yctaB choHamMaa 2023 iun
41 | MacbynusaTti YeknaHrau Tymanu, [MapkeHT kydacwu, AK "Y36eKkTenekom"HUHr 13 CeHTSBDE
XaMuUATU 327-yi TEernLnm ynywm P
"Roza Star Service" YKamuat yctaB cooHavaa
TowKeHT, YnoH30p TymMaHu, " y ® 'q A 2023 aun
43 | MacbynusaTtin yeknaHran . AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
8 paxa, 8A-yi 13 ceHTA6pb
XKamusatu Teruwnm ynywm
Towke axpu, Onmo3so XKa cTaB o a .
"GRANIT" Macbynuatu HIKEHT Laxpu VHM, P T?my as H,,ﬂm 2023 vun
44 TymaHu, Kopacapowu kydacu, AK “Y36ekTenekoM”HUHr
YeKnNaHraH >xaMuaTu . 13 ceHTA6pb
282A- yi TEernLnuM ynywm
"By3ToH" MacbynusTtn
. YKamuaTt yctaB cooHamMaa .
YeKnaHraH >xaMmuaTu TowkeHT waxpu, byxopo kyyacu, " N 2023 nun
45 - . AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
Laknuaarv Kywuma 1-yi 13 ceHTa6pb
TEeruwnm ynywm
KopxoHa
"Y36€KMCTOH Kabenb KamusT ycTas honauaa
TenesugeHuacu" TowwkeHT waxpu, KOHycobon " y A A 2024 vuin
46 Lo . AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
MacbyIUATU YeKnaHraH TymaHnu, Onon kyvacu, 1-yn 31 okTs6pb
TEeruwnm ynywm
XKamMusTu
"Toshkent Taksofoni"
YKamuaTt yctaB cooHamMaa .
MacbynuMATK YeKnaHraH TowkeHT waxpu, YunoHsop " N 2024 vnin
47 .. AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
XaMUATU Waknuaaru TymaHu, ByHéakop Loxkyyacu, 8 31 okTa6pb
. Teruwnm ynywm
KyLLIMa KOpXOHa
"Aloqga va axborotlashtirish XKa cTaB o a
q . v . X .,I,l TowkeHT waxpu, A.Hasoun Tt"my a8 ¢ I-flllml 2024 nun
48 | sohasi tarixi va merosi . . AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
Ky4acu, 28A-yn 31 okTs6pb
Xamoart oHan TEeruwnm ynywm
"Telecom soft" TowkeHT waxpu, Mupso Ynyrbek YKamuaTt yctaB cooHamMaa 2024 iivn
49 | MacbyrnuATY YeknaHraH Tymanu, Bytok Unak Aynu Mo, AK "Y36eKTenekoM"HUHr 31 okT6pb

XaMUATU

Cauipam 7-Top kyvacu, 4-yn

TEruwnm ynyLm




"GLOBAL OPTICAL
COMMUNICATION

Knssax sunoatu, XKussax waxap,

XKamuaTt yctaB cooHavaa

. 2023 i
50 | UZBEKISTAN" “A” CaHoat 30Hacu, Kunssax AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr 13 ?:ei::én .
Macbynusiti yeknaHrax 9PKUH UKTUCOAMI 30HAcK Xyayau Teruwnm ynywm P
XKaMUATU LWaknuaari Kk
"UZ-SAT" MacbynuaTtn
XKamuat yctas poHamaa .
YeKnaHraH >xaMuaTu TowkeHT waxpu, Capakyn 2-6epk " N 2023 nun
51 . . . AK "Y36ekTenekoM"HUHr
Lwaknuaarm KyLima Kyya, 20-yn 13 ceHTA6pbL
Teruwnm ynywm
KOpXOHa
BOLUKA OPUOUK LULAXCNAPHUHIT BELL BA YHOAH OPTUK ®O0U3 AKLIMANAPUIA
(YRNYLWUNAPUIA, l'IAﬁl'IAPMI'A) ArANUru TYFPUCUOAMN AXBOPOT
Ne TynuK HoMKU XounawraHn epu (aaBnat, BUNOAT, Waxap, TYMaH) E——
= y pu (A ’ ’ Xap, Ty ynywu, %-aa
1 | "ALOQAVENTURES" MU T?LIJKGHT Lu?xpm, Mup3so Ynyrbek TymaHu, Tenamackug 100,00
Kyyacu, 4-yn.
N . TowwkeHT waxpu, Mup3o Ynyrbek Tymanu, Tenamacxug,
2 ALOQA AKTIV" MYXK . . 100,00
Kydacu, 4-yw.
3 | "ALOQALIZING" M4YX TowwkeHT waxpu, LLaxoHToxyp TymaHu, HaBoun kyvacu, 8-yi. 55,00
17 4 | "Y36ekucToH Moutacu" AXK TowkeHT waxpu, KOHycoboa Tymanu, Onoii kyvacu, 1-yi. 29,35
“| 5 | "Norin agrotexservis" MYX HamaHraH Bunoatu, Xakkynoboz wwaxap, Y36eKkucToH Ky4acu 29,30
6 | "Karmana agrotexservis" M4X Hasouii Bunositn, KapmaHa tymanu, Yiupyt Mo 17,00
2 "Aloga va axborotlashtirish sohasi | TowkeHT waxpu, HaBowui kyvacu, 15.00
tarixi va merosi" jamoat fondi 28 A-yii. '
"Nurobod t i h"
8 M:)ri(() 0d agrotexservismas Camapkang Bunosatu, Hypo6og TymaHu. 15,00
"ALSKOM SUG'URTA . .
9 KOMPANIYASI" AXK TowwkeHT waxpu, Amup Temyp kydacu, 109-yi. 12,76
"Bosop, nyn Ba kpegut" .
10 YU — TowwkeHT waxpu, KOHycobog Tymanu, bogomsop nynu, 1A. 7,69




